Poinciana West
Community Development District

Agenda Package

December 4, 2019



AGENDA



Poinciana West
Community Development District

219 ﬁ:ii\_rinéstoh Street, Orlando; .Fl(;riaa 1;»2_801 _ .
Phone: 407-841-5524 — Fax: 407-839-1526

November 27, 2019

Board of Supervisors
Poinciana West Community
Development District

Dear Board Members:

The Board of Supervisors of Poinciana West Community Development District will meet
Wednesday, December 4, 2019 at 9:30 AM at Mosaics, 388 Village Drive, Poinciana, Florida.
PLEASE NOTE THE LOCATION OF THE MEETING. Following is the advance agenda for

the meeting:

L .

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comment Period on Agenda Items

Organizational Matters
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.

Acceptance of Resignation of Shirley Bzdewka

Review of Letters of Interest/ Resumes

Appointments of Individuals to Fulfill the Board Vacancies
Administration of Oaths of Office to Newly Appointed Board Members
Consideration of Resolution 2020-01 Electing Officers

5. Approval of Minutes of the July 17, 2019 and September 18, 2019 Meetings
6. Public Hearing

A.

Consideration of Resolution 2020-02 Adopting Amended Rules of Procedure

7. Ratification of Agreement with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank to Provide
Auditing Services for the Fiscal Year 2019

8. Discussion of Holding Joint Meeting with Poinciana CDD

9. Staff Reports

A,
B.
C.

D.

Attorney
Engineer
District Manager
i. Approval of Check Register
ii. Balance Sheet and Income Statement
Field Manager
i. Field Manager’s Report
ii. Customer Complaint Log

10. Supervisor’s Requests

11. General Audience Comments

12. Other Business

13. Next Meeting Date - January 15, 2020
14. Adjournment



The second order of business is the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance.

The third order of business is the Public Comment Period where the public has an opportunity
to be heard on propositions coming before the Board as reflected on the agenda, and any other
items.

The fourth order of business is the Organizational Matters. Section A is the acceptance of
resignation of Shirley Bzdewka. A copy of the resignation letter is enclosed for your review.
Section B is the review of letters of interest/resumes received from residents interested in
serving on the Board. Residents able to attend the meeting will be available for Board
questions. Section C are the appointments of individuals to fulfill the Board vacancies and
Section D is the administration of the Oaths of Office to the newly appointed Board Members.
Section E is the consideration of Resolution 2020-01 electing officers. A copy of the Resolution is
enclosed for your review.

The fifth order of business is the approval of minutes of the July 17, 2019 and September 18,
2019 meetings. The minutes are enclosed for your review.

The sixth order of business opens the public hearing. Section A is the consideration of
Resolution 2020-02 adopting amended Rules of Procedure. A copy of the Resolution and
proposed rules are enclosed for your review.

The seventh order of business is the ratification of agreement with Berger, Toombs, Elam,
Gaines & Frank to provide auditing services for the Fiscal Year 2019. A copy of the agreement
is enclosed for your review.

The eighth order of business is the discussion of holding a joint meeting with the Poinciana
CDD. This is an open discussion item.

The ninth order of business is Staff Reports. Section C is the District Manager’s Report. Sub-
Section 1 includes the check register for approval and Sub-Section 2 includes the balance sheet
and income statement for your review. Section D is the Field Manager’s Report. The report
containing the monthly treatment reports is enclosed for your review. Sub-Section 2 includes
the customer complaint log for review.

The balance of the agenda will be discussed at the meeting. In the meantime, if you have any
questions, please contact me.

Sincerely,

e N M
George S. Flint
District Manager

CC:  Michael Eckert, District Counsel
Kathleen Leo, District Engineer
Alan Scheerer, Field Manager
Clayton Smith, Assistant Field Manager
Darrin Mossing, GMS

Enclosures



SECTION IV



SECTION A



Shirley Bzdewka
927 San Raphael St

Poinciana, FL 34759

October 5, 2019
Dear George,

It is with great sadness that | submit my letter for resignation as a supervisor on the Poinciana West CDD
Board effective immediately. It has been my great pleasure to serve on the board for the past two years,
| wish the board and the community continued success in the future.

Sincerely,

AW@W

Shirley Bzdewka



SECTION B



Dr. Maneck J Master
759 San Raphael St
Kissimmee, FL 34759
+1-973-479-9333
maneck.master@gmail.com

Overview More than 30 years of Executive and Board experience in academia, government
and industry with a demonstrated ability to create consensus to achieve common
goals and objectives. Dynamic independent thinker reaching out for pragmatic and
workable solutions.

Professional Managing Member and CEO, X-Strat LLC 2011-2014
Experience Develop custom technology, IT, and strategy solutions for institutions.
Senior Vice President, Telcordia Technologies (formerly Belicore) 2000- 2010
Chief Operating Officer, NetCom Solutions International 1999-2000
Executive Management, AT&T, (with increasing responsibilities) 1994-1999
R&D Management, Bell Laboratories 1982-1994
Adjunct Professor, Monmouth University, NJ 1984-1987
Education e Ph.D., Electrical Engineering, University of Florida, Gainesville, 1982.
o Masters, Electrical Engineering, University of Florida, Gainesville, 1979.
e B. Tech, Electrical Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology (Bombay) 1977.
e Advance Executive Program, Kellogg School, Northwestern University, 1996.
s AT&T Leadership Development Program, 1994,
e  Mini-MBA, AT&T School of Business/Wharton School, 1993.
Honors and Member of Etta Kappa Nu, Tau Beta Pi, and Phi Kappa Phi
Research Associate Editor, IEEE Transactions on Electromagnetic Compatibility.

Senior Member, IEEE
Member, American Geophysical Union

Boards Appointed by Undersecretary of Defense to the Defense Science Board (DSB) Task
Force on Nuclear Weapons Effects 2010-2014
Elected Member, Bedminster Township Board of Education, NJ 2003-2009

Member, Board of Education, Somerset Hills School District, NJ 2004-2009
Supporting Member, Scout Troop 53, Bedminster, NJ (Eagle Scout)

Clearances Citizen of the United States, with US Top Secret clearance and SCIl access

e e S = s e e
Dr. Maneck ] Master Page 1



From: Stacie Vanderbilt svanderbilt@gmscfi.com
Subject: PWCDD VACANCY( Solivita)
Date: November 20, 2019 at 5:08 PM
To:

10/19/19
Mr. Flint,

My name is Larry Fair and | reside in Mira Vista and | am applying for the vacant seat on the PWCDD.
| spent 42 years as a Business Development Manager with Westinghouse. | sold to Distributors,
Builders, Developers, Utilities, Property Management Firms, Exporters, and Government. In addition |
did Architectural

Presentations,including Architectural and Engineering Specifications and Take Offs of Blue Prints.

In addition | mentored new Representatives, Field Sales Training, Collections, and Problem Solving.

I had several different Territories which included, New York City Metro area, Central New Jersey, South
Florida and my last territory was the largest volume territory, Metro Washington D.C. which included
including parts of West Virginia and Delaware.

| have volunteered with CERT in Solivita and Maryland. In Solivita | am a CPR Trainer and part of the
Emergency Response Team. Vice President of the YA YA club and Brooklyn Club. Long Term Care
Ombudsman in Maryland and Central Florida.(Patient Advocate for Nursing Home Patients)

Thank you,
Larry Fair
1306 Harbor Ridge Drive



Joseph L. Clark

e 306 Moorpark Way

e Poinciana, FL. 34759

e 419.320.2642

e Joseph.clark4@gmail.com

Education

AA Journalism, Chabot College, Hayward CA, 1964

BA Journalism, University of California, Berkeley, 1966

MA Journalism, California State University, Northridge, 1991

Employment
U.S. Army, 1959-62, Specialist 4
The Daily Review, Hayward, CA 1962-64 Reporter

The Associated Press, 1964-68, San Francisco, Denver, Los Angeles, Political
Writer, Editor

Kaiser Industries Corp., Oakland, CA 1968-1986, Director of PR
Ogilvy &Mather, Los Angeles, VP Account Supervisor 1986-88
Core-Vent Corp., Encino, CA VP, PR & Advertising, 1988-90

The University of Toledo, Toledo, OH, 1991-2010, Lecturer, Director of Public
Information, Assistant to the President

Solivita

Current or past member, Pickleball, Poker, Fishing, Democratic Clubs. Co-
founder, Solivita Amenities Evaluation Committee, PITH.



District Manager at gflint@gmscfl.com Nov. 12, 2019

To whom it mat concern:

I, Rhonda Y DiFranco would respectively like to submit my interest on consideration to the CDD
east # 3 seat. It is my understanding, a letter of intent needs to be submitted advising, | meet
the eligibility to serve on the CDD Board. | am registered to vote in the State of Florida with an
address within the boundaries of the Poinciana West CDD as my primary residence. | currently
reside at 295 Indian Wells Ave. Kissimmee, Fl. | believe my unique skills and experiences will
enhance our beautiful community. | have included my resume for your review. Your
consideration in to this matter is greatly appreciated.

Respectiully,

Rhonda DiFranco



Rhonda Y. DiFranco

295 Indian Wells Ave = Poinciana, Florida 34759 » Cell 941-249-1583

Email; rdifranco8226(@ ¢mail.com

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY
State of Florida-Department of Children and Family

Child Protective Investigator-Feb 2016 to 2018
North Port City Commission-2012 to 2016

Commissioner 2012
Vice Mayor 2013
Mayor 2014

Vice Mayor 2015-2016

Deputy/Sergeant

Sarasota County Sheriffs Office, Sarasota, Florida July 1991 -Jan 2012
Highlights:
e Front Desk Deputy
Corrections Deputy
Patrol Deputy
Special Investigation, Narcotics detective
Law Enforcement Accreditation Manager
Sergeant-Patrol and Forensics

Nurse
Pasco County Sheriffs Office Land O’ Lakes, FL July 1988 - 1991

Highlights:
e Administered Medical Care for inmates

Private Practice Nurse
Dr. Long, Dr. Minton, Dr. Lyons Tampa, Florida March 1983-1988

Nurse
Tampa Veterans Hospital, Tampa, FL October 1976-1983

Associates Degree in General Studies-Hillsborough Community College
Basic Law Enforcement Academy-Pasco Hernando Community College

Dual Certification Law Enforcement/Corrections-Sarasota Technical
Institute



Bachelors Degree in Criminal Justice-International College (Naples/Ft.
Myers, Florida) Cuma Sum laude

Master’s Degree -Forensic Psychology-Argosy University, Sarasota, FL

State of Florida: Nursing Certificate
1976-1991

EDUCATIONAL SKILLS OBTAINED

Basic Law Enforcement- State of Florida
Basic cross training- Corrections
Sex Crime Investigations training
Dynamic entry and search warrant training
DUI intoxilyzer 5000 training
Radar Speed measurement
Narcotics identification and investigation
Child Development
Domestic Violence
Trauma
FSFN application
People first application.
Weapons of Mass destruction- FEMA
Incident response to terrorist bombings awareness training
Forensic response and application to WMDs
Forensic Science
Shooting reconstruction
Blood spatter reconstruction
Latent print development
Photographic evidence
Forensic process of WMDs
Certification for Investigators-State of Florida
Ethics State of Florida
Accreditation Course: FDLE

o Getting started in accreditation
Designing an effective accreditation program
Managing the accreditation process
Medical Standards
Standards Review
Arrest/Detention of Foreign Nationals
How to write a policy
Assessor Training
Preparing for the On sight

O 0 00O 000 0 o0

SOFTSKILLS COURSES

Leadership and Supervision training: Career Trac

Effective Communication: Career Trac

Ethics

Computer programs, Excel, Microsoft, Word, PDF, Publisher.



¢ Robert Rules
s Public records
¢ Understanding of Employee Negotiations

CORE STRENGTHS

Strong ability to lead teams

¢ Effectively applies time management skills in order to prioritize and to
accomplish multiple tasks assigned
Demonstrates strong written and administrative skills

e Provides direction to facilitate processes and tasks in multiple work
groups

» Creates consistent and accurate documentation and training to
empower less experienced officers to work more effectively

o Ability to demonstrate strong interpersonal skills in a team
environment

e Chair and leadership

¢ Application of Parliamentary procedure

e Supervision

ORGANIZATION AFILIATIONS

Board of Director of Tri-county Counseling- served 4 years
Community Health Advisory Team-served 2 years

Southwest Regional Planning Council- served on the board for 4 years
Metropolitan Planning Organization- served 3 years

MPO- Chair- Disability Board -served 3 years

Mayors Council in Washington DC- served 2 years

Tampa Regional Planning Council- served 3 years.

League of Cities- Urban Community board served 4 years.
National Organization for Women

Southwest Commission of the Status on women. Vice President.
FEMA Weapons of mass destruction. Anniston on Alabama 2year

POLICING SKILLS

Certified Firearms

Certified in all less lethal; asp, taser, and chemical
Certified Radar

Dynamic Entries

Narcotics and Identification

Field Training Officer

Various Accreditation training
Leadership and Supervision
Forensic certifications

Blood spatter expert

Shooting reconstruction

3d Crime analysis

Finger print and shoe impression
DNA collection



Crime scene reconstruction

Policy formation

Weapons of Mass destruction.

Forensic management

Supervision Policing.

Supervision

Human resources

Disciplinary board member

United States Marshalls. Transportation of deportation.

References and supporting documentation furnished upon request



SECTION E



RESOLUTION 2020-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE
POINCIANA WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
ELECTING THE OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Poinciana West Community Development District (the “District”) is a
local unit of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida
Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) desires to elect the
Officers of the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF THE POINCIANA WEST COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:

Section 1. - is elected Chairperson,

Section 2. - is elected Vice-Chairperson,

Section 3. o - is elected Secretary.

Section 4. is elected Assistant Secretary.

__is elected Assistant Secretary.

is elected Assistant Secretary.
is elected Assistant Secretary.

Section S. is elected Treasurer.

Section 6. is elected Assistant Treasurer.

Section 7. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4™ day of December, 2019.

ATTEST: POINCIANA WEST COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson



SECTION V



MINUTES OF MEETING
POINCIANA WEST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
The Regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Poinciana West Community

Development District was held on Wednesday, July 17, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. in Mosaics, 388

Village Drive, Poinciana, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Charles Case Chairman

Shirley Bzdweka Assistant Secretary
Peggy Gregory Assistant Secretary
Roy LaRue Assistant Secretary

Also present were:

George Flint District Manager
Michael Eckert District Counsel
Kathy Leo District Engineer
Clayton Smith Field Manager
Residents

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the July 17, 2019

Poinciana West Community Development District’s Board of Supervisors Meeting.

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call

Mr. Case called the meeting to order, called roll, and a quorum was established.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSNESS Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period on Agenda Items

Before opening public comment period Mr. Case noted that Supervisor Lenny Vento, the
Vice Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, passed away the week before. Mr. Case spoke about
Mr. Vento for a time and expressed his condolences. Ms. Bzdweka spoke next about Mr. Vento

and stated he will be very missed. Ms. Gregory expressed her condolences as well. Mr. LaRue



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

noted that he attended Mr. Vento’s celebration of life and stated that it was a testament to
Lenny’s popularity within the community. Mr. Eckert spoke about the pleasure of working with
Lenny since he joined the Board. Ms. Leo noted that she only knew Lenny in a professional
capacity but he will be missed. Mr. Flint expressed his condolences. The Board members took a
moment of silence in remembrance of Mr. Vento.

Mr. Case asked for any members of the public that would like to comment on agenda

items to do so at this time. There were no comments, the next item followed.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters
A. Discussion of Process to Fill Seat #3 Board Vacancy
Mr. Case noted he was not prepared to discuss this item and suggested the item be tabled

to the next meeting. The Board agreed the item should be tabled.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the March 19,
2019 and May 7, 2019 Meetings

Mr. Case presented the minutes of the March 19, 2019 meeting and asked for comments,
questions, or changes. Mr. LaRue stated his opinion that there should be a live recording,
preferably a video recording, of the meetings so everyone can watch. Mr. LaRue noted he had no

comments or changes to the March 19, 2019 minutes that were in the agenda.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdw;ka, seconded by Mr. LaRue, with a;ll=|
in favor, the Minutes of the March 19, 2019 Meeting, were ‘

approved.
Mr. Case presented the minutes of the May 7, 2019 meeting and asked for comments or

changes to the minutes. Mr. LaRue noted the second bullet point on page 5 needed clarification.
Mr. Eckert suggested they might have meant down instead of done. Mr. LaRue asked for
clarification on the third bullet point on page 6, regarding the comment from Mr. Case. Mr. Case
noted he questioned the attorney about reviewing the Ethics Law to see if anyone on the Board
was involved with any contributions or support of the firm representing Poinciana. Mr. Flint
noted at this point in the meeting the issue at hand is if the minutes accurately reflect what was

said, and he believed they did. If the Board needs to have a discussion about the content being



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

talked about and not the accuracy of the minutes, that can be brought up under the attorney
section. Mr. Eckert noted he planned to bring it up.

Mr. LaRue noted on page 8 there was discussion on the revised Check Register from
March 11" through April 30", He noted there was a corrected check register that was presented
at the meeting for the sum of $69,727.83 and that should be corrected in the meeting minutes.
Mr. Flint stated that was correct and they would get that changed. Mr. LaRue had no other
changes. Ms. Gregory voiced her opinion that they should video record the meetings or live

stream them. Mr. Flint noted he would discuss the topic of video recording later in the meeting.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Mr. Case, with all in |
favor, the Minutes of the May 7, 2019 Meeting, as amended, were

approved., B
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2019-06
Amending the Location of the Fiscal Year
2020 Budget Hearing

Mr. Flint presented Resolution 2019-06. He noted the original resolution set the public
hearing as being in the ballroom. Because of the renovations that room is not available, and the

new resolution is amending the location of the public hearing.

On MOTION by Mr. LaRue, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all in
favor, Resolution 2019-06 Amending the Location of the Fiscal
Year 2020 Budget Hearing, was approved.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing

A. Consideration of Resolution 2019-07 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget and
Relating to the Annual Appropriations

Mr. Flint asked for a motion to open the public hearing.

in favor, the Public Hearing on Resolution 2019-07 and Resolution

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all H
2019-08 was opened. |

Mr. Flint presented Resolution 2019-07. He noted at a prior nieeting the Board had
approved a proposed budget and set the date, place, and time of the public hearing for today for
the final consideration. Mr. Flint reviewed the revised proposed budget, and noted it was
different than what the Board had seen in May. He noted the main difference on the revenue side

in the new version of the budget was that they were proposing a Capital Reserve Fund be



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

created. The assessment line item remains the same, there is no proposed increase in the per unit
Operations & Maintenance assessment. The carryforward surplus increased to $348,853. All but
$33,000 of that will get moved to a Capital Reserve Fund. Page 6 shows a transfer in of
$315,592. This segregates those funds from the General Reserve so they are set aside for any
future projects like lake bank restoration, or storm water structure repair, failed pipes, etc. Those
would be expensed out of your Capital Reserve Fund. It makes it easier to see what you have in
Reserves.

Mr. Flint reviewed the operating expenses in the 2020 budget compared to 2019. The
operating expenses are going down by $46,000. The majority of that is engineering, attorney’s
fees, etc. As a result of meeting every other month, there’s a $6,000 savings.

Mr. Flint noted it is not a requirement to create the Capital Reserve Fund and the Board
could choose to decide to leave it the way it was in the past. In that case, they would change the
carry forward to $33,261 and remove the transfer out to Capital Reserves. Mr. Case asked for
any comments or changes.

Mr. Case asked for any comments from the public on the budget. A Resident asked if
going forward will future budgets be based on the actual expenditure. Mr. Flint noted they trued
up the line items based on what the current year projected actuals are.

Mr. Robert Santiago (1250 Cambria Bend) asked for clarification on Capital
Expenditures. Mr. Flint clarified that if they put that number on the General Fund, it would be
budgeted twice. The resident asked about attorney’s fees, Mr. Eckert and Mr. Flint noted they
were suggesting a $20,000 reduction. Mr. Flint noted they suggested the attorney’s fees go from
$50,000 to $30,000. He also noted that Engineering went from $20,000 to $15,000 and
Supervisor’s fees from $12,000 to $6,000.

Mr. Flint stated if it was more confusing to create a new account, they could use the old
system if the Board chose to. Mr. LaRue suggested continuing the old method. The Board agreed
to Mr. LaRue’s suggestion.

Resident (759 San Raphael Street) inquired about the balance sheet, he asked if the
$350,000 is required to be with SunTrust. He noted he receives 2.5%. Mr. Flint noted the types
of investments are specifically stated in the Statutes, it includes local government investments
pools which the SBA is the primary one. He stated the District is limited in what they can invest

in because it needs to be stable. The Board briefly discussed the pros and cons of different



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

accounts and the risks. The Board noted they would research all their options and choose the
option that is both safe and benefits Poinciana West.
Mr. Case asked for any further public comments regarding the budget or assessments.

Hearing none, a motion to close the public hearing was requested.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all
in favor, the Public Hearing on Resolution 2019-07 and Resolution
' 2019-08 was closed.

—_—

Ms. Gregory brought up the $23,000 being used to correct the water systems, and asked
Ms. Leo if they are anticipating any other extraordinary expenses. Mr. Eckert stated they will be
acquiring two more ponds at some point. Ms. Leo noted the budget estimate for Engineering was
a fair estimate. Mr. LaRue questioned if a projection of $15,000 was necessary if the closeout for
2019 was $7,000. Ms. Leo noted they had not done an annual inspection this year, and that is an
expense they will have next year.

Ms. Gregory pointed out the $2,000 that Sarah, who attended the meeting in May,
charged the Board for 7 hours. Ms. Gregory suggested video conferencing to cut down on travel
expenses. Mr. Eckert pointed out that Sarah traveled to the meeting, attended the meeting, and
prepared for the meeting and that was all included in the 7 hours. Mr. Eckert stated that travel
time is split among other meetings they have in the area. Ms. Bzdweka stated that she was tired
of addressing the same topics repeatedly at every meeting.

Mr. Flint noted that Mr. Eckert can participate at meetings via conference calls, if the
Board wanted to take that route. Ms. Gregory asked Mr. Flint for clarification about the $5,000
line item titled assessment administration. Mr. Flint stated they maintain the assessment roll for
the District, and in the contract there is a $5,000 fee to maintain the assessment roll. They
maintain the lien book with parcel ID’s, how much they pay in debt, how much they pay in
O&M, if they have prepaid the debt. It must be certified to the County annually for it to be
placed on the tax bill.

Mr. LaRue requested that the travel expenses be broken out separately because they are
paying a rate of $310 an hour for the attorney to travel to the meeting. He also requested to see
the legal charges for the last year. Mr. Eckert stated he would provide the information requested

and separate the line items moving forward.



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

Ms. Gregory asked about newspaper advertisement fees. Mr. Eckert noted they did not
change the laws and it is still required to be printed and advertised in the newspaper. Mr. Flint
stated they have very limited options when it comes to advertising in a newspaper of general
circulation,

Mr. Flint continued explaining changes to the budget. He proposed increase the interest
earnings up to $4,500. They would reduce the carryforward to $39,261 which totals $335,055.
Under expenses in Capital Outlay, they will change that from $0 to $10,000. Transfer out will
change from $315,592 to $0. The Board agreed with Mr. Flint’s suggestions.

On MOTION by Mr. LaRue, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all in
favor, Resolution 2019-07 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget
and Relating to the Annual Appropriations, was approved.

B. Consideration of Resolution 2019-08 Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying
an Assessment Roll
Mr. Flint explained this resolution imposes the annual Operations & Maintenance

Assessment. He reviewed the attached exhibits, the budget and the assessment roll. The
assessment roll lists every parcel ID and what the per unit assessment is. The O&M Assessment

is not changing, it remains at $186.57 per year.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all
in favor, Resolution 2019-08 Imposing Special Assessments and
Certifying an Assessment Roll, was approved.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Agreement with All
Terrain Tractor Service, Inc. for
Stormwater System Repair Services

Mr. Flint noted the Board had previously approved the stormwater repairs and delegated
authority to the Chairman to make the final determination based on an NTE. The agreement with
All Terrain Tractor Service was brought to the Board to be ratified. The All Terrain Agreement

is for $16,462.

On MOTION by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all
in favor, the Agreement with All Terrain Tractor Service, Inc. for
Stormwater System Repair Services, was ratified.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Agreement with Lake &
Wetland Management Orlando, Inc. for
Stormwater System Erosion Repair
Services



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

Mr. Flint noted the agreement with Lake & Wetland Management is for $5,000. Mr.
LaRue questioned if work would be delayed, Mr. Smith stated work had already started by All
Terrain. Ms. Gregory asked why there was no end date for either agreement. Mr. Smith stated
there is no set time frame but he will supervise the work and make sure it is being completed in a
timely manner. Mr. Flint noted this work is highly dependent on the weather, but they do have a

30-day written termination with no cause.

On MOTION by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all |
in favor, the Agreement with Lake & Wetland Management |
Orlando, Inc. for Stormwater System Erosion Repair Services, was i
_approved. |

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Landscape Maintenance
Agreement with Floralawn, Inc.

Mr. Flint noted this was placed on the agenda at the Board’s request because the
agreement with Floralawn is coming up for renewal on October 31%. The Board discussed their
options of renewing, extending, or doing otherwise. Mr. LaRue and Mr. Smith discussed the
scope of work Floralawn does. Mr. LaRue requested that there be a written description of the
scope of work. Mr. Flint stated they would update the map and scope of work and bring the item

back for discussion at the September meeting.

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports

A, Attorney

Mr. Eckert spoke on the ongoing litigation. The next hearing is September 5% at 11:00
a.m. and that is on the people who contested the bond validation’s motion to extend time to
respond to the District’s request for discovery to prove the cost they are seeking. It is not a
hearing on the Motion to Tax Costs.

Mr. Eckert noted he represents the Board as an entity as a whole. He does not represent
individual Board members nor does he give legal advice to individual Board members regarding
their own conduct. He stated he has no knowledge that any member of the Board has committed
any violation of the Code of Ethics. Mr. Eckert reviewed the Florida Statutes that cover voting

conflicts and conflicts of interest.

B. Engineer



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

Ms. Leo noted that engineering has been quiet, and they are doing maintenance as
needed. They are considered ways to decrease their costs as well, including attendance of

meetings.

C. District Manager
i. Approval of Check Register
Mr. Flint presented the Check Register from May 1% through July 11™ for the General
Fund and payroll totaling $46,739.96. Mr. Flint asked for any questions. The Board had no

questions or comments. Ms. Gregory and Mr. LaRue opposed the vote and the motion failed.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Mr. Case, with Ms. f
Gregory and Mr. LaRue opposed, the Check Register for May 1%
through July 11", Failed to Pass the Motion. |

Mr. Eckert noted if they were not going to approve the check register, they would need to
provide some direction to the Manager on what process he should have going forward. If check
registers are not approved, audits might not be approved. Audits are based on the check registers,
and those types of things could cause issues with bonds in the future.

Mr. Flint noted he had no questions regarding the check register prior to the meeting or at

the meeting.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdweka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all
in favor, the Check Register for May 1% through July 11%, was
| approved.

i. Balance Sheet and Income Statement
Mr. Flint presented the Unaudited Financial Statements through June 30", the General
and Debt Service Funds. He noted in the General Fund, they are slightly over 100% collected on
the O&M Assessments. On the expense side, they are $75,000 under the prorated budget of
$280,000. The expenses are underbudget and revenue is slightly over. The Board had no

questions on the balance sheet and income statements.

On MOTION by Mr. LaRue, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all ‘
in favor, approval of the June Financial Statements, were |
approved. ) |

ii. Approval of Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting Schedule



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

Mr. Flint asked if the intent of the Board was to meet every other month. The Board
agreed. The Board chose to meet the third Wednesday of November, January, March, May, July
22" and September at 9:30 a.m. in the Starlite Ballroom.

On MOTiON by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Ms. Bzdweka, with all
in favor, the Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting Schedule, was approved.

iii. Presentation of Arbitrage Rebate Calculation Report

Mr. Flint noted District is required to have an Arbitrage Rebate Calculation Report done
in order to ensure they are not earning more interest than they are paying. The IRS requires this
be done. Amtec did the report, the report shows a negative rebateable arbitrage of $239,832. He
noted that a negative arbitrage is what you want to see.

Mr. Flint noted at the last meeting it was requested that he research information regarding
having a court reporter attend, and what it would cost to video. He stated they contacted five
companies and the hourly rate for the first hour ranges anywhere from $75-$100. Every hour
after that is anywhere from $55-$80. To have the meeting transcribed, it’s a per page charge of
anywhere between $4.25-$6.50 per page. Mr. Flint noted they were easily looking at $2,000 a
year. If the Board wanted to live stream a video, they would have to have closed captions in
order for it to be ADA compliant. Price ranges from $1-$3 per minute. Ms. Gregory suggested
putting the meetings on Channel 732. Mr. Flint noted they would have to discuss that with
whoever interfaces that channel. Ms. Gregory noted that she would research more and come up
with additional options. Mr. LaRue stated they took videos of the meetings up until September of
2018, he asked who decided they weren’t going to videotape anymore.,

Mr. Eckert noted the CDD did not orchestrate the videotaping, that was done by someone
who was not affiliated with the CDD. Mr. Case suggested putting this item on the next agenda to
discuss further.

D. Field Manager
i Field Manager’s Report
Mr. Smith presented the Field Manager’s report. Skimmers were repaired on ponds 2, 3,
13, and 20. In progress items are the bank restorations and wetlands. The dry ponds are not able
to be mowed due to how wet they are, string trimming is scheduled for July. Spraying and

management of aquatic weeds and algae is ongoing, and treatments appear to be working.



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

Mr. LaRue asked how far the pond bank could be restored? Mr. Smith stated they can go
about 15 feet. He noted they recommended bringing in soil because the quality of the soil already
there was so bad. Mr. Smith stated that Poinciana West has a hydrilla problem, and Clarke is
dealing with the issue. Mr. LaRue stated he spoke with a resident and she said the midges are
still an issue, but he did not see her call on the compliant log. Mr. Smith noted he would get with
Lauren and see why it wasn’t on the log. Mr. LaRue asked if there was a fish kill in pond 6, Mr.
Smith stated that five or six fish died most likely from the hydrilla.

ii. Customer Complaint Log
Mr. Smith presented the customer complaint log and the Board discussed putting more
fish in the ponds to try to help the midge problem. Mr. Smith noted he will solicit bids for fish in
Pond 6.

TWELTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Request

Mr. Case asked for any Supervisor’s Requests. The Board had no requests.

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS General Audience Comments

Resident (Unidentified) noted the Board should negotiate the attorney or law firms
disbursements. The resident brought up the discovery that the Board discussed during the
meeting, and stated it was odd that no one had come back with an actual amount of time they
would like for discovery. The resident also noted that typically the Chairman requests a motion,
that’s given and seconded and then voted on. He questioned whether under Robert’s Law the
Chairman should actually vote on any resolution. The resident asked for clarification on the
arbitrage rebate calculation as well.

Mr. Eckert noted that by law, the Board is not required to adopt Robert’s Rules of Order.
It is in the Board’s adopted Rules of Procedure they specifically don’t adopt them. He noted the
Chairman is entitled to vote and make motions and second just like the other supervisors. He
stated those are the Rules of Procedure for all 200+ districts his firm represents.

Mr. Flint stated the arbitrage report is in the agenda, which can be found online on the
CDD’s website. He noted the website explains why they do it, the requirement, and the detailed
calculation. Mr. Flint noted if the resident had questions after reviewing the report on the CDD’s

website, he would gladly talk with him.

10



July 17,2019 Poinciana West CDD

Ms. Trudy Robertson (306 Moorpark Way) asked if the process of electing or replacing a
supervisor was stated in the bylaws. Mr. Flint noted anytime there is a vacancy during the term
of office, the remaining Board members appoint the replacement through the end of that term.
Mr. Case noted if there is a vacancy, they notify the community and request resumes. The Board
evaluates the resumes and try to come to a conclusion. Mr. Flint noted that 5 Board members is
the limit.

Ms. Sally May (518 San Joaquin Road) inquired about the preserves. She asked if they
were walked or checked like the dry ponds. She noted that the preserve behind her house is
building with water. She also asked Mr. Smith to check on the vines to see if they were invasive,
as it could lead to them losing trees. Ms. Leo noted the wetlands Ms. May was referring to are
under a Conservation Easement, and they are not supposed to do anything to them. Ms. Leo
noted that Mr. Smith would take a look around the area. Ms. May stated she hoped the Board
could learn to work together. Mr. Case thanked Ms. May.

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business

There being none, the next item followed.

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Date — September 18, 2019
at 12:30 P.M.

Mr. Case announced that the next meeting was on September 18,2019 at 9:30 a.m.

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

| On MOTION by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Mr. LaRue, with all in
|I_favor, the meeting was adjourned.

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman

11



MINUTES OF MEETING
POINCIANA WEST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
The Regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Poinciana West Community

Development District was held on Wednesday, September 18, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. in the Starlite

Ballroom, 384 Village Drive, Poinciana, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Charles Case Chairman

Shirley Bzdewka Assistant Secretary
Peggy Gregory Assistant Secretary
Roy LaRue Assistant Secretary

Also present were:

George Flint District Manager
Michael Eckert District Counsel
Kathy Leo District Engineer
Clayton Smith Field Manager
Pete Deglomine Clarke

Residents

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the September 18,

2019 Poinciana West Community Development District’s Board of Supervisors Meeting.

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call

Mr. Case called the meeting to order, called roll, and a quorum was established.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSNESS Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period on Agenda Items
Ms. Case asked for any public comments about specific agenda items.
Mr. Norm Gundel (419 Fountain Valley Ln) spoke to agenda item 7, the review of Rules
of Procedure. He was concerned about changes to Rule 1.3(3) regarding Agenda and Meeting

Materials. The amendment states that they are limiting their obligation to make the agenda



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

materials public. He stated that was a mistake. He noted they are excluding financial statements
and informational reports, and the residents should be seeing those materials. In the amendment
it states that additional materials may be added or provided under separate cover at the meeting.
The resident noted this is already a common practice, and pointed out it doesn’t say the material
shall be made available electronically. He stated that the amendment needs to say that. The
resident stated that materials that come in late, or are provided at the meeting, need to be posted.
Anything the Board sees; the residents should see.

Mr. LaRue agreed with Mr. Gundel and stated he planned on bringing the topic up. He
stated it was a travesty that the Board couldn’t provide information to all the residents.

Mr. Case asked Mr. Eckert if the State Legislature had been passed laws that allowed the
Board to amend their rules in such a way. Mr. Eckert clarified that these are the Board’s rules,
and the Board has discretion on how it drafts its rules as long as it is consistent with local, state
and federal laws. Mr. Eckert noted the reason for the change was that many districts were trying
to manage their costs associated with posting documents on the website. The new focus on the
Americans with Disabilities Act has created additional expense relative to the state-mandated
posting of certain documents.

Mr. LaRue asked how it could cost more to put something on the website when they are
already providing it to the Board. Mr. Eckert explained that everything posted on the website has
to be ADA compliant, which means it has to be accessible to visually impaired people. Mr.
Eckert noted when they send the agenda package via email it’s not ADA accessible. He
explained that the more that is placed on the website the greater the cost to the District. The
proposed changes were provided to all 200+ districts his firm represents. Mr. Eckert stated the
Board can approve it or reject it, it’s up to them. He noted they were just trying to find a way to
be efficient with the District’s resources on the issue. Mr. Eckert clarified that just because it’s
not on the website, does not mean it’s not a public record. If George gets a request from anybody
asking for the financial statements, he will send them.

Mr. Flint noted this was an agenda item, and would be more appropriate to discuss at that
time than under the public comment period. Mr. Case stated there is no desire from the board to
keep the residents in the dark. Mr. Case asked for any other public comments on the agenda.

A resident noted she had a terrible issue with the midges and asked that they come to her

house. Mr. Case noted that Clayton, the Field Manager, was going to address the midge problem



September 18,2019 Poinciana West CDD

later in the meeting. He also suggested that the resident speak with Clayton directly after the

meeting to talk about her experiences.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the July 17, 2019
Meeting
Mr. Case presented the minutes of the July 17, 2019 meeting and asked for comments,

questions, or changes. Mr. LaRue asked for an addition to be included in the July 17" minutes.
He asked that the following be added; Mr. LaRue requested that the travel expenses be broken
out separately because they are paying a rate of $310 an hour for the attorney to travel to the
meeting. He also requested to see the legal charges for the last year.

Mr. LaRue noted he got a reply from the attorney directly after the meeting that showed
the Board has on average 2.9 hours per meeting, and they are spending $900 per meeting for the
attorney to drive down and back. Mr. LaRue requested that the full information provided from
Mr. Eckert be put in the meeting minutes.

The information provided by Mr. Eckert has been added to these minutes for reference.

Mr. Flint suggested the Board approve the minutes subject to the addition of Mr. LaRue’s

comments if the Board was amenable.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdewka, seconded by Mr. Case, with Mr.
LaRue and Ms. Gregory being opposed, the Minutes of the July 17,
2019 Meeting were not approved.

Mr. Flint noted that if the minutes were not approved, staff needed to understand why so
they could correct them. Mr. Case clarified that the addition would be incorporated that Mr.
LaRue requested. He asked why there was still opposition to the minutes. Mr. LaRue noted the
minutes could be corrected and they would approve them next month. Mr. Flint stated they
would bring them back.

Ms. Gregory stated that her opposition was because they talk about videotaping and
transcription every month. She stated that there were always simple things left out.

Mr. Flint stated that the minutes are included in the agenda so the Board can review them
and provide feedback. If the Board members see something when they are reviewing, they
shouldn’t wait until the meeting to address it. The Board members can email Mr. Flint and he

can revise the minutes and provide the revised version to the Board. He added that they are



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

happy to make any changes and they would appreciate any feedback from the Board members in
advance of the meeting if they have issues.

Mr. LaRue stated that he has done meeting minutes because he was the Chairman of an
activities committee. He stated if you get somebody off the street to do the meeting minutes it
doesn’t make sense because they have no idea what the background is or what the issues are or
how to phrase what they’re hearing, it doesn’t make sense to them. He stated that having a
transcriptionist type the meetings is not acceptable.

Mr. Case reminded the supervisors that the minutes are summary minutes, not verbatim.
There is a chance to review them prior to the meeting. He asked Mr. Flint if he received any calls
or emails about the minutes. Mr. Flint did not. Mr. Case noted that if there were changes,
recommendations, or revisions the Board members should contact the District Manager.

Mr. LaRue noted that he didn’t feel he should have to make notes to make sure there isn’t
anything dropped. Mr. Case stated that when the supervisors accept the opportunity to serve the
residents of the community, it is incumbent upon them to review the minutes.

After discussion, the Board decided to table the minutes for approval at the next Board

meeting.
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters
A. Discussion of Process of Filling Vacancy in Seat #3 with a Term Ending November
2020

Mr. Flint explained that any time there is a vacancy on the Board during the term of
office, the remaining Board members vote on that replacement. The Board has flexibility in the
process that they use to fill that position. In the past, the Board has chosen to notice the
community through local media. The Board requests letters of interest or resumes. Once those
are received, the individuals have typically been invited to make a statement to the Board. The
Board will deliberate and it will require a majority of the Board to appoint an individual to the
Board. That individual would serve through the end of the term of that seat, which is November
2020.

Mr. Case stated he was satisfied with the process they had used in the past. Mr. LaRue
asked what the timeline was. Mr. Case suggested that the resumes be back for the next meeting
so they could make a decision then. He suggested at least 14 days before the meeting so each

Board member could review the resumes or letters.



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Merger of Poinciana and
Poinciana West CDDs
Mr. Case explained that four years ago the Poinciana and Poinciana West Boards

attempted to merge when they became aware that the HOA was merging their Boards. Mr. Case
and Mr. Zimbardi, who were the two Chairmen of the Boards, met and discussed the topic at
length. They brought information back to both Boards for discussion and both Boards agreed that
would be the best way to serve the community. There was a substantial savings somewhere in
the $50,000 to 60,000 range. The two Boards developed an Interlocal Agreement and both
Boards approved it. The agreement fundamentally stated that in order to merge the two Boards,
the Poinciana West Board would provide two members for the new Board and the Poinciana
Board would provide three Board members. Two Poinciana West CDD Board members at that
time, Bill Brown and Sidney Rosenberg said they would willingly forfeit their seats in order to
make the merger happen. The Poinciana West Board had difficulty narrowing down their
members to three. In the meantime, the Poinciana West Board decided to fill the vacancy on their
Board, and Supervisor Bzdewka was appointed. Ms. Bzdewka agreed that she would willingly
give up her seat on the Board if the Boards were to merge in the future.

Mr. Case noted that they were faced with another vacancy. He suggest that anyone who
applies put that clause in their agreement that if they are appointed they will willingly forfeit
their seat should the Boards merge. Mr. Case asked the Board members who would forfeit their
seat on the Board to make the merge happen. Ms. Gregory stated she thought it was premature to
ask that. Ms. Gregory asked if Ms. Leo’s costs would be cut in half were the Boards to merge,
Ms. Leo answered that the administrative time at meetings would go down. The work in the field
would be the same. Ms. Gregory stated that the Floralawn contract would not go down in price.
Ms. Gregory stated that it was likely that George’s price wouldn’t go down. Mr. Flint explained
their reduction in price would probably be 1/3. He noted they would save money on audits,
noticing, etc. Ms. Gregory had heard it could cost $70,000 to $500,000 to merge the Boards. Ms.
Gregory stated that she would like numbers on paper that reflect what the savings would be.

Mr. Case clarified that they obtained numbers four years ago when the Boards attempted
to merge. Mr. Eckert presented the estimated administrative savings relative to the CDD merger
that would have been done in 2015. It was estimated that each district would save approximately

$25,000 per year. The estimate to go through the merger process was $15,000 filing fee that goes



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

to Polk County and the legal fees were $80,000-$120,000 altogether. Mr. Eckert stated their
estimated return on investment in combining the two Boards was 1.5 to 2.3 years. Mr. Case
noted again this information was four years old.

Mr. Case noted that all the numbers are available, and the Interlocal Agreement is done
and available. Mr. Case asked the Board members if they were willing to save the residents
money in perpetuity.

Ms. Bzdewka stated that she would forfeit her seat if the Boards merged. Mr. LaRue
stated that he would not. He stated that when he was elected he won by a 2-1 margin. Mr. Case
asked Mr. LaRue if he was willing to merge. Mr. LaRue stated they should get a new set of eyes
on the information. He would like an independent person to look at the information and tell them
if the numbers are real or not. He stated he did not trust the numbers provided. He stated that he
had heard it could cost as much as $800,000 to merge. Mr. LaRue recommended that Jan
Carpenter look at the information and give them a realistic number.

Mr. Eckert noted that he had never given an estimate of $800,000. The $80,000 to
$120,000 was based on the last two mergers his office had done with CDD’s. Mr. Case agreed
that Jan should look at the numbers.

Mr. Case brought up the mandate that Mr. LaRue had previously discussed. Mr. LaRue
noted that there has been no cooperation from the developer. Mr. LaRue stated there is also a
lawsuit pending that if it goes their way, is going to provide a significant amount of money.

Mr. Case clarified that he and Ms. Bzdewka would both forfeit their seats to make the
merger happen, and they were both for the merger. He stated that he was for saving the residents

money.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Revised Rules of Procedure
and Setting a Public Hearing
Mr. Eckert reminded the Board that these are the Board’s Rules of Procedure. Mr.

Eckert’s firm prepares the rules based on feedback from multiple districts. Each district has a
choice to adopt or not adopt a change to the rules, unless it is something required by law.
Regarding meeting materials, the Board can keep the rules the same but they will need to discuss
whether there is an additional cost. Mr. Eckert noted they provided a memo that summarized the
different updates to the rules. The revised rules also include language that if you don’t pay your

outstanding balance for public records requests, the District does not have to incur additional



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

costs responding to future requests. The state is changing the financial disclosure system that the
Board members have to file when they are elected, and annually. They are converting it over the
next 2 to 3 years to an electronic system. Instead of being coordinated by the Supervisor of
Elections of the county in which the District is located, it will be run by the Commission on
Ethics out of Tallahassee. It is intended to make things easier and more accessible to the public.
The Districts will have to designate a Financial Disclosure Coordinator and put something in the
rules dealing with updates to email addresses. Mr. Eckert explained the flexibility for Board
authorization, there are different procedures other than a motion and vote to give authorization.
All the Board members can say they are in favor of something to give Board authorization. The
statutes say that any discussion about security or fire safety must be done outside of the public
meeting. For procedures regarding auditor selection, there is a new statute that says at least one
Board member has to be on the Audit Committee. That Board member has to then be the Chair
of the Audit Committee. For contract periods, he stated there was a three-year limit. Mr. Eckert
noted they raised that to five years. The Board can prequalify contractors if they choose to now.
He noted all the Board is doing today is approving the setting of a public hearing. The rules will
not go into effect until the Board has that hearing, takes public comment, makes any changes the
Board chooses, and then adopts the rules.

Mr. Eckert asked for any comments or questions on the rules. Ms. Gregory inquired
about page 33, under b, and she asked why they would take out “understanding of scope.” Mr.
Eckert explained that the reason they are suggesting taking it out is because it’s not required by
statute. However, the rules allow the Board to include that as a criteria if they choose to. Mr.
LaRue stated he believed they should include it, if they can’t understand the scope of work they
don’t have business doing the work. Mr. Eckert noted that when they send out the audit notices,
they get the same four or five audit companies every time. Those companies have done hundreds
of CDD audits, they understand the scope of work. Mr. Flint stated that when the Board appoints
the Audit Committee, the Board will approve the selection criteria. The Board will have the
option of including or excluding price as a criteria. He explained the standard criteria he would
bring to the Board’s consideration would include understanding of scope, the Board can include
it as a requirement or not. The Board collectively agreed to leave understanding of scope in the

Rules of Procedure.



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

Mr. LaRue brought up Rule 1.3(3) and asked that it be modified. He stated they should
provide a full packet of information to the public so they can be informed. Mr. Case stated that in
his years on the Board, no Supervisor has tried to keep any information from the public. He
suggested that the rule change would give the Board flexibility. Everything would still be public
record. Mr. LaRue stated that he wanted the residents to know what is going on, and asked that
the following sentences be removed from the rule:

Meeting materials shall be defined as, and limited to, the agenda, meeting minutes,

resolutions, and agreements of the District that District staff deems necessary for Board

approval. Inclusion of additional materials for Board consideration other than those
defined herein as “meeting materials” shall not convert such materials into “meeting
materials.”

Mr. Case told Mr. Eckert to take the sentences out. He asked the Board members if they
had any other changes. The Board had none.

Resident Mr. Gundel suggested adding “the additional materials may be added or
provided under separate cover at the meeting, and they will be provided electronically.” Mr. Flint
noted that they could do that, but if it is included in the rules and he gets a document right before
the meeting and he cannot get it posted, then he would be in violation of the rules. Mr. Flint
explained that the Board could provide direction that they desire to do that, but he suggested not
having it in the rules. Mr. LaRue suggested saying that there will be times when information is
not available until after the seven days, and it will be provided electronically as soon as possible.
Mr. Eckert stated that he would add the language to the rules.

The Board discussed the meeting date for the public hearing. Mr. Case noted that some
Board members will likely be gone or busy during Thanksgiving week. He suggested moving the
meeting to the first Wednesday in December. The Board agreed to move the meeting and set the
public hearing for December 4, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. Mr. Flint noted that he would check to see if

their current location would be available for that date.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdewka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all
in favor, Setting the Public Hearing on Revised Rules of Procedure
for December 4, 2019 at 9:30 a.m., was approved.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion  of  Videotaping Board
Meetings



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

Mr. Flint reminded the Board that the request at the last meeting was that staff find out
who used to tape the meetings. He reached out to Sheri with Evergreen. In the past Evergreen
was recording the joint meetings. They agreed to video the meetings if the Board desired, and
there would be a $100 charge per meeting to do that. Mr. Flint asked if both Boards met
consecutively if it would still be $100 or $200, and Evergreen stated it would be $100.
Therefore, the cost to each Board would be $50 per meeting when the Boards meet on the same
day.

Mr. Flint brought up the issue that if the Board is paying for the video, in effect it
becomes the CDD’s video. If it is the CDD’s video then ADA compliance becomes a factor and
the video will need to be closed captioned and there is a cost for that. If it’s a third party
videotaping the meeting, and posted on a third party website, then it’s not the CDD’s video and
the ADA requirements don’t come into play.

Mr. LaRue stated that it is their video only if they specify that in the agreement. Mr.
Eckert stated that if the Board is going to be involved in arranging for it, paying for it, etc. it will
likely be a public record, and will be something that may need to be made accessible. In the past,
the District has not been involved with videotaping. Mr. LaRue inquired about a volunteer that
would video and put the recording on the tv channel. Ms. Gregory stated they don’t want to own
a video, they want to live stream it on Channel 732. Ms. Gregory asked who the $100 would go
to, Mr. Flint assumed the payment was going to Lifestyles, either Evergreen or the HOA
possibly. He did not know, he was just told that was the fee.

Mr. Case asked if Craig was able to and willing to recover that as a benefit for the HOA,
would that work. Mr. Eckert stated that if the HOA felt they should do that as a service to their
members, that was fine. Mr. Case noted that he would talk to Craig about that. Mr. Flint noted

that he would be happy to provide the email with cost information to the Chairman.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Landscape Maintenance
Agreement with Floralawn Landscape
Mr. Flint noted the current agreement with Floralawn expires at the end of September.

District Counsel provided the Board with a redlined version. Mr. Flint explained the contract
would extend 12 months with this agreement, and the numbers were the same. There are only
two ponds left, 19A and 19B. If 19A and 19B are ready to be turned over to the District between

now and the end of this contract, the developer would catry those expenses until the CDD adopts



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

the fiscal year 2021 budget to incorporate those. Mr. Eckert noted a change, it is only a one-year
agreement but there is an option for two annual renewals.

Mr. LaRue stated it appeared the CDD was piggybacking onto the residential landscape
maintenance service contract, he asked when the HOA contract for residential landscape
maintenance expires. If they change services, he noted they would want to attach with that. Mr.
Eckert stated it was originally set up to coincide with the HOA’s contract in terms of timing. He
noted that every contract he gives to the Board has a 30-day termination provision without cause.
Mr. LaRue stated the contract does not have a scope of work. He stated if he gave the contract to
someone with a mower and told them to fulfill the contract, there is no scope of work. He stated
there is only a map from 2013, so it doesn’t have the ponds included since then. He stated it
needs to be cleaned up, there needs to be a scope of work. He stated that they should list each of
the ponds they are supposed to mow, and a rough description of the fact that they are mowing
from the waterline to the resident’s property.

Mr. Flint noted there is a detailed scope of work in the contract. He stated that Mr. LaRue
was referring to the definition of the areas to be maintained. Mr. Flint clarified that Mr. LaRue
was wanting a map defining in better detail the areas that are being maintained. Mr. Eckert
suggested approving the agreement subject to the changes suggested by Supervisor LaRue. He

suggested giving Mr. LaRue final signoff on the form of the document.

On MOTION by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Mr. LaRue, with all in
favor, the Landscape Maintenance Agreement with Floralawn
Landscape Subject to Changes Requested by Mr. LaRue, was
approved subject to final review and approval by Supervisor LaRue.

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals for Stocking
Pond 6 with Fish
Mr. Flint noted that at the last meeting it was requested that staff get a price to stock Pond

6. Clayton reached out to the fishery they have used previously. He stated that right now it is too
hot and December is likely the ideal time to introduce the fish to have maximum survivability of
the fish. The cost to stock the pond is less than $200. The price is an issue because the fisheries
have minimums for delivery. Mr. Flint noted they have a $1,000 minimum for delivering the
fish, but they would work with Clarke to figure that out.

Mr. LaRue suggested they put fish in the other ponds if they needed to get more fish. Mr.
Flint noted the Board could vote to approve $1,000 and they could buy fish and put them in

10



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

different ponds. Mr. Flint noted they usually stock ponds based on a certain number of fish per
acre, and staff would work with Clarke to develop a plan as to how the ponds would be stocked.

There was Board consensus on the item.

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports

A. Attorney

Mr. Eckert noted that there is a pending motion to tax costs related the bond validation
litigation. The District served discovery timely on the motion and we have not received
responses. It was delayed until hearings could be set for early in September. Before the hearing
was to take place, Mr. Eckert received an offer that they would provide discovery responses so
the hearing was cancelled. Mr. Eckert stated that they received discovery responses and he sent
them to the Board yesterday. The responses were insufficient, so they are looking into that issue.

Mr. Eckert stated a motion was filed by the other party to amend their costs to include
costs such as attending CDD meetings, public requests, and some other things. They are now
seeking an additional $8,000. He stated he would keep the Board updated. Mr. Eckert stated his
firm has reached the not to exceed amount of $10,000 for legal fees that they agreed to so the
Board is not incurring additional attorney’s fees associated with this.

Mr. Eckert discussed the issue of minutes. Based on being someone who has litigated
cases, he suggested the Board continue with summary minutes versus asking someone who is not
a trained court reporter to do a verbatim transcript. He noted if they wanted a verbatim transcript,
they should hire a court reporter. He advised the Board not have a verbatim transcript because
there is a lot of dialogue at their meetings, the Board debates issues back and forth. Mr. Eckert
noted that statements can be taken out of context if you change your mind about an issue. Cities,
counties, local governments all do summary minutes. He suggested from a liability standpoint,
that the Board continue with summary minutes. Mr. Case stated that was not a new
recommendation from their attorney, and Mr. Eckert noted that had been his recommendation for
nearly 25 years.

Mr. Case mentioned that Mr. Eckert had been a popular topic at the last few meetings.
Mr. Case stated that Poinciana West’s attorney is 18% less than the Poinciana attorney in his
hourly fees. Mr. Case noted he had been very satisfied with Mr. Eckert’s work for the CDD and

stated there had not been a rate increase in a long time.

11



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

Mr. LaRue stated at 18% less, by the time you add travel fees they are still way over what
the other attorney charges. He stated that Mr. Eckert has offered to consult via phone call and he
suggested the Board do that. Mr. Case asked Mr. Eckert how many CDDs does he attend via
phone only. Mr. Eckert noted that there are no CDDs he does only via phone, but there are a few
CDDs that he will attend meetings in person 2 or 3 times a year and then the rest of the meetings
he calls in. Mr. Eckert expressed his concern that if he attended meetings by phone, he wouldn’t
be able to hear anything. Mr. LaRue stated that supposedly the technology in the Ballroom had
been improved. He suggested trying the phone out and if it works he moved that Mr. Eckert
attend the next meeting via phone. Mr. Case stated Mr. Eckert will not attend the next meeting
via phone. Mr. Case noted that members have tried to attend via phone, but they can’t hear. Mr.
Case stated he wants their attorney at the meeting to see what’s going on if he’s going to offer
opinions. Mr. Case noted if there is an individual meeting and there’s nothing relevant, they can
discuss Mr. Eckert attending via phone. Mr. LaRue suggested looking at the phone to see if it

works.

B. Engineer

Ms. Leo noted they have been busy helping and supporting the maintenance team. An
item was brought up with the Poinciana CDD that she wanted to bring to the Board’s attention.
Polk County is doing an expansion on Cypress Parkway and Marigold. They awarded that to an
engineer at their August County Commission meeting. There will be an alignment study first.
She noted as they learn more, they will keep the Board updated. Mr. LaRue asked if the
expansion goes through the Parkway east or also west. Ms. Leo explained the expansion is
Marigold from Cypress Parkway to Palmetto and Cypress Parkway from Solivita Boulevard west

to Solivita Boulevard east.

C. District Manager
i. Approval of Check Register
Mr. Flint presented the Check Register, for the General Fund and Payroll from July 1%
through September 11%, totaling $78,816.55. Mr. Flint asked for any questions. Ms. Gregory
asked about the expense in August for “Copies” totaling $142.35 but the expense in September
was $34.05. She asked why there was such a large bill in August. Mr. Flint explained if he had

time to prepare, he can provide a better answer. He noted the charge will vary from time to time

12



September 18,2019 Poinciana West CDD

because they have to provide a Record of Proceedings. He explained those don’t always get done
1/12 a month, and they still have to be in hard copies. That could be the reason for the spike in
that month, the reproduction of the Record of Proceedings.

Ms. Gregory addressed Counsel and noted they had three invoices, one from September,
October, and December. The invoices were pulled out of the check register in May and in July
the minutes were amended to reflect that those three invoices were pulled out because they
pertained to the amenity sale. Now the three invoices are back on the check register. Mr. Eckert
noted that the invoices were not related to the amenity sale, that was incorrect. Mr. Eckert
explained he had the list of invoices that were in the agenda package. He presented an invoice for
$744 for General Counsel, an invoice for $2,923 for General Counsel, and an invoice for
September for $2,890.50 for project construction. There’s another invoice for October project
construction for $245 and a December project construction for $496.50. Mr. Eckert explained the
reason they have the separate matters is so George can track them and provide them to the
Developer for reimbursement because they have a Funding Agreement. That’s how they make
sure the District gets reimbursement for District Counsel’s time relative to pond conveyances so
the residents are not paying for services dealing with the pond conveyances. Ultimately, it’s a
reimbursable from the Developer. Mr. Flint explained that the invoices labeled project
construction were being held pending receiving funds from Taylor Morrison, which they had
received. Mr. Flint noted the settlement agreement with Poinciana and Taylor Morrison, not
related to project construction, but related to amenity costs was approved and they wired the
funds. At the same time they paid the project construction funding requests that were
outstanding. He stated they were not related to the amenity sale, but Taylor Morrison was
holding paying both project construction and amenity costs. The funds were wired the prior
week. Ms. Gregory stated they were originally in the main packet, and they pulled them because
they knew about the funding agreement. Ms. Gregory was glad Taylor Morrison had paid, but
she asked that she receive an email or something that says they have paid. Mr. Flint stated he
would be happy to do that.

Ms. Gregory asked Mr. Eckert to give her a summary of the research on Amendment 12
of Chapter 112. Mr. Eckert noted that the amendment was adopted in November 2018. It
basically says that no public official or public employee can abuse their position to obtain a

disproportionate benefit for them, their family members, their business, or any business they do

13



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

business with. Mr. Eckert gave an example, if the CDD wanted to lease a cell tower site to
Verizon and a Board member has an individual Verizon phone contract it could give rise to a
claim of a violation. Mr. Eckert’s office has monitored the Amendment 12 implementation, and
it is being implemented in two different places. It is implemented through the Commission on
Ethics. The Commission on Ethics had to define what disproportionate benefit means. In
addition, they had to define what the intent standard is. The original standard suggested by the
Commission on Ethics was that you took an act knowingly, no wrongful intent or bad intent, but
you knowingly took an act. The Commission on Ethics, after two or three hearings, finally
decided an act has to have wrongful intent, you have to intend you are going to improperly get a
disproportional benefit. Mr. Eckert explained the Commission on Ethics is going to be dealing
with situations like the cell tower. The second step is legislature that describes penalties and

clarifications. That will happen in the legislative session that starts in January.

On MOTION by Ms. Bzdewka, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all
in favor, the Check Register for July 1% through September 11t
totaling $78,816.55, was approved.

i Balance Sheet and Income Statement

Mr. Flint presented the Unaudited Financial Statements through August 31%. He stated
they are over 100% collected on the On Roll Assessments. The expenses are well under the
prorated amount for the year at $264,000 against $342,000. The IT line item on a prorated basis
is over, that’s due to the agreement with VGlobalTech to modify the website to be ADA
compliant. Ms. Gregory inquired about the debt services breakout. She asked George to explain
the $40,000 worth of ‘Special Calls.” Mr. Flint explained those are prepayments, if someone
chooses to prepay the remaining debt on their property. Mr. Flint noted they are treated as
Special Calls and are paid to the bondholders on May 1 or November 1. Ms. Gregory thanked

George for explaining that. Mr. Case asked for any other questions, the Board had none.

On MOTION by Mr. LaRue, seconded by Ms. Gregory, with all in
favor, the Balance Sheet and Income Statement through August
318, were approved.

D. Field Manager
i. Field Manager’s Report

14



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

Mr. Smith presented the field report. The Pond 16 MES Erosion Repair is going in and
should be completed by September 20" and will be the final item for the fiscal year. He noted
they have the dredgesox installed and filled, the sod should be going in after that. There was a
minor delay due to the hurricane. Mr. Smith explained that the ponds are being retreated for

hydrilla by the aquatic contractor, and he presented Clarke’s treatment reports.

ii, Customer Complaint Log
Mr. Smith presented the Complaint Log and noted that all complaints have been looked

at and addressed.

Mr. LaRue asked about the Truck and ATV table, specifically why Pond 6 was not
treated. Mr. Flint noted that the table was through the end of July. Mr. Smith noted that it should
be on there, he would have Clarke look into it. Mr. LaRue asked that a written description of
each of the treatments be provided. He explained that he did not understand what the acronyms
stand for on the table. Mr. Deglomine stated he would add a footnote or key at the bottom. Mr.
LaRue stressed that Pond 6, out of all the ponds in the last three months, has had the most
problems with midges. He stated that he would be very disappointed if Pond 6 is not getting the
treatments the other ponds are getting. Mr. Flint stated they would check on it, and noted the
larvicide treatment takes time to get in cycle with the hatching cycle. He noted in Poinciana they
saw that, it took a year or more to match up the cycles. Mr. Deglomine agreed it can take time,
but he was under the impression they were treating it.

Ms. Rochelle Quinn stated when they spray at her house, there is no improvement. She
bought Bug-B-Gon and there haven’t been midges since she sprayed that around her house. Mr.
Deglomine explained they are spraying a huge area. If you spray the midges directly it will kill
them. He noted the larvicide treatments take time to stop them from hatching. He explained the
pond there is very challenging because of the environment, it is close to the wetlands, but they
are doing everything they can. Mr. LaRue stated that spraying the residents house didn’t work at
all, and the resident is offering a solution and a product that works. Mr. Deglomine noted that
product is an over the counter product, and there is a number of them that they spray on top of
the midges. He explained you can’t compare directly spraying midges to covering a whole pond.

Mr. Case asked if Mr. Deglomine was precluded from using that product under Florida
laws. Mr. Deglomine stated they could not put that product in their machines to use. Mr. LaRue

asked if someone could come out and use a can like Ms. Quinn did. Mr. Deglomine stated they

15



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

cannot spray each house with a can individually. Mr. LaRue stated if they do a complimentary
spray, they might as well use a product that’s effective. Mr. Deglomine noted that he would look
into it. He stated they have received feedback that their spray does work. He noted he would get

with the operation personnel to see if they were willing to suggest another product.

TWELTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Request

Mr. Case asked for any Supervisor’s Requests. The Board had no requests.

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS General Audience Comments

Ms. Susan Godlewski (658 Irvine Ranch Rd) noted that the resident who volunteered to
video tape the Poinciana CDD in the past became ill, which is why he stopped videotaping. She
noted he has since sold his home and he moved to California. She stated the Solivita HOA, on
their website, has a section for a calendar on their rooms that shows availability. She informed
the Board the December 4™ date is not available for the Ballroom.

Resident (Unidentified) stated the pond at the west gate is awful. Mr. Flint noted that
pond has a hydrilla issue. It has been treated before. Mr. Flint explained when you treat hydrilla
and it dies, it spurs an algae bloom. Mr. Deglomine stated they did the treatments but they didn’t
work. They went back to the manufacturer of the product and then they retreated the pond with
another product. He stated that they are aware of it and they are working very hard on that pond
to make sure it clears up. He noted in the next three weeks it should look better.

Resident (Unidentified) brought back discussion about the Boards combining. The
resident noted that the Board never came to a conclusion. He suggested the Board pass a
resolution that states the Board members positions on merging the Boards. The resident
acknowledged that some of the Board had problems with the financial aspects, but he suggested
all four members agree that they would combine with the caveat that there would have to be
some kind of financial savings in the findings. Mr. Case stated that he and Ms. Bzdewka were for
the merge, Ms. Gregory was willing to merge subject to looking at the numbers, but Mr. LaRue
said he was not sure the numbers would be there. Mr. LaRue stated that the Board needs to get
an independent view of this. He suggested asking Jan Carpenter to put together an estimate of
what the real savings are, what the real costs are, and have her look at how the bonds combine.
Ms. Bzdewka agreed that a resolution was a good idea. She suggested that the resolution state the

Board is going to explore, with the other Board, the merger pending the financial findings. Mr.

16



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

LaRue stated that if the savings are there he has no problem with combining. Ms. Bzdewka asked
if he had a problem with doing the resolution. Mr. LaRue stated he did not have a problem with
the resolution as long as it includes that they will look into a new view of the finances and they

will find out the real cost.

On MOTION by Mr. Case, seconded by Ms. Bzdewka, with all in
favor, Willingness of the Board to Explore the Merger in Detail if
all the Board Members are Satisfied with the Financial Costs and
Savings, was approved.

Mr. Gundel stated that the existing surface water ponds, Poinciana and Poinciana West,
have separate bonds, separate payments amounts, etc. Merging would not change that. Mr.
Eckert noted that they would be treated as separate assessment areas within the same District.
There would be no impact on who pays what for the ponds, regarding the debt service. In terms
of operation and maintenance expenses, if there is a merged Board they would have one budget,
one general fund, and the O&M expenses would be split between all the people who are in the
now merged District. Mr. Flint explained that on the O&M side, all the ponds and contracts will
be put together and everyone assessed the same amount.

Mr. Eckert explained that the debt assessment will not change. The O&M assessment,
they would have a larger cost and they would have a larger amount to split those costs between.
They anticipate the overall cost of the O&M amount would go down based on the other mergers

they’ve done.

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business

There being none, the next item followed.

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Date — December 4, 2019
Mr. Flint noted that the December 4™ meeting will not be held in the Ballroom. The

meeting will likely be held in Mosaics.

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

17



September 18, 2019 Poinciana West CDD

On MOTION by Ms. Gregory, seconded by Ms. Bzdewka, with all
in favor, the meeting was adjourned.

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman

18



From:
Subiject:
Date:
To:

George Flint gflint@gmscfl.com &

Fwd: Poinciana West CDD

November 26, 2019 at 12:07 PM

Stacie Vanderbilt svanderbilt@gmscfl.com

Begin forwarded message:

From: Michael Eckert <MichaelE@hgslaw.com>

Subject: Poinciana West CDD

Date: July 19, 2019 at 2:29:32 PM EDT

To: "Charles W. Case Ill (candfcase@aol.com)" <candfcase@acl.com>, Shirley Bzdewka
<sbzdewka®@cfl.rr.com>, Roy LaRue <rdlarue@shcglobal.net>, P Gregory <thegolflady@sbcglobal.net>
Cc: "George S. Flint (gilint@gmscfl.com)" <gflint@®gmscfl.com>, Sarah Sandy <SarahS@hgslaw.com>

BOARD MEMBERS: PLEASE DO NOT “REPLY ALL” TO THIS MESSAGE.
Dear Supervisors:

To follow up on the request made by Supervisor LaRue at Wednesday’s board meeting,
please see attached. Asrequested, the last year of general counsel invoices was reviewed
and is represented in the attached chart. There will be no charge from our firm for this
research. Please note that per Supervisor LaRue’s request, future invoices will have a
separate entry for travel time.

We certainly understand the role of board members to prudently spend the District’s funds.
We believe both our depth of understanding of the special district practice area and our
historical knowledge of Solivita and the Poinciana West Community Development District
save the District money, even taking into account shared or marked-down fees for travel.

If Board would prefer that we attend future board meetings by telephone, we are happy to
do so.

We would suggest we appear in person anytime there is a controversial matter or when the
Board is levying assessments, but ultimately that will be a board decision. The only
mandatory in person attendance from our perspective is if the Board is undertaking public
financing efforts and our firm is expected to provide an opinion at bond closing that all
Florida laws were followed in the issuance of the bonds and the levy of special assessments.
Please note that when Board members or staff have attempted to participate in meetings by
phone in the past, especially in the ballroom, it has been impossible to hear and provide
meaningful input and guidance. Hopefully that could be remedied before we are asked to
appear by telephone.

Thank you and have a nice weekend.
Mike
Michael C. Eckert

Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.



119 South Monioe Street, Suite 300
Talishassee, FL 32301

850.222.7500 | hgslaw.com | http://hgslaw.com/attorney/michael-c-eckert

Notice: The information contained in this e-mail message is Attorney/Client Privileged and
confidential information intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above.
If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you
have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by telephone at
(850) 222-7500 and delete the original message. Thank you.

teeting Date Traeel Time Rolied  Travel Time
i o PWLDD Weitten off by
I — | HGS tnor billed)
 dune 0, TR 29 |
! July 18, 3018 28 ' ‘
Aupust 15,2018 119 o .
fﬁgpm@gg 53018 |28% -
I'November 28, 2018 | 4.1° :
[anuary 16,2008 (21 EY j
| March 18, 2019 (33 11 '
[May7.2019 142 50
[y 17,208 " " {30

* Off-cycle meeting dates {not in sceordance with regular mesting schedule of tha thurd Wednesday of
axch month whon travel time i3 preaceanged (o be shared with multiple chenty)

Notes

¥ Onaverage, it takes 9 hours to deive {0 Sotivita from Tallahisssee and back,

. According 1o intefnet rmapping programs, i takes approzimately 2.7-3.0 hours to travel from
downrtown Ortande to Solnata and hack, depending on the tme of day It takes spproximately
3.3-3.5 bours to travel from downtown Tampa to Solivita and back, depending on the time of
day,



SECTION VI



SECTION A



RESOLUTION 2020-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
THE POINCIANA WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT ADOPTING AMENDED AND RESTATED
RULES OF PROCEDURE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Poinciana West Community Development District (“District™) is a local
unit of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida
Statutes, being situated in the Polk County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt amended and
restated rules to govern the administration of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that it is in the best interests of the District
to adopt by resolution the Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure attached hereto as Exhibit
A for immediate use and application, and to replace those Rules of Procedure previously adopted
by the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has complied with applicable Florida law
concerning rule development and adoption.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF THE POINCIANA WEST COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:

SECTION 1. The attached Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure are hereby
adopted. These Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure shall stay in full force and effect until
such time as the Board of Supervisors may amend these rules in accordance with Chapter 190,
Florida Statutes, and shall replace and supersede any previously adopted Rules of Procedure.

SECTION 2. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in
effect unless rescinded or repealed.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4% day of December, 2019.

ATTEST: POINCIANA WEST COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Print Name: Chair/Vice Chair -

Secretary/Assistant Secretary

Exhibit A:  Rules of Procedure



AMENDED AND RESTATED
RULES OF PROCEDURE
POINCIANA WEST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

EFFECTIVE AS OF , 2019
TABLE OF CONTENTS
RUIE 1.0 GENETAL ..ottt ettt sese st sersesessne st seseen e e s emse e ssee s ssseens e 2
Rule 1.1 Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting. ........c.c.ceoeevvvvrvveeeseeesrerernnns 3
Rule 1.2 District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies;
Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination. ........ 7
Rule 1.3 Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops. .........c..ccovvvereeeveeeseeeeenns 10
Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse.............ccovennnnn. 15
Rule 2.0 Rulemaking ProCEEAINGS. .......ccecevuerererirerreeritevenniseesiessnssessteeeessnsnesesesesessessssssssees 16
Rule 3.0 Competitive PUICRASE. .........ccoomimiereerrenrsisensiesnsssssesese st s s seeeeesssesssss s e 22
Rule 3.1 Procedure Under the Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act............ 27
Rule 3.2 Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection. ............cceeeeeeeeevnrieecereeereseenennn. 31
Rule 3.3 Purchase of INSUTance. ...........cocevcemmmrrneiesisrenereee e et eeenne
Rule 3.4 Pre-qualification..........cccoiiiiincener e et nes
Rule 3.5 Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build. ............ccoveeeeeeerenrreenen,
Rule 3.6 Construction Contracts, Design-Build. ...........ccoccovveeemeemreereiannn,
Rule 3.7 Payment and Performance Bonds. ...........ccooeveeeevvvineeeeseeeeeseeerseenns
Rule 3.8 Goods, Supplies, and Materials. ..........cccceveveeerrmeeeereeeeeeeeeeoeeessesessns
Rule 3.9 Maintenance SETVICES. ......ceururrmrercrererencsnnreersesiseseesesesssssssnssssssane
Rule 3.10 Contractizal SEIVICES. .....ccccorrereurrrererirrerrereeseeesessisessaeeemeeessresssessssenns
Rule 3.11 Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5,
3.6,3.8,and 3.9.......ccriiecce et st
Rule 4.0  EffeCtive Date. ........ccoceeerrniennrrnceeniinesiseseteeesen e esesessssssssesse s sasseseenssssanssenas



Rule 1.0

)

)

€)

)

General.

The Poinciana West Community Development District (the “District”) was
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and was
established to provide for the ownership, operation, maintenance, and provision of
various capital facilities and services within its jurisdiction. The purpose of these
rules (the “Rules”) is to describe the general operations of the District.

Definitions located within any section of these Rules shall be applicable within all
other sections, unless specifically stated to the contrary.

Unless specifically permitted by a written agreement with the District, the District
does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or facsimile transmission.
Filings are only accepted during normal business hours.

A Rule of the District shall be effective upon adoption by affirmative vote of the
District Board. After a Rule becomes effective, it may be repealed or amended
only through the rulemaking procedures specified in these Rules.
Notwithstanding, the District may immediately suspend the application of a Rule
if the District determines that the Rule conflicts with Florida law. In the event
that a Rule conflicts with Florida law and its application has not been suspended
by the District, such Rule should be interpreted in the manner that best effectuates
the intent of the Rule while also complying with Florida law. If the intent of the
Rule absolutely cannot be effectuated while complying with Florida law, the Rule
shall be automatically suspended.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.



Rule 1.1

M

@

Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting.

Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) shall
consist of five (5) members. Members of the Board (“Supervisors”) appointed by
ordinance or rule or elected by landowners must be citizens of the United States
of America and residents of the State of Florida. Supervisors elected or appointed
by the Board to elector seats must be citizens of the United States of America,
residents of the State of Florida and of the District and registered to vote with the
Supervisor of Elections of the county in which the District is located and for those
elected, shall also be qualified to run by the Supervisor of Elections. The Board
shall exercise the powers granted to the District under Florida law.

(a) Supervisors shall hold office for the term specified by Section 190.006 of
the Florida Statutes. If, during the term of office, any Board member(s)
vacates their office, the remaining member(s) of the Board shall fill the
vacancies by appointment for the remainder of the term(s). If three or
more vacancies exist at the same time, a quorum, as defined herein, shall
not be required to appoint replacement Board members.

(b)  Three (3) members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the purposes
of conducting business, exercising powers and all other purposes. A
Board member shall be counted toward the quorum if physically present at
the meeting, regardless of whether such Board member is prohibited from,
or abstains from, participating in discussion or voting on a particular item.

(c) Action taken by the Board shall be upon a majority vote of the members
present, unless otherwise provided in the Rules or required by law.
Subject to Rule 1.3(10), a Board member participating in the Board
meeting by teleconference or videoconference shall be entitled to vote and
take all other action as though physically present.

(d  Unless otherwise provided for by an act of the Board, any one Board
member may attend a mediation session on behalf of the Board. Any
agreement resulting from such mediation session must be approved
pursuant to subsection (1)(c) of this Rule.

Officers. At the first Board meeting held after each election where the newly
elected members take office, the Board shall select a Chairperson, Vice-
Chairperson, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, and Treasurer.

(a) The Chairperson must be a member of the Board. If the Chairperson
resigns from that office or ceases to be a member of the Board, the Board
shall select a Chairperson. The Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the
Board. The Chairperson shall be authorized to execute resolutions and
contracts on the District’s behalf. The Chairperson shall convene and
conduct all meetings of the Board. In the event the Chairperson is unable



(b

(©)

(@

(e)

to attend a meeting, the Vice-Chairperson shall convene and conduct the
meeting. The Chairperson or Vice-Chaitperson may delegate the
responsibility of conducting the meeting to the District’s manager
(“District Manager™) or District Counsel, in whole or in part.

The Vice-Chairperson shall be a member of the Board and shall have such
duties and responsibilities as specifically designated by the Board from
time to time. The Vice-Chairperson has the authority to execute
resolutions and contracts on the District’s behalf in the absence of the
Chairperson. If the Vice-Chairperson resigns from office or ceases to be a
member of the Board, the Board shall select a Vice-Chairperson. The
Vice-Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the Board.

The Secretary of the Board serves at the pleasure of the Board and need
not be a member of the Board. The Secretary shall be responsible for
maintaining the minutes of Board meetings and may have other duties
assigned by the Board from time to time. An employee of the District
Manager may serve as Secretary. The Secretary shall be bonded by a
reputable and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one
million dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee
theft insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of
one million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional
insured.

The Treasurer need not be a member of the Board but must be a resident
of the State of Florida. The Treasurer shall perform duties described in
Section 190.007(2) and (3) of the Florida Statutes, as well as those
assigned by the Board from time to time. The Treasurer shall serve at the
pleasure of the Board. The Treasurer shall either be bonded by a reputable
and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one million
dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee theft
insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of one
million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional
insured.

In the event that both the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson are absent
from a Board meeting and a quorum is present, the Board may designate
one of its members or a member of District staff to convene and conduct
the meeting. In such circumstances, any of the Board members present are
authorized to execute agreements, resolutions, and other documents
approved by the Board at such meeting. In the event that the Chairperson
and Vice-Chairperson are both unavailable to execute a document
previously approved by the Board, the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary may execute such document.



€)

@

€)

(6)

63)] The Board may assign additional duties to District officers from time to
time, which include, but are not limited to, executing documents on behalf
of the District.

(8)  The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and any other person authorized by
District Resolution may sign checks and warrants for the District,
countersigned by the Treasurer or other persons authorized by the Board.

Committees. The Board may establish committees of the Board, either on a
permanent or temporary basis, to perform specifically designated functions.
Committees may include individuals who are not members of the Board. Such
functions may include, but are not limited to, review of bids, proposals, and
qualifications, contract negotiations, personnel matters, and budget preparation.

Record Book. The Board shall keep a permanent record book entitled “Record of
Proceedings,” in which shall be recorded minutes of all meetings, resolutions,
proceedings, certificates, and corporate acts. The Records of Proceedings shall be
located at a District office and shall be available for inspection by the public.

Meetings. For each fiscal year, the Board shall establish a schedule of regular
meetings, which shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
county in which the District is located and filed with the local general-purpose
governments within whose boundaries the District is located. All meetings of the
Board and Committees serving an advisory function shall be open to the public in
accord with the provisions of Chapter 286 of the Florida Statutes.

Voting Conflict of Interest. The Board shall comply with Section 112.3143 of the
Florida Statutes, so as to ensure the proper disclosure of conflicts of interest on
matters coming before the Board for a vote. For the purposes of this section,
"voting conflict of interest" shall be governed by the Florida Constitution and
Chapters 112 and 190 of the Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time.
Generally, a voting conflict exists when a Board member is called upon to vote on
an item which would inure to the Board member’s special private gain or loss or
the Board member knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of a
principal by whom the Board member is retained, the parent organization or
subsidiary of a corporate principal, a business associate, or a relative including
only a father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-law,
mother-in-law, son-in-law, and daughter-in-law.

(a) When a Board member knows the member has a conflict of interest on a
matter coming before the Board, the member should notify the Board’s
Secretary prior to participating in any discussion with the Board on the
matter. The member shall publicly announce the conflict of interest at the
meeting. This announcement shall appear in the minutes.



If the Board member was elected at a landowner’s election or appointed to
fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election, the Board
member may vote or abstain from voting on the matter at issue. If the
Board member was elected by electors residing within the District, the
Board member is prohibited from voting on the matter at issue. In the
event that the Board member intends to abstain or is prohibited from
voting, such Board member shall not participate in the discussion on the
item subject to the vote.

The Board’s Secretary shall prepare a Memorandum of Voting Conflict
(Form 8B) which shall then be signed by the Board member, filed with the
Board’s Secretary, and provided for attachment to the minutes of the
meeting within fifteen (15) days of the meeting,

(b)  If a Board member inadvertently votes on a matter and later learns he or
she has a conflict on the matter, the member shall immediately notify the
Board’s Secretary. Within fifteen (15) days of the notification, the member
shall file the appropriate Memorandum of Voting Conflict, which will be
attached to the minutes of the Board meeting during which the vote on the
matter occurred. The Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall immediately
be provided to other Board members and shall be read publicly at the next
meeting held subsequent to the filing of the Memorandum of Voting
Conflict. The Board member’s vote is unaffected by this filing.

(c) It is not a conflict of interest for a Board member, the District Manager, or
an employee of the District to be a stockholder, officer or employee of a
landowner or of an entity affiliated with a landowner.

(d)  In the event that a Board member elected at a landowner’s election or
appointed to fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election,
has a continuing conflict of interest, such Board member is permitted to
file a Memorandum of Voting Conflict at any time in which it shall state
the nature of the continuing conflict. Only one such continuing
Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall be required to be filed for each
term the Board member is in office.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 112.3143, 190.006, 190.007, Fla. Stat.



Rule 1.2

)

@

District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies;
Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination.

District Offices. Unless otherwise designated by the Board, the official District
office shall be the District Manager’s office identified by the District Manager. If
the District Manager’s office is not located within the county in which the District
is located, the Board shall designate a local records office within such county
which shall at a minimum contain, but not be limited to, the following documents:

(a) Agenda packages for prior 24 months and next meeting;
(b)  Official minutes of meetings, including adopted resolutions of the Board;

(c) Names and addresses of current Board members and District Manager,
unless such addresses are protected from disclosure by law;

(d) Adopted engineer’s reports;
(e) Adopted assessment methodologies/reports;
® Adopted disclosure of public financing;

() Limited Offering Memorandum for each financing undertaken by the
District;

(h)y  Proceedings, certificates, bonds given by all employees, and any and all
corporate acts;

(i) District policies and rules;
)] Fiscal year end audits; and
(k)  Adopted budget for the current fiscal year.

The District Manager shall ensure that each District records office contains the
documents required by Florida law.

Public Records. District public records include all documents, papers, letters,
maps, books, tapes, photographs, films, sound recordings, data processing
software, or other material, regardless of the physical form, characteristics, or
means of transmission, made or received in connection with the transaction of
official business of the District. All District public records not otherwise restricted
by law may be copied or inspected at the District Manager’s office during regular
business hours. Certain District records can also be inspected and copied at the
District’s local records office during regular business hours. All written public
records requests shall be directed to the Secretary who by these rules is appointed



€)

“)

as the District’s records custodian. Regardless of the form of the request, any
Board member or staff member who receives a public records request shall
immediately forward or communicate such request to the Secretary for
coordination of a prompt response. The Secretary, after consulting with District
Counsel as to the applicability of any exceptions under the public records laws,
shall be responsible for responding to the public records request. At no time can
the District be required to create records or summaries of records, or prepare
opinions regarding District policies, in response to a public records request.

Service Contracts. Any contract for services, regardless of cost, shall include
provisions required by law that require the contractor to comply with public
records laws. The District Manager shall be responsible for initially enforcing all
contract provisions related to a contractor’s duty to comply with public records
laws.

Fees; Copies. Copies of public records shall be made available to the requesting
person at a charge of $0.15 per page for one-sided copies and $0.20 per page for
two-sided copies if not more than 8 % by 14 inches. For copies of public records
in excess of the sizes listed in this section and for outside duplication services, the
charge shall be equal to the actual cost of reproduction. Certified copies of public
records shall be made available at a charge of one dollar ($1.00) per page. If the
nature or volume of records requested requires extensive use of information
technology resources or extensive clerical or supervisory assistance, the District
may charge, in addition to the duplication charge, a special service charge that is
based on the cost the District incurs to produce the records requested. This charge
may include, but is not limited to, the cost of information technology resource,
employee labor, and fees charged to the District by consultants employed in
fulfilling the request. In cases where the special service charge is based in whole
or in part on the costs incurred by the District due to employee labor, consultant
fees, or other forms of labor, those portions of the charge shall be calculated based
on the lowest labor cost of the individual(s) who is/are qualified to perform the
labor, taking into account the nature or volume of the public records to be
inspected or copied. The charge may include the labor costs of supervisory and/or
clerical staff whose assistance is required to complete the records request, in
accordance with Florida law. For purposes of this Rule, the word “extensive”
shall mean that it will take more than 15 minutes to locate, review for confidential
information, copy and re-file the requested material. In cases where extensive
personnel time is determined by the District to be necessary to safeguard original
records being inspected, the special service charge provided for in this section
shall apply. If the total fees, including but not limited to special service charges,
are anticipated to exceed twenty-five dollars ($25.00), then, prior to commencing
work on the request, the District will inform the person making the public records
request of the estimated cost, with the understanding that the final cost may vary
from that estimate. If the person making the public records request decides to
proceed with the request, payment of the estimated cost is required in advance.
Should the person fail to pay the estimate, the District is under no duty to produce



the requested records. Afier the request has been fulfilled, additional payments or
credits may be due. The District is under no duty to produce records in response
to future records requests if the person making the request owes the District for
past unpaid duplication charges, special service charges, or other required
payments or credits.

(5)  Records Retention. The Secretary of the District shall be responsible for retaining
the District’s records in accordance with applicable Florida law.

(6)  Policies. The Board may adopt policies related to the conduct of its business and
the provision of services either by resolution or motion.

(7)  Financial Disclosure Coordination. Unless specifically designated by Board
resolution otherwise, the Secretary shall serve as the Financial Disclosure
Coordinator (“Coordinator”) for the District as required by the Florida
Commission on Ethics (“Commission”). The Coordinator shall create, maintain
and update a list of the names, e-mail addresses, physical addresses, and names of
the agency of, and the office or position held by, all Supervisors and other persons
required by Florida law to file a statement of financial interest due to his or her
affiliation with the District (“Reporting Individual®). The Coordinator shall
provide this list to the Commission by February 1 of each year, which list shall be
current as of December 31 of the prior year. Each Supervisor and Reporting
Individual shall promptly notify the Coordinator in writing if there are any
changes to such person’s name, e-mail address, or physical address. Each
Supervisor and Reporting Individual shall promptly notify the Commission in the
manner prescribed by the Commission if there are any changes to such person’s e-
mail address.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 112.31446(3), 112.3145(8)(a)1., 119.07, 119.0701, 190.006, Fla. Stat.



Rule 1.3

M

Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops.

Notice. Except in emergencies, or as otherwise required by statute or these Rules,
at least seven (7) days, but no more than thirty (30) days public notice shall be
given of any public meeting, hearing or workshop of the Board. Public notice
shall be given by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the District
and in the county in which the District is located. “General circulation” means a
publication that is printed and published at least once a week for the preceding
year, offering at least 25% of its words in the English language, qualifies as a
periodicals material for postal purposes in the county in which the District is
located, is for sale to the public generally, is available to the public generally for
the publication of official or other notices, and is customarily containing
information of a public character or of interest or of value to the residents or
owners of property in the county where published, or of interest or of value to the
general public. The annual meeting notice required to be published by Section
189.015 of the Florida Statutes, shall be published in a newspaper not of limited
subject matter, which is published at least five days a week, unless the only
newspaper in the county is published less than five days a week. Each Notice
shall state, as applicable:

(a) The date, time and place of the meeting, hearing or workshop;

(b) A brief description of the nature, subjects, and purposes of the meeting,
hearing, or workshop;

(c)  The District office address for the submission of requests for copies of the
agenda, as well as a contact name and telephone number for verbal
requests for copies of the agenda; and

(d The following or substantially similar language: “Pursuant to provisions of
the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special
accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is asked
to advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the
meeting/hearing/workshop by contacting the District Manager at (407)
841-5524. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the
Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770 or 1 (800) 955-8771, who can
aid you in contacting the District Office.”

(e) The following or substantially similar language: “A person who decides to
appeal any decision made at the meeting/hearing/workshop with respect to
any matter considered at the meeting/hearing/workshop is advised that
person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is
made including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be
based.”

10



@

)

® The following or substantially similar language: “The meeting [or hearing
or workshop] may be continued in progress without additional notice to a
time, date, and location stated on the record.”

Mistake. In the event that a meeting is held under the incorrect assumption that
notice required by law and these Rules has been given, the Board at its next
propetly noticed meeting shall cure such defect by considering the agenda items
from the prior meeting individually and anew.

Agenda. The District Manager, under the guidance of District Counsel and the
Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, shall prepare an agenda of the
meeting/hearing/workshop. The agenda and any meeting materials available in an
electronic format, excluding any confidential and any confidential and exempt
information, shall be available to the public at least seven days before the

meetmg/heanng/workshop, except in an emergency Meetmg—mater—m-is—shal-l—be

matenalsLFor good cause, the agenda may be changed after it is first made
available for distribution, and additional materials may be added or provided
under separate cover at the meeting. If additional meeting materials become

available after the agenda is first made available for distribution, the District
Manager should post such additional meeting materials to the District’s website as
soon as reasonably practicable. The requirement of good cause shall be liberally
construed to allow the District to efficiently conduct business and to avoid the
expenses associated with special meetings.

The District may, but is not required to, use the following format in preparing its
agenda for its regular meetings:

Call to order
Roll call
Public comment
Organizational matters
Review of minutes
Specific items of old business
Specific items of new business
Staff reports
(a) District Counsel
(b) District Engineer
(c) District Manager
1. Financial Report
2. Approval of Expenditures
Supervisor’s requests and comments
Public comment

11



@

®

(6

M

®)

®

Adjournment

Minutes. The Secretary shall be responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes
of each meeting of the Board. Minutes shall be corrected and approved by the
Board at a subsequent meeting. The Secretary may work with other staff
members in preparing draft minutes for the Board’s consideration.

Special Requests. Persons wishing to receive, by mail, notices or agendas of
meetings, may so advise the District Manager or Secretary at the District Office.
Such persons shall furnish a mailing address in writing and shall be required to
pre-pay the cost of the copying and postage.

Emergency Meetings. The Chairperson, or Vice-Chairperson if the Chairperson is
unavailable, upon consultation with the District Manager and District Counsel, if
available, may convene an emergency meeting of the Board without first having
complied with sections (1) and (3) of this Rule, to act on emergency matters that
may affect the public health, safety, or welfare. Whenever possible, the District
Manager shall make reasonable efforts to provide public notice and notify all
Board members of an emergency meeting twenty-four (24) hours in advance.
Reasonable efforts may include telephone notification. Notice of the emergency
meeting must be provided both before and after the meeting on the District’s
website, if it has one. Whenever an emergency meeting is called, the District
Manager shall be responsible for notifying at least one newspaper of general
circulation in the District. After an emergency meeting, the Board shall publish in
a newspaper of general circulation in the District, the time, date and place of the
emergency meeting, the reasons why an emergency meeting was necessary, and a
description of the action taken. Actions taken at an emergency meeting may be
ratified by the Board at a regularly noticed meeting subsequently held.

Public Comment. The Board shall set aside a reasonable amount of time at each
meeting for public comment and members of the public shall be permitted to
provide comment on any proposition before the Board. The portion of the
meeting generally reserved for public comment shall be identified in the agenda.
Policies governing public comment may be adopted by the Board in accordance
with Florida law.

Budget Hearing. Notice of hearing on the annual budget(s) shall be in accord with
Section 190.008 of the Florida Statutes. Once adopted in accord with Section
190.008 of the Florida Statutes, the annual budget(s) may be amended from time
to time by action of the Board. Approval of invoices by the Board in excess of
the funds allocated to a particular budgeted line item shall serve to amend the
budgeted line item.

Public Hearings. Notice of required public hearings shall contain the information
required by applicable Florida law and by these Rules applicable to meeting
notices and shall be mailed and published as required by Florida law. The District

12



(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Manager shall ensure that all such notices, whether mailed or published, contain
the information required by Florida law and these Rules and are mailed and
published as required by Florida law. Public hearings may be held during Board
meetings when the agenda includes such public hearing,

Participation by Teleconference/Videoconference. District staff may participate
in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference. Board members may
also participate in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference if in the
good judgment of the Board extraordinary circumstances exist; provided however,
at least three Board members must be physically present at the meeting location to
establish a quorum. Such extraordinary circumstances shall be presumed when a
Board member participates by teleconference or videoconference, unless a
majority of the Board members physically present determines that extraordinary
circumstances do not exist.

Board Authorization. The District has not adopted Robert’s Rules of Order. For
each agenda item, there shall be discussion permitted among the Board members
during the meeting. Unless such procedure is waived by the Board, approval or
disapproval of resolutions and other proposed Board actions shall be in the form
of a motion by one Board member, a second by another Board member, and an
affirmative vote by the majority of the Board members present. Any Board
member, including the Chairperson, can make or second a motion.

Continuances. Any meeting or public hearing of the Board may be continued
without re-notice or re-advertising provided that:

(a) The Board identifies on the record at the original meeting a reasonable
need for a continuance;

(b)  The continuance is to a specified date, time, and location publicly
announced at the original meeting; and

(c) The public notice for the original meeting states that the meeting may be
continued to a date and time and states that the date, time, and location of
any continuance shall be publicly announced at the original meeting and
posted at the District Office immediately following the original meeting.

Attorney-Client Sessions. An Attorney-Client Session is permitted when the
District’s attorneys deem it necessary to meet in private with the Board to discuss
pending litigation to which the District is a party before a court or administrative
agency or as may be authorized by law. The District’s attorney must request such
session at a public meeting. Prior to holding the Attorney-Client Session, the
District must give reasonable public notice of the time and date of the session and
the names of the persons anticipated to attend the session. The session must
commence at an open meeting in which the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson
announces the commencement of the session, the estimated length of the session,

13



and the names of the persons who will be attending the session. The discussion
during the session is confined to settlement negotiations or strategy related to
litigation expenses or as may be authorized by law. Only the Board, the District’s
attorneys (including outside counsel), the District Manager, and the court reporter
may attend an Attorney-Client Session. During the session, no votes may be
taken and no final decisions concerning settlement can be made. Upon the
conclusion of the session, the public meeting is reopened, and the Chairperson or
Vice-Chairperson must announce that the session has concluded. The session
must be transcribed by a court-reporter and the transcript of the session filed with
the District Secretary within a reasonable time after the session. The transcript
shall not be available for public inspection until after the conclusion of the
litigation.

(14)  Security and Firesafety Board Discussions. Portions of a meeting which relate to
or would reveal a security or firesafety system plan or portion thereof made
confidential and exempt by section 119.071(3)(a), Florida Statutes, are exempt
from the public meeting requirements and other requirements of section 286.011,
Florida Statutes, and section 24(b), Article 1 of the State Constitution. Should the
Board wish to discuss such matters, members of the public shall be required to
leave the meeting room during such discussion. Any records of the Board’s
discussion of such matters, including recordings or minutes, shall be maintained
as confidential and exempt records in accordance with Florida law.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 189.069(2)(a)16, 190.006, 190.007, 190.008, 286.0105, 286.011, 286.0113, 286.0114, Fla, Stat.

14



Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse

(1) Internal Controls. The District shall establish and maintain internal

controls designed to:

(a) Prevent and detect “fraud,” “waste” and “abuse” as those terms are
defined in section 11.45(1), Florida Statutes; and

(b)  Promote and encourage compliance with applicable laws, rules
contracts, grant agreements, and best practices; and

© Support economical and efficient operations; and

(d)  Ensure reliability of financial records and reports; and

(e) Safeguard assets.

(2)  Adoption. The internal controls to prevent fraud, waste and abuse shall be
adopted and amended by the District in the same manner as District
policies.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla, Stat.
Law Implemented: § 218.33(3), Fla. Stat.

15



Rule 2.0

(M

@

&)

Rulemaking Proceedings.

Commencement of Proceedings. Proceedings held for adoption, amendment, or
repeal of a District rule shall be conducted according to these Rules. Rulemaking
proceedings shall be deemed to have been initiated upon publication of notice by
the District. A “rule” is a District statement of general applicability that
implements, interprets, or prescribes law or policy, or describes the procedure or
practice requirements of the District (“Rule”). Nothing herein shall be construed
as requiring the District to consider or adopt rules unless required by Chapter 190
of the Florida Statutes. Policies adopted by the District which do not consist of
rates, fees, rentals or other monetary charges may be, but are not required to be,
implemented through rulemaking proceedings.

Notice of Rule Development.

(a) Except when the intended action is the repeal of a Rule, the District shall
provide notice of the development of a proposed rule by publication of a
Notice of Rule Development in a newspaper of general circulation in the
District before providing notice of a proposed rule as required by section
(3) of this Rule. Consequently, the Notice of Rule Development shall be
published at least twenty-nine (29) days prior to the public hearing on the
proposed Rule. The Notice of Rule Development shall indicate the subject
area to be addressed by rule development, provide a short, plain
explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed rule, cite the specific
legal authority for the proposed rule, and include a statement of how a
person may promptly obtain, without cost, a copy of any preliminary draft,
if available.

(b) Al rules as drafted shall be consistent with Sections 120.54(1)(g) and
120.54(2)(b) of the Florida Statutes.

Notice of Proceedings and Proposed Rules.

(a) Prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule other than an
emergency rule, the District shall give notice of its intended action, setting
forth a short, plain explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed
action, a reference to the specific rulemaking authority pursuant to which
the rule is adopted, and a reference to the section or subsection of the
Florida Statutes being implemented, interpreted, or made specific. The
notice shall include a summary of the District’s statement of the estimated
regulatory costs, if one has been prepared, based on the factors set forth in
Section 120.541(2) of the Florida Statutes, and a statement that any person
who wishes to provide the District with a lower cost regulatory alternative
as provided by Section 120.541(1), must do so in writing within twenty-
one (21) days after publication of the notice. The notice shall additionally
include a statement that any affected person may request a public hearing

16



@

)

(6

by submitting a written request within twenty-one (21) days after the date
of publication of the notice. Except when intended action is the repeal of
a rule, the notice shall include a reference to both the date on which and
the place where the Notice of Rule Development required by section (2) of
this Rule appeared.

(b)  The notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
District and each county in which the District is located not less than
twenty-eight (28) days prior to the intended action. The proposed rule
shall be available for inspection and copying by the public at the time of
the publication of notice.

(c) The notice shall be mailed to all persons named in the proposed rule and to
all persons who, at least fourteen (14) days prior to such mailing, have
made requests of the District for advance notice of its rulemaking
proceedings. Any person may file a written request with the District
Manager to receive notice by mail of District proceedings to adopt,
amend, or repeal a rule. Such persons must furnish a mailing address and
may be required to pay the cost of copying and mailing.

Rule Development Workshops. Whenever requested in writing by any affected
person, the District must either conduct a rule development workshop prior to
proposing rules for adoption or the Chairperson must explain in writing why a
workshop is unnecessary. The District may initiate a rule development workshop
but is not required to do so.

Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking. All Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking proceedings
must contain the name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner, the
specific action requested, the specific reason for adoption, amendment, or repeal,
the date submitted, the text of the proposed rule, and the facts showing that the
petitioner is regulated by the District or has a substantial interest in the
rulemaking. Not later than sixty (60) calendar days following the date of filing a
petition, the Board shall initiate rulemaking proceedings or deny the petition with
a written statement of its reasons for the denial. If the petition is directed to an
existing policy that the District has not formally adopted as a rule, the District
may, in its discretion, notice and hold a public hearing on the petition to consider
the comments of the public directed to the policy, its scope and application, and to
consider whether the public interest is served adequately by the application of the
policy on a case-by-case basis, as contrasted with its formal adoption as a rule.
However, this section shall not be construed as requiring the District to adopt a
rule to replace a policy.

Rulemaking Materials. After the publication of the notice referenced in section

(3) of this Rule, the Board shall make available for public inspection and shall
provide, upon request and payment of the cost of copies, the following materials:

17



(7

®

®

(10)

(@)  The text of the proposed rule, or any amendment or repeal of any existing
rules;

(b) A detailed written statement of the facts and circumstances justifying the
proposed rule;

() A copy of the statement of estimated regulatory costs if required by
Section 120.541 of the Florida Statutes; and

(d)  The published notice.

Hearing. The District may, or, upon the written request of any affected person
received within twenty-one (21) days after the date of publication of the notice
described in section (3) of this Rule, shall, provide a public hearing for the
presentation of evidence, argument, and oral statements, within the reasonable
conditions and limitations imposed by the District to avoid duplication, irrelevant
comments, unnecessary delay, or disruption of the proceedings. The District shall
publish notice of the public hearing in a newspaper of general circulation within
the District either in the text of the notice described in section (3) of this Rule or in
a separate publication at least seven (7) days before the scheduled public hearing,
The notice shall specify the date, time, and location of the public hearing, and the
name, address, and telephone number of the District contact person who can
provide information about the public hearing. Written statements may be submitted
by any person prior to or at the public hearing. All timely submitted written
statements shall be considered by the District and made part of the rulemaking
record.

Emergency Rule Adoption. The Board may adopt an emergency rule if it finds
that immediate danger to the public health, safety, or welfare exists which
requires immediate action. Prior to the adoption of an emergency rule, the District
Manager shall make reasonable efforts to notify a newspaper of general
circulation in the District. Notice of emergency rules shall be published as soon as
possible in a newspaper of general circulation in the District. The District may
use any procedure which is fair under the circumstances in the adoption of an
emergency rule as long as it protects the public interest as determined by the
District and otherwise complies with these provisions.

Negotiated Rulemaking. The District may use negotiated rulemaking in
developing and adopting rules pursuant to Section 120.54(2)(d) of the Florida
Statutes, except that any notices required under Section 120.54(2)(d) of the
Florida Statutes, may be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
county in which the District is located.

Rulemaking Record. In all rulemaking proceedings, the District shall compile
and maintain a rulemaking record. The record shall include, if applicable:

18



(11)

(a)
)
©
(d)
(e)

®

The texts of the proposed rule and the adopted rule;

All notices given for a proposed rule;

Any statement of estimated regulatory costs for the rule;

A written summary of hearings, if any, on the proposed rule;

All written comments received by the District and responses to those
written comments; and

All notices and findings pertaining to an emergency rule.

Petitions to Challenge Existing Rules.

(a)

()

©

@

(e)

Any person substantially affected by a rule may seek an administrative
determination of the invalidity of the rule on the ground that the rule is an
invalid exercise of the District’s authority.

The petition seeking an administrative determination must state with
particularity the provisions alleged to be invalid with sufficient
explanation of the facts or grounds for the alleged invalidity and facts
sufficient to show that the person challenging a rule is substantially
affected by it.

The petition shall be filed with the District. Within 10 days after receiving
the petition, the Chairperson shall, if the petition complies with the
requirements of subsection (b) of this section, designate any member of
the Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel,
or other person as a hearing officer who shall conduct a hearing within 30
days thereafter, unless the petition is withdrawn or a continuance is
granted by agreement of the parties. The failure of the District to follow
the applicable rulemaking procedures or requirements in this Rule shall be
presumed to be material; however, the District may rebut this presumption
by showing that the substantial interests of the petitioner and the fairness
of the proceedings have not been impaired.

Within 30 days after the hearing, the hearing officer shall render a
decision and state the reasons therefor in writing.

Hearings held under this section shall be de novo in nature. The petitioner
has a burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the
existing rule is an invalid exercise of District authority as to the objections
raised. The hearing officer may:

@) Administer oaths and affirmations;

19



(12)

®

(ii))  Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence;

(iii) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing
matters;

(iv)  Enter orders; and
(v)  Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment.
The petitioner and the District shall be adverse parties. Other substantially

affected persons may join the proceedings as intervenors on appropriate
terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings.

Variances and Waivers. A “variance” means a decision by the District to grant a
modification to all or part of the literal requirements of a rule to a person who is
subject to the rule. A “waiver” means a decision by the District not to apply all or
part of a rule to a person who is subject to the rule. Variances and waivers from
District rules may be granted subject to the following:

(a)

®)

(©)

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person subject to the rule
demonstrates that the purpose of the underlying statute will be or has been
achieved by other means by the person, and when application of the rule
would create a substantial hardship or would violate principles of fairness.
For purposes of this section, "substantial hardship" means a demonstrated
economic, technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the person
requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes of this section, "principles
of fairness" are violated when the literal application of a rule affects a
particular person in a manner significantly different from the way it affects
other similarly situated persons who are subject to the rule.

A person who is subject to regulation by a District Rule may file a petition

with the District, requesting a variance or waiver from the District’s Rule.

Each petition shall specify:

@) The rule from which a variance or waiver is requested;

(i)  The type of action requested,;

(iii)  The specific facts that would justify a waiver or variance for the
petitioner; and

(iv)  The reason why the variance or the waiver requested would serve

the purposes of the underlying statute.

The District shall review the petition and may request only that
information needed to clarify the petition or to answer new questions

20



raised by or directly related to the petition. If the petitioner asserts that any
request for additional information is not authorized by law or by Rule of
the District, the District shall proceed, at the petitioner’s written request, to
process the petition.

(d)  The Board shall grant or deny a petition for variance or waiver and shall
announce such disposition at a publicly held meeting of the Board, within
ninety (90) days after receipt of the original petition, the last item of
timely requested additional material, or the petitioner's written request to
finish processing the petition. The District’s statement granting or denying
the petition shall contain a statement of the relevant facts and reasons
supporting the District's action.

(13) Rates, Fees. Rentals and Other Charges. All rates, fees, rentals, or other charges
shall be subject to rulemaking proceedings. Policies adopted by the District
which do not consist of rates, fees, rentals or other charges may be, but are not
required to be, implemented through rulemaking proceedings.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.035, Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.035(2), Fla. Stat.

21



Rule 3.0

M

@

&)

Competitive Purchase.

Purpose and Scope. In order to comply with Sections 190.033(1) through (3),

287.055 and 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, the following provisions shall apply
to the purchase of Professional Services, insurance, construction contracts,
design-build services, goods, supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and
maintenance services.

Board Authorization. Except in cases of an Emergency Purchase, a competitive

purchase governed by these Rules shall only be undertaken after authorization by
the Board.

Definitions.

(a)

(b)

©)

“Competitive Solicitation” means a formal, advertised procurement
process, other than an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, or
Invitation to Negotiate, approved by the Board to purchase commodities
and/or services which affords vendors fair treatment in the competition for
award of a District purchase contract.

“Continuing Contract” means a contract for Professional Services entered
into in accordance with Section 287.055 of the Florida Statutes, between
the District and a firm, whereby the firm provides Professional Services to
the District for projects in which the costs do not exceed two million
dollars ($2,000,000), for a study activity when the fee for such
Professional Services to the District does not exceed two hundred
thousand dollars ($200,000), or for work of a specified nature as outlined
in the contract with the District, with no time limitation except that the
contract must provide a termination clause (for example, a contract for
general District engineering services). Firms providing Professional
Services under Continuing Contracts shall not be required to bid against
one another.

“Contractual Service” means the rendering by a contractor of its time and
effort rather than the furnishing of specific commodities. The term applies
only to those services rendered by individuals and firms who are
independent contractors. Contractual Services do not include auditing
services, Maintenance Services, or Professional Services as defined in
Section 287.055(2)(a) of the Florida Statutes, and these Rules.
Contractual Services also do not include any contract for the furnishing of
labor or materials for the construction, renovation, repair, modification, or
demolition of any facility, building, portion of building, utility, park,
parking lot, or structure or other improvement to real property entered into
pursuant to Chapter 255 of the Florida Statutes, and Rules 3.5 or 3.6.

22



(d)

(©

®

(8

(b

“Design-Build Contract” means a single contract with a Design-Build
Firm for the design and construction of a public construction project.

“Design-Build Firm” means a partnership, corporation or other legal entity
that:

@) Is certified under Section 489.119 of the Florida Statutes, to
engage in contracting through a certified or registered general
contractor or a certified or registered building contractor as the

qualifying agent; or

(i) Is certified under Section 471.023 of the Florida Statutes, to
practice or to offer to practice engineering; certified under Section
481.219 of the Florida Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice
architecture; or certified under Section 481.319 of the Florida
Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice landscape architecture.

“Design Criteria Package” means concise, performance-oriented drawings
or specifications for a public construction project. The purpose of the
Design Criteria Package is to furnish sufficient information to permit
Design-Build Firms to prepare a bid or a response to the District’s Request
for Proposals, or to permit the District to enter into a negotiated Design-
Build Contract. The Design Criteria Package must specify performance-
based criteria for the public construction project, including the legal
description of the site, survey information concerning the site, interior
space requirements, material quality standards, schematic layouts and
conceptual design criteria of the project, cost or budget estimates, design
and construction schedules, site development requirements, provisions for
utilities, stormwater retention and disposal, and parking requirements
applicable to the project. Design Criteria Packages shall require firms to
submit information regarding the qualifications, availability, and past
work of the firms, including the partners and members thereof.

“Design Criteria Professional” means a firm who holds a current
certificate of registration under Chapter 481 of the Florida Statutes, to
practice architecture or landscape architecture, or a firm who holds a
current certificate as a registered engineer under Chapter 471 of the
Florida Statutes, to practice engineering, and who is employed by or under
contract to the District to provide professional architect services,
landscape architect services, or engineering services in connection with
the preparation of the Design Criteria Package.

“Emergency Purchase” means a purchase necessitated by a sudden
unexpected turn of events (for example, acts of God, riot, fires, floods,
hurricanes, accidents, or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of
the Board in the normal conduct of its business), where the Board finds

23



@

1)

(k)

@

()

that the delay incident to competitive purchase would be detrimental to the
interests of the District. This includes, but is not limited to, instances
where the time to competitively award the project will jeopardize the
funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the project, or
will create an undue hardship on the public health, safety, or welfare.

“Invitation to Bid” is a written solicitation for sealed bids with the title,
date, and hour of the public bid opening designated specifically and
defining the commodity or service involved. Tt includes printed
instructions prescribing conditions for bidding, qualification, evaluation
criteria, and provides for a manual signature of an authorized
representative. It may include one or more bid alternates.

“Invitation to Negotiate” means a written solicitation for competitive
sealed replies to select one or more vendors with which to commence
negotiations for the procurement of commodities or services.

“Negotiate” means to conduct legitimate, arm’s length discussions and
conferences to reach an agreement on a term or price.

“Professional Services” means those services within the scope of the
practice of architecture, professional engineering, landscape architecture,
or registered surveying and mapping, as defined by the laws of Florida, or
those services performed by any architect, professional engineer,
landscape architect, or registered surveyor and mapper, in connection with
the firm's or individual's professional employment or practice.

“Proposal (or Reply or Response) Most Advantageous to the District”
means, as determined in the sole discretion of the Board, the proposal,
reply, or response that is:

@) Submitted by a person or firm capable and qualified in all respects
to perform fully the contract requirements, who has the integrity
and reliability to assure good faith performance;

(ii)  The most responsive to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation as determined by the Board,
and

(iii)  For a cost to the District deemed by the Board to be reasonable.

“Purchase” means acquisition by sale, rent, lease, lease/purchase, or
installment sale. It does not include transfer, sale, or exchange of goods,
supplies, or materials between the District and any federal, state, regional
or local governmental entity or political subdivision of the State of
Florida.

24



(0)

®)

“Request for Proposals” or “RFP” is a written solicitation for sealed
proposals with the title, date, and hour of the public opening designated
and requiring the manual signature of an authorized representative. It may
provide general information, applicable laws and rules, statement of work,
functional or general specifications, qualifications, proposal instructions,
work detail analysis, and evaluation criteria as necessary.

“Responsive and Responsible Bidder” means an entity or individual that
has submitted a bid that conforms in all material respects to the Invitation
to Bid and has the capability in all respects to fully perform the contract
requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good faith
performance. “Responsive and Responsible Vendor” means an entity or
individual that has submitted a proposal, reply, or response that conforms
in all material respects to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and has the capability in all respects
to fully perform the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability
that will assure good faith performance. In determining whether an entity
or individual is a Responsive and Responsible Bidder (or Vendor), the
District may consider, in addition to factors described in the Invitation to
Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, the following:

(1) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed
by the entity/individual;

(ii)  The past performance of the entity/individual for the District and in
other professional employment;

(iii)  The willingness of the entity/individual to meet time and budget
requirements;

(iv)  The geographic location of the entity’s/individual’s headquarters
or office in relation to the project;

W) The recent, current, and projected workloads of the
entity/individual;

(vi)  The volume of work previously awarded to the entity/individual,

(vil) Whether the cost components of the bid or proposal are
appropriately balanced; and

(viii) Whether the entity/individual is a certified minority business
enterprise.

25



(@  “Responsive Bid,” “Responsive Proposal,” “Responsive Reply,” and
“Responsive Response” all mean a bid, proposal, reply, or response which
conforms in all material respects to the specifications and conditions in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation document and these Rules, and the cost
components of which, if any, are appropriately balanced. A bid, proposal,
reply or response is not responsive if the person or firm submitting it fails
to meet any material requirement relating to the qualifications, financial
stability, or licensing of the bidder.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.033, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

26



Rule 3.1

(D

@

3)

Procedure Under the Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act.

Scope. The following procedures are adopted for the selection of firms or
individuals to provide Professional Services exceeding the thresholds herein
described, for the negotiation of such contracts, and to provide for protest of
actions of the Board under this Rule. As used in this Rule, “Project” means that
fixed capital outlay study or planning activity when basic construction cost is
estimated by the District to exceed the threshold amount provided in Section
287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FIVE, or for a planning study
activity when the fee for Professional Services is estimated by the District to
exceed the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO,
as such categories may be amended or adjusted from time to time.

Qualifying Procedures. In order to be eligible to provide Professional Services to
the District, a consultant must, at the time of receipt of the firm’s qualification
submittal:

(a) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good standing;
(b)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

(¢)  Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized to do
business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the
Florida Statutes, if the consultant is a corporation; and

(d)  Meet any qualification requirements set forth in the District’s Request for
Qualifications.

Evidence of compliance with this Rule may be submitted with the qualifications,
if requested by the District. In addition, evidence of compliance must be
submitted any time requested by the District.

Public Announcement. Except in cases of valid public emergencies as certified
by the Board, the District shall announce each occasion when Professional
Services are required for a Project or a Continuing Contract by publishing a notice
providing a general description of the Project, or the nature of the Continuing
Contract, and the method for interested consultants to apply for consideration.
The notice shall appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the
District and in such other places as the District deems appropriate. The notice
must allow at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of qualifications from the date
of publication. The District may maintain lists of consultants interested in
receiving such notices. These consultants are encouraged to submit annually
statements of qualifications and performance data. The District shall make
reasonable efforts to provide copies of any notices to such consultants, but the
failure to do so shall not give such consultants any bid protest or other rights or
otherwise disqualify any otherwise valid procurement process. The Board has the

27



Q)

right to reject any and all qualifications, and such reservation shall be included in
the published notice. Consultants not receiving a contract award shall not be
entitled to recover from the District any costs of qualification package preparation
or submittal.

Competitive Selection.

(a)

®)

(©)

The Board shall review and evaluate the data submitted in response to the
notice described in section (3) of this Rule regarding qualifications and
performance ability, as well as any statements of qualifications on file.
The Board shall conduct discussions with, and may require public
presentation by consultants regarding their qualifications, approach to the
Project, and ability to furnish the required services. The Board shall then
select and list the consultants, in order of preference, deemed to be the
most highly capable and qualified to perform the required Professional
Services, after considering these and other appropriate criteria:

@A) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed
by each consultant;

(i)  Whether a consultant is a certified minority business enterprise;
(i)  Each consultant’s past performance;

(iv)  The willingness of each consultant to meet time and budget
requirements;

(v)  The geographic location of each consultant's headquarters, office
and personnel in relation to the project;

(vi)  The recent, current, and projected workloads of each consultant;
and

(vi)) The volume of work previously awarded to each consultant by the
District.

Nothing in these Rules shall prevent the District from evaluating and
eventually selecting a consultant if less than three (3) Responsive
qualification packages, including packages indicating a desire not to
provide Professional Services on a given Project, are received.

If the selection process is administered by any person or committee other
than the full Board, the selection made will be presented to the full Board
with a recommendation that competitive negotiations be instituted with the
selected firms in order of preference listed.

28



©)

@

Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the rejection of
some or all qualification packages, shall be provided in writing to all
consultants by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight
delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the
Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those
Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s ranking
decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set
forth in Rule 3.11.

Competitive Negotiation.

(a)

(®)

(©)

()

After the Board has authorized the beginning of competitive negotiations,
the District may begin such negotiations with the firm listed as most
qualified to perform the required Professional Services at a rate or amount
of compensation which the Board determines is fair, competitive, and
reasonable.

In negotiating a lump-sum or cost-plus-a-fixed-fee professional contract
for more than the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 of the
Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR, the firm receiving the award
shall be required to execute a truth-in-negotiation certificate stating that
"wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are
accurate, complete and current at the time of contracting." In addition,
any professional service contract under which such a certificate is
required, shall contain a provision that "the original contract price and any
additions thereto, shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by
which the Board determines the contract price was increased due to
inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit
costs."”

Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with
the firm determined to be the most qualified at a price deemed by the
District to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then negotiations with that
firm shall be terminated and the District shall immediately begin
negotiations with the second most qualified firm. If a satisfactory
agreement with the second firm cannot be reached, those negotiations
shall be terminated and negotiations with the third most qualified firm
shall be undertaken.

Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with
one of the top three (3) ranked consultants, additional firms shall be
selected by the District, in order of their competence and qualifications.
Negotiations shall continue, beginning with the first-named firm on the
list, until an agreement is reached or the list of firms is exhausted.

29



(6)  Contracts: Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

(7)  Continuing Contract. Nothing in this Rule shall prohibit a Continuing Contract
between a consultant and the District.

(8)  Emergency Purchase. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these Rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred
or is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

30



Rule 3.2

Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection.

In order to comply with the requirements of Section 218.391 of the Florida Statutes, the
following procedures are outlined for selection of firms or individuals to provide
Auditing Services and for the negotiation of such contracts. For audits required under
Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes but not meeting the thresholds of Chapter 218 of the
Florida Statutes, the District need not follow these procedures but may proceed with the
selection of a firm or individual to provide Auditing Services and for the negotiation of
such contracts in the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the District.

¢y

@

€)

Definitions.

(a) "Auditing Services" means those services within the scope of the practice
of a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of the
Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with
government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of
Accountancy.

(b) "Committee" means the auditor selection committee appointed by the
Board as described in section (2) of this Rule.

Establishment of Auditor Selection Committee. Prior to a public announcement
under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are required, the Board shall
establish an auditor selection committee (“Committee™), the primary purpose of
which is to assist the Board in selecting an auditor to conduct the annual financial
audit required by Section 218.39 of the Florida Statutes. The Committee shall
include at least three individuals, at least one of which must also be a member of
the Board. The establishment and selection of the Committee must be conducted
at a publicly noticed and held meeting of the Board. The Chairperson of the
Committee must be a member of the Board. An employee, a chief executive
officer, or a chief financial officer of the District may not serve as a member of
the Committee; provided however such individual may serve the Committee in an
advisory capacity.

Establishment of Minimum Qualifications and Evaluation Criteria. Prior to a
public announcement under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are
required, the Committec shall meet at a publicly noticed meeting to establish
minimum qualifications and factors to use for the evaluation of Auditing Services
to be provided by a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of
the Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with
government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of Accountancy.

(a) Minimum Qualifications. In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a
firm must, at all relevant times including the time of receipt of the
proposal by the District:

31



)

(b)

@

(i)

(iif)

@iv)

Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any;

Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be
authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a
corporation; and

Meet any pre-qualification requirements established by the
Committee and set forth in the RFP or other specifications.

If requested in the RFP or other specifications, evidence of compliance
with the minimum qualifications as established by the Committee must be
submitted with the proposal.

Evaluation Criteria. The factors established for the evaluation of Auditing
Services by the Committee shall include, but are not limited to:

@) Ability of personnel;

(ii))  Experience;

(iii)  Understanding of scope of work:

(ivi) Ability to furnish the required services; and

(#v) Such other factors as may be determined by the Committee to be

applicable to its particular requirements.

The Committee may also choose to consider compensation as a factor. If the
Committee establishes compensation as one of the factors, compensation shall not

be the sole or predominant factor used to evaluate proposals.

Public Announcement. After identifying the factors to be used in evaluating the

proposals for Auditing Services as set forth in section (3) of this Rule, the

Committee shall publicly announce the opportunity to provide Auditing Services.
Such public announcement shall include a brief description of the audit and how
interested firms can apply for consideration and obtain the RFP. The notice shall
appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the District and the
county in which the District is located. The public announcement shall allow for
at least seven (7) days for the submission of proposals.

32



)

(©)

M

Request for Proposals. The Committee shall provide interested firms with a
Request for Proposals (“RFP”). The RFP shall provide information on how
proposals are to be evaluated and such other information the Committee
determines is necessary for the firm to prepare a proposal. The RFP shall state the
time and place for submitting proposals.

Committee’s Evaluation of Proposals and Recommendation. The Committee
shall meet at a publicly held meeting that is publicly noticed for a reasonable time

in advance of the meeting to evaluate all qualified proposals and may, as part of
the evaluation, require that each interested firm provide a public presentation
where the Committee may conduct discussions with the firm, and where the firm
may present information, regarding the firm’s qualifications. At the public
meeting, the Committee shall rank and recommend in order of preference no
fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the
required services after considering the factors established pursuant to subsection
(3)(b) of this Rule. If fewer than three firms respond to the RFP or if no firms
respond to the RFP, the Committee shall recommend such firm as it deems to be
the most highly qualified. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may
recommend that any and all proposals be rejected.

Board Selection of Auditor.

(@  Where compensation was not selected as a factor used in evaluating the
proposals, the Board shall negotiate with the firm ranked first and inquire
of that firm as to the basis of compensation. If the Board is unable to
negotiate a satisfactory agreement with the first ranked firm at a price
deemed by the Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then
negotiations with that firm shall be terminated and the Board shall
immediately begin negotiations with the second ranked firm. If a
satisfactory agreement with the second ranked firm cannot be reached,
those negotiations shall be terminated and negotiations with the third
ranked firm shall be undertaken. The Board may reopen formal
negotiations with any one of the three top-ranked firms, but it may not
negotiate with more than one firm at a time. If the Board is unable to
negotiate a satisfactory agreement with any of the selected firms, the
Committee shall recommend additional firms in order of the firms’
respective competence and qualifications. Negotiations shall continue,
beginning with the first-named firm on the list, until an agreement is
reached or the list of firms is exhausted.

(b)  Where compensation was selected as a factor used in evaluating the
proposals, the Board shall select the highest-ranked qualified firm or
document in its public records the reason for not selecting the highest-
ranked qualified firm.

33



®

©)

(¢)  In negotiations with firms under this Rule, the Board may allow the
District Manager, District Counsel, or other designee to conduct
negotiations on its behalf.

(d  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may reject any or all proposals.
The Board shall not consider any proposal, or enter into any contract for
Auditing Services, unless the proposed agreed-upon compensation is
reasonable to satisfy the requirements of Section 218.39 of the Florida
Statutes, and the needs of the District.

Contract. Any agreement reached under this Rule shall be evidenced by a written
contract, which may take the form of an engagement letter signed and executed by
both parties. The written contract shall include all provisions and conditions of
the procurement of such services and shall include, at a minimum, the following:

(a) A provision specifying the services to be provided and fees or other
compensation for such services;

(b) A provision requiring that invoices for fees or other compensation be
submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of
the contract;

(c) A provision setting forth deadlines for the auditor to submit a preliminary
draft audit report to the District for review and to submit a final audit
report no later than June 30 of the fiscal year that follows the fiscal year
for which the audit is being conducted;

(d A provision specifying the contract period, including renewals, and
conditions under which the contract may be terminated or renewed. The
maximum contract period including renewals shall be five (5) years. A
renewal may be done without the use of the auditor selection procedures
provided in this Rule but must be in writing.

(¢)  Provisions required by law that require the auditor to comply with public
records laws.

Notice of Award. Once a negotiated agreement with a firm or individual is
reached, or the Board authorizes the execution of an agreement with a firm where
compensation was a factor in the evaluation of proposals, notice of the intent to
award, including the rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in
writing to all proposers by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or
overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of
the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or
wording to that effect. Protests regarding the award of contracts under this Rule

34



shall be as provided for in Rule 3.11. No proposer shall be entitled to recover any
costs of proposal preparation or submittal from the District.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 218.33, 218.391, Fla. Stat.

35



Rule 3.3

)

@

Purchase of Insurance.

Scope. The purchases of life, health, accident, hospitalization, legal expense, or
annuity insurance, or all of any kinds of such insurance for the officers and
employees of the District, and for health, accident, hospitalization, and legal
expenses upon a group insurance plan by the District, shall be governed by this
Rule. This Rule does not apply to the purchase of any other type of insurance by
the District, including but not limited to liability insurance, property insurance,
and directors and officers’ insurance. Nothing in this Rule shall require the
District to purchase insurance.

Procedure. For a purchase of insurance within the scope of these Rules, the
following procedure shall be followed:

(@)
(®)

(c)

@
(e)

®

(2

The Board shall cause to be prepared a Notice of Invitation to Bid.

Notice of the Invitation to Bid shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District. The notice shall allow
at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of bids.

The District may maintain a list of persons interested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid. The District shall make reasonable efforts to provide
copies of any notices to such persons, but the failure to do so shall not give
such consultants any bid protest or other rights or otherwise disqualify any
otherwise valid procurement process.

Bids shall be opened at the time and place noted in the Invitation to Bid.

If only one (1) response to an Invitation is received, the District may
proceed with the purchase. If no response to an Invitation to Bid is
received, the District may take whatever steps are reasonably necessary in
order to proceed with the purchase.

The Board has the right to reject any and all bids and such reservations
shall be included in all solicitations and advertisements.

Simultaneously with the review of the submitted bids, the District may
undertake negotiations with those companies that have submitted
reasonable and timely bids and, in the opinion of the District, are fully
qualified and capable of meeting all services and requirements. Bid
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the specifications and
criteria contained in the Invitation to Bid; in addition, the total cost to the
District, the cost, if any, to the District officers, employees, or their
dependents, the geographic location of the company’s headquarters and
offices in relation to the District, and the ability of the company to
guarantee premium stability may be considered. A contract to purchase

36



insurance shall be awarded to that company whose response to the
Invitation to Bid best meets the overall needs of the District, its officers,
employees, and/or dependents.

(h)  Notice of the intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, shall
be provided in writing to all bidders by United States Mail, by hand
delivery, or by overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the
following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed
in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of
proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the
District’s procurement of insurance under this Rule shall be in accordance
with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 112.08, Fla. Stat.

37



Rule 3.4

(M

@

Pre-qualification

Scope. In its discretion, the District may undertake a pre-qualification process in
accordance with this Rule for vendors to provide construction services, goods,
supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and maintenance services.

Procedure. When the District seeks to pre-qualify vendors, the following
procedures shall apply:

(a)
(b

©

@

(e)

The Board shall cause to be prepared a Request for Qualifications.

For construction services exceeding the thresholds described in Section
255.20 of the Florida Statutes, the Board must advertise the proposed pre-
qualification criteria and procedures and allow at least seven (7) days
notice of the public hearing for comments on such pre-qualification
criteria and procedures. At such public hearing, potential vendors may
object to such pre-qualification criteria and procedures. Following such
public hearing, the Board shall formally adopt pre-qualification criteria
and procedures prior to the advertisement of the Request for Qualifications
for construction services.

The Request for Qualifications shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of qualifications for goods, supplies and materials,
Contractnal Services, maintenance services, and construction services
under two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000). The notice shall
allow at least twenty-one (21) days for submittal of qualifications for
construction services estimated to cost over two hundred fifty thousand
dollars ($250,000) and thirty (30) days for construction services estimated
to cost over five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000).

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Requests for Qualifications. The District shall make a good faith effort
to provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any pre-qualification
determination or contract awarded in accordance with these Rules and
shall not be a basis for a protest of any pre-qualification determination or
contract award.

If the District has pre-qualified vendors for a particular category of

purchase, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been
pre-qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies or

38



®

(8

G

responses in response to the applicable Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

In order to be eligible to submit qualifications, a firm or individual must,
at the time of receipt of the qualifications:

@) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any,

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be
authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation;
and

(iv)  Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Request for Qualifications.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the
qualifications if required by the District. Failure to submit evidence of
compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
qualifications.

Qualifications shall be presented to the Board, or a committee appointed
by the Board, for evaluation in accordance with the Request for
Qualifications and this Rule. Minor variations in the qualifications may be
waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does
not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.

All vendors determined by the District to meet the pre-qualification
requirements shall be pre-qualified. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the requirements contained in a Request for
Qualifications, discussions may be conducted with qualified vendors.
Vendors shall be accorded fair treatment prior to the submittal date with
respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of qualifications.
For construction services, any contractor pre-qualified and considered
eligible by the Department of Transportation to bid to perform the type of
work the project entails shall be presumed to be qualified to perform the
project.

The Board shall have the right to reject all qualifications if there are not
enough to be competitive or if rejection is determined to be in the best
interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled to recover any costs of
qualification preparation or submittal from the District.

39



3

()] Notice of intent to pre-qualify, including rejection of some or all
qualifications, shall be provided in writing to all vendors by United States Mail,
electronic mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service. The
notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the
time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver
of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the
District’s pre-qualification decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with
the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11; provided however, protests related to the
pre-qualification criteria and procedures for construction services shall be
resolved in accordance with section (2)(b) of this Rule and Section 255.20(1)(b)
of the Florida Statutes.

Suspension. Revocation. or Denial of Qualification

(a) The District, for good cause, may deny, suspend, or revoke a prequalified
vendor’s pre-qualified status. A suspension, revocation, or denial for good
cause shall prohibit the vendor from bidding on any District construction
contract for which qualification is required, shall constitute a determination of
non-responsibility to bid on any other District construction or maintenance
contract, and shall prohibit the vendor from acting as a material supplier or
subcontractor on any District contract or project during the period of
suspension, revocation, or denial. Good cause shall include the following:

i. One of the circumstances specified under Section 337.16(2), Fla. Stat.,
has occurred.

ii. Affiliated contractors submitted more than one proposal for the same
work. In this event the pre-qualified status of all of the affiliated
bidders will be revoked, suspended, or denied. All bids of affiliated
bidders will be rejected.

iii. The vendor made or submitted false, deceptive, or fraudulent
statements, certifications, or materials in any claim for payment or any
information required by any District contract.

iv. The vendor or its affiliate defaulted on any contract or a contract
surety assumed control of financial responsibility for any contract of
the vendor.

v. The vendor’s qualification to bid is suspended, revoked, or denied by
any other public or semi-public entity, or the vendor has been the
subject of a civil enforcement proceeding or settlement involving a
public or semi-public entity.

vi. The vendor failed to comply with contract or warranty requirements or
failed to follow District direction in the performance of a contract.

40



vii. The vendor failed to timely furnish all contract documents required by
the contract specifications, special provisions, or by any state or
federal statutes or regulations. If the vendor fails to furnish any of the
subject contract documents by the expiration of the period of
suspension, revocation, or denial set forth above, the vendor’s pre-
qualified status shall remain suspended, revoked, or denied until the
documents are furnished.

viii. The vendor failed to notify the District within 10 days of the vendor,
or any of its affiliates, being declared in default or otherwise not
completing work on a contract or being suspended from qualification
to bid or denied qualification to bid by any other public or semi-public
agency.

ix. The vendor did not pay its subcontractors or suppliers in a timely
manner or in compliance with contract documents.

x. The vendor has demonstrated instances of poor or unsatisfactory
performance, deficient management resulting in project delay, poor
quality workmanship, a history of payment of liquidated damages,
untimely completion of projects, uncooperative attitude, contract
litigation, inflated claims or defaults.

xi. An affiliate of the vendor has previously been determined by the
District to be non-responsible, and the specified period of suspension,
revocation, denial, or non-responsibility remains in effect.

xii. The vendor or affiliate(s) has been convicted of a contract crime.

1. The term “contract crime” means any violation of state or
federal antitrust laws with respect to a public contract or any
violation of any state or federal law involving fraud, bribery,
collusion, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation with
respect to a public contract.

2. The term “convicted” or “conviction” means a finding of guilt
or a conviction of a contract crime, with or without an
adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record
as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of
guilty or nolo contendere.

(b) A denial, suspension, or revocation shall prohibit the vendor from being a
subcontractor on District work during the period of denial, suspension, or
revocation, except when a prime contractor’s bid has used prices of a
subcontractor who becomes disqualified after the bid, but before the request
for authorization to sublet is presented.

41



(¢) The District shall inform the vendor in writing of its intent to deny, suspend,
or revoke its pre-qualified status and inform the vendor of its right to a
hearing, the procedure which must be followed, and the applicable time limits.
If a hearing is requested within 10 days after the receipt of the notice of intent,
the hearing shall be held within 30 days after receipt by the District of the
request for the hearing. The decision shall be issued within 15 days after the
hearing.

(d) Such suspension or revocation shall not affect the vendor’s obligations under
any preexisting contract.

(e) In the case of contract crimes, the vendor’s pre-qualified status under this
Rule shall be revoked indefinitely. For all violations of Rule 3.4(3)(a) other
than for the vendor’s conviction for contract crimes, the revocation, denial, or
suspension of a vendor’s pre-qualified status under this Rule shall be for a
specific period of time based on the seriousness of the deficiency.

Examples of factors affecting the seriousness of a deficiency are:
i. Impacts on project schedule, cost, or quality of work;
ii. Unsafe conditions allowed to exist;
iii. Complaints from the public;
iv. Delay or interference with the bidding process;
v. The potential for repetition;
vi. Integrity of the public contracting process;

vii. Effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the public.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.033, 255.0525, 255.20, Fla. Stat.

42



Rule 3.5

)

2

Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build.

Scope. All contracts for the construction or improvement of any building,
structure, or other public construction works authorized by Chapter 190 of the
Florida Statutes, the costs of which are estimated by the District in accordance
with generally accepted cost accounting principles to be in excess of the threshold
amount for applicability of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as that amount
may be indexed or amended from time to time, shall be let under the terms of
these Rules and the procedures of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as the
same may be amended from time to time. A project shall not be divided solely to
avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure. When a purchase of construction services is within the scope of this
Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(@ The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

(b)  Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District and in the county in which
the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount of the bid
bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least twenty-one (21)
days for submittal of sealed bids, proposals, replies, or responses, unless
the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter period of time is
appropriate. Any project projected to cost more than five hundred
thousand dollars ($500,000) must be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior
to the date for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses. If the
Board has previously pre-qualified contractors pursuant to Rule 3.4 and
determined that only the contractors that have been pre-qualified will be
permitted to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses, the Notice of
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation need not be published. Instead, the Notice of
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation shall be sent to the pre-qualified contractors by
United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service.

(c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any
contract award.

43



(d)

(e)

®

If the District has pre-qualified providers of construction services, then, at
the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses to
Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or
responses:

@A) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any;

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be
authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the bidder is a corporation;
and

(iv)  Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any violation of
federal labor or employment tax laws regarding subjects including but not
limited to, reemployment assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s
compensation, unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage
or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may be considered
ineligible by the District to submit a bid, response, or proposal for a
District project.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply, or response, if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses, or the portions of which that
include the price, shall be publicly opened at a mecting noticed in
accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district representative
is present. The name of each bidder and the price submitted in the bid
shall be announced at such meeting and shall be made available upon
request. Minutes should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the
District. Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be evaluated in

44



(®

()

@

@

accordance with the respective Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals,
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and these Rules.
Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies, or responses may be
waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does
not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.
Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be corrected by the Board.
Bids and proposals may not be modified or supplemented after opening;
provided however, additional information may be requested and/or
provided to evidence compliance, make non-material modifications,
clarifications, or supplementations, and as otherwise permitted by Florida
law.

The lowest Responsive Bid submitted by a Responsive and Responsible
Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid shall be accepted. In relation to
a Request for Proposals, Imvitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or
Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is
most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions
may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and
responses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No contractor shall be
entitled to recover anmy costs of bid, proposal, response, or reply
preparation or submittal from the District.

The Board may require potential contractors to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids,
proposals, replies, or responses, shall be provided in writing to all
contractors by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight
delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the
Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those
Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of
construction services under this Rule shall be in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

45



) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses
are received, the District may purchase construction services or may reject
the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of competitiveness. If
no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is received, the District
may proceed with the procurement of construction services, in the manner
the Board determines is in the best interests of the District, which may
include but is not limited to a direct purchase of the construction services
without further competitive selection processes.

(3)  Sole Source; Government. Construction services that are only available from a
single source are exempt from this Rule. Construction services provided by
governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule. This Rule shall not apply to
the purchase of construction services, which may include goods, supplies, or
materials, that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government contract
that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local government
in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of these Rules.
A contract for construction services is exempt from this Rule if state or federal
law prescribes with whom the District must contract or if the rate of payment is
established during the appropriation process.

(4)  Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

(5)  Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board Meeting,

(6)  Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when:

(a) The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public
facility;

(b) The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the
time required to competitively award the project after the funds become
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent;

(©) The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has
abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contract; or

(d) The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section
286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board
that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own
services, employees, and equipment.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 189,053, 190,033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

46



Rule 3.6

(M

@

Construction Contracts, Design-Build.

Scope.

The District may utilize Design-Build Contracts for any public

construction project for which the Board determines that use of such contract is in
the best interest of the District. When letting a Design-Build Contract, the District
shall use the following procedure:

Procedure.

(a)

(b)

(c)

The District shall utilize a Design Criteria Professional meeting the
requirements of Section 287.055(2)(k) of the Florida Statutes, when
developing a Design Criteria Package, evaluating the proposals and
qualifications submitted by Design-Build Firms, and determining
compliance of the project construction with the Design Criteria Package.
The Design Criteria Professional may be an employee of the District, may
be the District Engineer selected by the District pursuant to Section
287.055 of the Florida Statutes, or may be retained pursuant to Rule 3.1.
The Design Criteria Professional is not eligible to render services under a
Design-Build Contract executed pursuant to the Design Criteria Package.

A Design Criteria Package for the construction project shall be prepared
and sealed by the Design Criteria Professional. If the project utilizes
existing plans, the Design Criteria Professional shall create a Design
Criteria Package by supplementing the plans with project specific
requirements, if any.

The Board may either choose to award the Design-Build Contract pursuant
to the competitive proposal selection process set forth in Section
287.055(9) of the Florida Statutes, or pursuant to the qualifications-based
selection process pursuant to Rule 3.1.

6)] Qualifications-Based Selection. If the process set forth in Rule 3.1
is utilized, subsequent to competitive negotiations, a guaranteed
maximum price and guaranteed completion date shall be
established.

(i)  Competitive Proposal-Based Selection. If the competitive proposal
selection process is utilized, the Board, in consultation with the
Design Criteria Professional, shall establish the criteria, standards
and procedures for the evaluation of Design-Build Proposals based
on price, technical, and design aspects of the project, weighted for
the project. After a Design Criteria Package and the standards and
procedures for evaluation of proposals have been developed,
competitive proposals from qualified firms shall be solicited
pursuant to the design criteria by the following procedure:

47



A Request for Proposals shall be advertised at least once in
a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which
the District is located. The notice shall allow at least
twenty-one (21) days for submittal of sealed proposals,
unless the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter
period of time is appropriate. Any project projected to cost
more than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) must
be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior to the date for
submittal of proposals.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in
receiving notices of Requests for Proposals. The District
shall make a good faith effort to provide written notice, by
electronic mail, United States Mail, hand delivery, or
facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However,
failure of a person to receive the notice shall not invalidate
any contract awarded in accordance with this Rule and
shall not be a basis for a protest of any contract award.

In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a firm must, at
the time of receipt of the proposals:

a. Hold the required applicable state professional
licenses in good standing, as defined by Section
287.055(2)(h) of the Florida Statutes;

b. Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good
standing, if any;

c. Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter
or be authorized to do business in the State of
Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the
Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a corporation;

d. Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set
forth in the Request for Proposals and Design
Criteria Package.

Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any
violation of federal labor or employment tax laws regarding
subjects including but not limited to reemployment
assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s compensation,
unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage
or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may

48



be considered ineligible by the District to submit a bid,
response, or proposal for a District project.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be
submitted with the proposal if required by the District.
Failure to submit evidence of compliance when required
may be grounds for rejection of the proposal.

The proposals, or the portions of which that include the
price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in
accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district
representative is present. The name of each bidder and the
price submitted in the bid shall be announced at such
meeting and shall be made available upon request. Minutes
should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the
District.  In consultation with the Design Criteria
Professional, the Board shall evaluate the proposals
received based on evaluation criteria and procedures
established prior to the solicitation of proposals, including
but not limited to qualifications, availability, and past work
of the firms and the partners and members thereof. The
Board shall then select no fewer than three (3) Design-
Build Firms as the most qualified.

The Board shall have the right to reject all proposals if the
proposals are too high, or rejection is determined to be in
the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled
to recover any costs of proposal preparation or submittal
from the District.

If less than three (3) Responsive Proposals are received, the
District may purchase design-build services or may reject
the proposals for lack of competitiveness. If no Responsive
Proposals are received, the District may proceed with the
procurement of design-build services in the manner the
Board determines is in the best interests of the District,
which may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of
the design-build services without further competitive
selection processes.

Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the
rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in
writing to all consultants by United States Mail, hand
delivery, facsimile, or ovemnight delivery service. The
notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to
file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the

49



€))

“

10.

Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of
proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect.
Protests of the District’s rankings under this Rule shall be
in accordance with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

The Board shall negotiate a contract with the firm ranking
the highest based on the evaluation standards and shall
establish a price which the Board determines is fair,
competitive and reasonable. Should the Board be unable to
negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to
be the most qualified at a price considered by the Board to
be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations with that
firm must be terminated. The Board shall then undertake
negotiations with the second most qualified firm, based on
the ranking by the evaluation standards. Should the Board
be unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm
considered to be the second most qualified at a price
considered by the Board to be fair, competitive, and
reasonable, negotiations with that firm must be terminated.
The Board shall then undertake negotiations with the third
most qualified firm. Should the Board be unable to
negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to
be the third most qualified at a price considered by the
Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations
with that firm must be terminated. Should the Board be
unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with any of the
selected firms, the Board shall select additional firms in
order of their rankings based on the evaluation standards
and continue negotiations until an agreement is reached or
the list of firms is exhausted.

After the Board contracts with a firm, the firm shall bring
to the Board for approval, detailed working drawings of the
project.

The Design Criteria Professional shall evaluate the
compliance of the detailed working drawings and project
construction with the Design Criteria Package and shall
provide the Board with a report of the same.

Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

Emergency Purchase. The Board may, in case of public emergency, declare an

emergency and immediately proceed with negotiations with the best qualified

50



Design-Build Firm available at the time. The fact that an Emergency Purchase
has occurred shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

(5)  Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when:

(@ The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public
facility;

(b)  The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the
time required to competitively award the project after the funds become
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent;

(c) The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has
abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contractor; or

(d) The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section
286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board
that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own
services, employees, and equipment.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

51



Rule 3.7 Payment and Performance Bonds.

(1) Scope. This Rule shall apply to contracts for the construction of a public
building, for the prosecution and completion of a public work, or for repairs upon
a public building or public work and shall be construed in addition to terms
prescribed by any other Rule that may also apply to such contracts.

(2)  Required Bond. Upon entering into a contract for any of the services described in
section (1) of this Rule in excess of $200,000, the Board should require that the
contractor, before commencing the work, execute and record a payment and
performance bond in an amount equal to the contract price. Notwithstanding the
terms of the contract or any other law, the District may not make payment to the
contractor until the contractor has provided to the District a certified copy of the
recorded bond.

(3)  Discretionary Bond. At the discretion of the Board, upon entering into a contract
for any of the services described in section (1) of this Rule for an amount not
exceeding $200,000, the contractor may be exempted from executing a payment
and performance bond.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 255.05, Fla. Stat.

52



Rule 3.8

)

@

Goods, Supplies, and Materials.

Purpose and Scope. All purchases of goods, supplies, or materials exceeding the
amount provided in Section 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY
FOUR, shall be purchased under the terms of this Rule. Contracts for purchases
of “goods, supplies, and materials” do not include printing, insurance, advertising,
or legal notices. A contract involving goods, supplies, or materials plus
maintenance services may, in the discretion of the Board, be treated as a contract
for maintenance services. However, a purchase shall not be divided solely in
order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure. When a purchase of goods, supplies, or materials is within the scope
of this Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

(b)  Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount
of the bid bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

(c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any
contract award.

(d If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of goods, supplies, and materials,
then, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-
qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

(e) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or

responses:

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

53



®

(®

(1iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607
of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply or response if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Any firm or individual whose principal place of business is outside the
State of Florida must also submit a written opinion of an attorney at law
licensed to practice law in that foreign state, as to the preferences, if any or
none, granted by the law of that foreign state to business entities whose
principal places of business are in that foreign state, in the letting of any or
all public contracts. Failure to submit such a written opinion or
submission of a false or misleading written opinion may be grounds for
rejection of the bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time
and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation
to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, and this Rule. Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies,
or responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver
of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of
a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be
corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be modified or
supplemented after opening; provided however, additional information
may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance, make non-
material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and as
otherwise permitted by Florida law.

The lowest Responsive Bid, after taking into account the preferences
provided for in this subsection, submitted by a Responsive and
Responsible Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be
accepted. If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and
Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a
foreign state which does not grant a preference in competitive purchase to
businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the

54



(b

®

@

(k)

lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of
business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference of five (5)
percent. If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and
Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a
foreign state which grants a preference in competitive purchase to
businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the
lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of
business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference equal to
the preference granted by such foreign state.

To assure full understanding of the responsiveness to the solicitation
requirements contained in an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals,
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions may be
conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and
Tesponses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be
entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response
preparation or submittal from the District.

The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids,
proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors
by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery
service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file
a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the
District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or
wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of goods,
supplies, and materials under this Rule shall be in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses
are received, the District may purchase goods, supplies, or materials, or
may reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of
competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is
received, the District may proceed with the procurement of goods,
supplies, and materials, in the manner the Board determines is in the best
interests of the District, which may include but is not limited to a direct

55



purchase of the goods, supplies, and materials without further competitive
selection processes.

(3)  Goods. Supplies, and Materials included in a Construction Contract Awarded
Pursuant to Rule 3.5 or 3.6. There may be occasions where the District has
undergone the competitive purchase of construction services which contract may
include the provision of goods, supplies, or materials. In that instance, the
District may approve a change order to the contract and directly purchase the
goods, supplies, and materials. Such purchase of goods, supplies, and materials
deducted from a competitively purchased construction contract shall be exempt
from this Rule.

(4)  Exemption. Goods, supplies, and materials that are only available from a single
source are exempt from this Rule. Goods, supplies, and materials provided by
governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule. A contract for goods, supplies,
or materials is exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom
the District must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the
appropriation process. This Rule shall not apply to the purchase of goods,
supplies or materials that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government
contract that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local
government in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of
these Rules.

5) Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of goods, supplies, and/or materials subject
to this Rule may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years.

(6)  Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 189.053, 190.033, 287.017, 287.084, Fla. Stat.

56



Rule 3.9

)

@)

Maintenance Services.

Scope. All contracts for maintenance of any District facility or project shall be set
under the terms of this Rule if the cost exceeds the amount provided in Section
287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR. A contract involving
goods, supplies, and materials plus maintenance services may, in the discretion of
the Board, be treated as a contract for maintenance services. However, a purchase
shall not be divided solely in order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure. When a purchase of maintenance services is within the scope of this
Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(a)

(®)

(c)

@

(e)

The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount
of the bid bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices
of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to
the District Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any
contract award.

If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of maintenance services, then, at
the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or
responses:

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

57



®

(®

()

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607
of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply, or response if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time
and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation
to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, and these Rules. Minor variations in the bids, proposals,
replies, and responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor
if waiver of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or
disadvantage of a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of
pricing may be corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be
modified or supplemented after opening; provided however, additional
information may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance,
make non-material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and
as otherwise permitted by Florida law.

The lowest Responsive Bid submitted in response to an Invitation to Bid
by a Responsive and Responsible Bidder shall be accepted. In relation to
a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate or Competitive
Solicitation the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or
Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is
most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions
may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, or
responses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No Vendor shall be

58



€))

)

)

(6)

entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response
preparation or submittal from the District.

() The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

)] Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids,
proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors
by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery
service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a
protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District
shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to
that effect. Protests of the District’s procurement of maintenance services
under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in
Rule 3.11.

(k)  If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses
are received, the District may purchase the maintenance services or may
reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of
competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is
received, the District may proceed with the procurement of maintenance
services, in the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the
District, which may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of the
maintenance services without further competitive selection processes.

Exemptions. Maintenance services that are only available from a single source
are exempt from this Rule. Maintenance services provided by governmental
agencies are exempt from this Rule. A contract for maintenance services is
exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom the District
must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the appropriation
process.

Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of maintenance services subject to this Rule
may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years.

Contracts: Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.033, Fia, Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.033, 287.017, Fla. Stat.

59



Rule 3.10

M

@

Contractual Services.

Exemption from Competitive Purchase. Pursuant to Section 190.033(3) of the
Florida Statutes, Contractual Services shall not be subject to competitive
purchasing requirements. If an agreement is predominantly for Contractual
Services, but also includes maintenance services or the purchase of goods and
services, the contract shall not be subject to competitive purchasing requirements.
Regardless of whether an advertisement or solicitation for Contractual Services is
identified as an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate,
or Competitive Solicitation, no rights or remedies under these Rules, including
but not limited to protest rights, are conferred on persons, firms, or vendors
proposing to provide Contractual Services to the District.

Contracts: Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract for
Contractual Services shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, Fla. Stat.

60



Rule 3.11

Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6,
3.8, and 3.9.

The resolution of any protests with respect to proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6,
3.8, and 3.9 shall be in accordance with this Rule.

)

Filing.
(2)

(b

(c)

With respect to a protest regarding qualifications, specifications,
documentation, or other requirements contained in a Request for
Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive
Solicitation issued by the District, the notice of protest shall be filed in
writing within seventy-two (72) calendar hours (excluding Saturdays,
Sundays, and state holidays) after the first advertisement of the Request
for Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive
Solicitation. A formal protest setting forth with particularity the facts and
law upon which the protest is based shall be filed within seven (7)
calendar days (including Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after the
initial notice of protest was filed. For purposes of this Rule, wherever
applicable, filing will be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon
receipt by the District. Failure to file a notice of protest shall constitute a
waiver of all rights to protest the District’s intended decision. Failure to
file a formal written protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest
proceedings and shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings.

Except for those situations covered by subsection (1)(a) of this Rule, any
firm or person who is affected adversely by a District’s ranking or
intended award under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 34, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9 and
desires to contest the District’s ranking or intended award, shall file with
the District a written notice of protest within seventy-two (72) calendar
hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after receipt of
the notice of the District’s ranking or intended award. A formal protest
setting forth with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is
based shall be filed within seven (7) calendar days (including Saturdays,
Sundays, and state holidays) after the initial notice of protest was filed.
For purposes of this Rule, wherever applicable, filing will be perfected
and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the District. Failure to file a
notice of protest shall constitute a waiver of all rights to protest the
District’s ranking or intended award. Failure to file a formal written
protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest proceedings and
shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings.

If the requirement for the posting of a protest bond and the amount of the
protest bond, which may be expressed by a percentage of the contract to
be awarded or a set amount, is disclosed in the District’s competitive
solicitation documents for a particular purchase under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3,

61



@

€)

)

34,3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9, any person who files a notice of protest must post
the protest bond. The amount of the protest bond shall be determined by
District staff after consultation with the Board and within the limits, if any,
imposed by Florida law. In the event the protest is successful, the protest
bond shall be refunded to the protestor. In the event the protest is
unsuccessful, the protest bond shall be applied towards the District’s costs,
expenses, and attorney’s fees associated with hearing and defending the
protest. In the event the protest is settled by mutual agreement of the
parties, the protest bond shall be distributed as agreed to by the District
and protestor.

(d)  The District does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or
facsimile transmission. Filings are only accepted during normal business
hours.

Contract Execution. Upon receipt of a notice of protest which has been timely
filed, the District shall not execute the contract under protest until the subject of
the protest is resolved. However, if the District sets forth in writing particular
facts and circumstances showing that delay incident to protest proceedings will
jeopardize the funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the
project, or will create an immediate and serious danger to the public health,
safety, or welfare, the contract may be executed.

Informal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest does not involve a
disputed issue of material fact, the Board may, but is not obligated to, schedule an
informal proceeding to consider the protest. Such informal proceeding shall be at
a time and place determined by the Board. Notice of such proceeding shall be
sent via facsimile, United States Mail, or hand delivery to the protestor and any
substantially affected persons or parties not less than three (3) calendar days prior
to such informal proceeding. Within thirty (30) calendar days following the
informal proceeding, the Board shall issue a written decision setting forth the
factual, legal, and policy grounds for its decision.

Formal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest involves disputed issues of
material fact or if the Board elects not to use the informal proceeding process
provided for in section (3) of this Rule, the District shall schedule a formal
hearing to resolve the protest. The Chairperson shall designate any member of the
Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel, or other
person as a hearing officer to conduct the hearing. The hearing officer may:

(a) Administer oaths and affirmations;
(b)  Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence;

(©) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing matters;

62



(d)  Enter orders; and
(e) Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment.

The hearing officer shall, within thirty (30) days after the hearing or receipt of the
hearing transcript, whichever is later, file a recommended order which shall
include a caption, time and place of hearing, appearances entered at the hearing,
statement of the issues, findings of fact and conclusions of law, separately stated,
and a recommendation for final District action. The District shall allow each
party fifteen (15) days in which to submit written exceptions to the recommended
order. The District shall issue a final order within sixty (60) days after the filing
of the recommended order.

(5)  Intervenors. Other substantially affected persons may join the proceedings as
intervenors on appropriate terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings.

(6)  Rejection of all Qualifications. Bids. Proposals. Replies and Responses after

Receipt of Notice of Protest. If the Board determines there was a violation of law,
defect, or an irregularity in the competitive solicitation process, the Bids,
Proposals, Replies, and Responses are too high, or if the Board determines it is
otherwise in the District’s best interest, the Board may reject all qualifications,
bids, proposals, replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation
process anew. If the Board decides to reject all qualifications, bids, proposals,
replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation process anew, any
pending protests shall automatically terminate.

(7)  Settlement. Nothing herein shall preclude the settlement of any protest under this
Rule at any time.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 190.033, Fla. Stat.

63



Rule 4.0 Effective Date.

These Rules shall be effective , 2019, except that no election of
officers required by these Rules shall be required until after the next regular election for the
Board.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.

64



SECTION VII



Gaines & Frank

Certified Public Accountants PL

c\u
288 Berger, Toombs, Elam,

600 Citrus Avenue
Suite 200
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950

772/461-6120 // 461-1155
FAX: 772/468-9278

September 17, 2019

District Manager

Governmental Management Services, LLC
135 W. Central Blvd., Suite 320

Orlando, FL 32801

The Objective and Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of Poinciana West Community
Development District, which comprise governmental activities and each major fund for the
General Fund as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019 which collectively comprise the
basic financial statements. We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of
this audit engagement by means of this letter for the year ending September 30, 2019 and
thereafter if mutually agreed by Poinciana West Community Development District and Berger,
Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants PL.

Our audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on the financial
statements.

The Responsibilities of the Auditor

We will conduct the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and "Government Auditing Standards" issued by the Comptrolier
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal
control, an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Also, an audit is not designed to detect errors or fraud that are immaterial to

the financial statements.

Fort Pierce / Stuart

Member AICPA Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms Member FICPA
Private Companies practice Section



&

Berger, Toombs, Elam,
Gaines & Frank

Certified Public Accountants  PL

Poinciana West Community Development District
September 17, 2019
Page 2

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to Poinciana West
Community Development District’'s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. However,
we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have
identified during the audit.

We will also communicate to the Board any fraud involving senior management and fraud that
causes a material misstatement of the financial statements that becomes known to us during
the audit, and any instances of noncompliance with laws and regulations that we become aware
of during the audit.

The funds that you have told us are maintained by Poinciana West Community Development
District and that are to be included as part of our audit are listed below:

1. General Fund
2. Debt Service Fund
3. Capital Projects Fund



&

Berger, Toombs, Elam,
Caines & Frank

Cestified Public Accountants  PL

Poinciana West Community Development District
September 17, 2019

Page 3

The Responsibilities of Management and Identification of the Applicable Financial
Reporting Framework

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and understands that
it has responsibility:

1.

For the preparation and fair presentations of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

To evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements are issued or
available to be issued, and to disclose the date through which subsequent events were
evaluated in the financial statements. Management also agrees that it will not evaluate
subsequent events earlier than the date of the management representation letter
referred to below;

For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

4. To provide us with:

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements such as records,
documentation and other matters;

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of

the audit; and
¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it

necessary to obtain audit evidence.

As part of our audit, we will request certain written confirmation concerning representations
made to us in connection with the audit including, among other items:

1.

That management has fulfilled its responsibilities as set out in the terms of this letter;
and

That it believes the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.



B

Berger, Toombs, Elam,
Gaines & Frank

Centified Public Accountants  PL

Poinciana West Community Development District
September 17, 2019
Page 4

Management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that Poinciana West Community
Development District complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities, and for
informing us about all known material violations of such laws or regulations. In addition,
management is responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to
prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the
entity involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, and
others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Management is
also responsible for informing us of its knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the entity received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators, or others.

The Board is responsible for informing us of its views about the risks of fraud within the entity,
and its knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity.

Poinciana West Community Development District agrees that it will not associate us with any
public or private securities offering without first obtaining our consent. Therefore, Poinciana
West Community Development District agrees to contact us before it includes our reports or
otherwise makes reference to us, in any public or private securities offering.

Because Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank will rely on Poinciana West Community
Development District and its management and Board of Supervisors to discharge the foregoing
responsibilities, Poinciana West Community Development District holds harmless and releases
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, its partners, and employees from all claims, liabilities,
losses and costs arising in circumstances where there has been a known misrepresentation by
a member of Poinciana West Community Development District's management, which has
caused, in any respect, Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank's breach of contract or
negligence. This provision shall survive the termination of this arrangement for services.

Records and Assistance

If circumstances arise relating to the condition of the Poinciana West Community Development
District's records, the availability of appropriate audit evidence, or indications of a significant risk
of material misstatement of the financial statements because of error, fraudulent financial
reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment, prevent us from
completing the audit or forming an opinion, we retain the unilateral right to take any course of
action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion, issuing a
report, or withdrawing from the engagement.

During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data that should
be reflected in the Poinciana West Community Development District books and records. The
District will determine that all such data, if necessary, will be so reflected. Accordingly, the
District will not expect us to maintain copies of such records in our possession.



@

Berger, Toombs, Elam,
Gaines & Frank

Cestified Public Accountants  PL

Poinciana West Community Development District
September 17, 2019
Page 5

The assistance to be supplied, including the preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts,
has been discussed and coordinated with Teresa Viscarra. The timely and accurate completion
of this work is an essential condition to our completion of the audit and issuance of our audit

report.
Other Relevant Information

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, a copy of our most recent peer review
report has been provided to you, for your information.

Fees, Costs and Access to Workpapers

Our fees for the services described above are based upon the value of the services performed
and the time required by the individuals assigned to the engagement, plus direct expenses.
Invoices for fees will be submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms
of this engagement. Billings are due upon submission. Our fee for the services described in
this letter for the year ending September 30, 2019 will not exceed $3,415 unless the scope of
the engagement is changed, the assistance which Poinciana West Community Development
District has agreed to furnish is not provided, or unexpected conditions are encountered, in
which case we will discuss the situation with you before proceeding. All other provisions of this
letter will survive any fee adjustment. The two annual renewals must be mutually agreed and
approved by the Board of Supervisors.

In the event we are requested or authorized by Poinciana West Community Development
District or are required by government regulation, subpoena, or other legal process to produce
our documents or our personnel as witnesses with respect to our engagement for Poinciana
West Community Development District, Poinciana West Community Development District will,
so long as we are not a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, reimburse us
for our professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our counsel,
incurred in responding to such requests.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines,
& Frank and constitutes confidential information. However, you acknowledge and grant your
assent that representatives of the cognizant or oversight agency or their designee, other
government audit staffs, and the U.S. Government Accountability Office shall have access to
the audit documentation upon their request and that we shall maintain the audit documentation
for a period of at least three years after the date of the report, or for a longer period if we are
requested to do so by the cognizant or oversight agency. Access to requested documentation
will be provided under the supervision of Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank audit
personnel and at a location designated by our Firm.



&

Berger, Toombs, Elam,
Gaines & Frank

Certified Public Accountants  PL

Poinciana West Community Development District
September 17, 2019
Page 6

Information Security — Miscellaneous Terms

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank is committed to the safe and confidential treatment of
Poinciana West Community Development District's proprietary information. Berger, Toombs,
Elam, Gaines & Frank is required to maintain the confidential treatment of client information in
accordance with relevant industry professional standards which govern the provision of services
described herein. Poinciana West Community Development District agrees that it will not
provide Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank with any unencrypted electronic confidential or
proprietary information, and the parties agree to utilize commercially reasonable measures to
maintain the confidentiality of Poinciana West Community Development District’s information,
including the use of collaborate sites to ensure the safe transfer of data between the parties.

If any term or provision of this arrangement letter is determined to be invalid or unenforceable,
such term or provision will be deemed stricken and all other terms and provisions will remain in
full force and effect.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Poinciana West Community
Development District’s financial statements no later than June 30, 2020. Our report will be
addressed to the Board of Poinciana West Community Development District. We cannot provide
assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is
necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter
paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement.

In addition to our report on Poinciana West Community Development District’s financial
statements, we will also issue the following types of reports:

o Reports on internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of
contracts or grant agreements. We will report on any internal control findings and/or
noncompliance which could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Management letter pursuant to Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

¢ Attestation Report — compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.

This letter constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of agreement between Berger,
Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank and Poinciana West Creeks Community Development District,
superseding all proposals, oral or written, and all other communications, with respect to the
terms of the engagement between the parties.



ekt Berger, Toombs, Elam,
Gaines & Frank

Certified Public Accountants  PL

Poinciana West Community Development District
September 17, 2019
Page 7

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and
agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements including our
respective responsibilities.

Sincerely,

Qe \Joomos’ Cham,
BE@%S%E Més & FRANK

J. W. Gaines, CPA

Confirmed on behalf of the addressee:

[L_ N\~

[l/Z.L/[‘?




Judson B. Baggett | i 6815 Dairy Road

BAGGETT ' MBA, CFA, CVA, Partner Zephyrhills, FlL. 33542
‘ Marci Reufiman " {813)788-2155
REUTIMANN o rormer | & (613 782-8608

& ASSOCIATES, CPAS, PA

System Review Report

To the Directors November 2, 2016

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs PL
and the Peer Review Committee of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Berger,
Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs PL (the firm), in effect for the year ended May 31, 2016.
Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting
on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities,
if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. The firm is responsible for
designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with reasonable
assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all
material respects. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of
quality control, and the firm’s compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives,
scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review are described in the
standards at www.aicpa.org/prsummary.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements performed
under Government Auditing Standards and audits of employee benefit plans.

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Berger,
Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, CPAs PL in effect for the year ended May 31, 2016 has been
suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing
and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms
can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies), or fail. Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines &
Frank, CPAs PL, has received a peer review rating of pass.

N Ret . & Adaocs —

Bag , Reutimann & Associates, CPAs, PA

(BERGER_REPORT16)

Member American Institute of Certitied Public Accountants {AICPA) and Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FICPA)
Hational Associution of Certifiad Valuahion Analysts [MACVA)



ADDENDUM TO ENGAGEMENT LETTER BETWEEN BERGER, TOOMBS,
ELAM, GAINES AND FRANK AND POINCIANA WEST COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2019)

Public Records. Auditor shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section
119.0701, Florida Statutes, comply with the public records laws of the State of Florida,
and specifically shall:

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the
services or work set forth in this Agreement; and

b. Upon the request of the District’s custodian of public records, provide the
District with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be
inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed
the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided
by law; and

C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as
authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following
completion of the Agreement if the Auditor does not transfer the records to
the District; and

d. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to the District, all
public records in possession of the Auditor or keep and maintain public
records required by the District to perform the service or work provided for
in this Agreement. If the Auditor transfers all public records to the District
upon completion of the Agreement, the Auditor shall destroy any duplicate
public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public
disclosure requirements. If the Auditor keeps and maintains public records
upon completion of the Agreement, the Auditor shall meet all applicable
requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically
must be provided to the District, upon request from the District’s custodian
of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information
technology systems of the District.

Auditor acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy public records relating
to this Agreement must be made directly to the District pursuant to Section 119.0701(3),
Florida Statutes. If notified by the District of a public records request for records not in
the possession of the District but in possession of the Auditor, the Auditor shall provide
such records to the District or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a
reasonable time. Auditor acknowledges that should Auditor fail to provide the public
records to the District within a reasonable time, Auditor may be subject to penalties
pursuant to Section 119.10, Florida Statutes.



IF THE AUDITOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO
THE AUDITOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT/CONTRACT, THE
AUDITOR MAY CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC
RECORDS FOR THE DISTRICT AT:

GMS-CF, LLC

135 W. CENTRAL BLVD., SUITE 320
ORLANDO, FL 32801

TELEPHONE: 407-841-5524

EMAIL: & ELEnNT GOMs CEL, (A

Auditor: J.W. Gaine§__7 District: Poinciana West CDD
P
By: 74?# : By: rL x X"“‘*
Title: Dim(for/ Title: “© e & M»,..E o

Date: September 17,2019 Date: il ' 7z ’ (9

f L3




SECTION IX



SECTION C



SECTION 1



Poinciana West
Community Development District

Summary of Check Register

September 12, 2019 to November 26, 2019

[ Fund Date Check No.'s Amount ]
General Fund 9/20/19 1602 $ 5,000.00
9/23/19 1603-1606 $ 7,776.79
9/25/19 1607-1608 $ 7,961.56
9/30/19 1609 $ 1,327.50
10/7/19 1610-1612 $ 4,981.66
10/11/19 1613 $ 5,313.49
10/14/19 1614-1615 $ 2,675.00
10/21/19 1616-1618 $ 11,981.78
10/23/19 1619 $ 330.64
10/28/19 1620 $ 295.00
10/30/19 1621 $ 10,000.00
11/4/19 1622 $ 4,691.16
11/13/19 1623 $ 5,153.19
11/18/19 1624-1626 $ 7,655.01
$ 75,142.78
Payroll September 2019
Charles Case III 50062 $ 184.70
Peggy Gregory 50063 $ 184.70
Roy LaRue 50064 $ 184.70
Shirley Bzdewka 50065 $ 184.70
$ 738.80

$ 75,881.58 |




e 00-0sL’¢€
CI9T00 0S°9L2 ST
0§°9L2
T19T00 00°¥T
00°%T
onMom mﬁwamwwwl ST
9T°169°'%
609100 05-2ze’T
_ 06-Lze’'t
mowwom mowomouhl ST
o 007000,
howﬂom mmwﬂmml I
_ 967196
909700 05°866
o om.mmm
mmwwoo wmwww S o
o _ |wm.w¢
¥09100 oowomhwv T
o 00°0SL'%
€09100 mmwmmmual T
- E€°€86°T
¢09T100 mowomowml T
00°000°Ss
# LNOOWY
Tt tTMOHEHODC " LNAOWY
T Jovd 61/92/11

NOY

YHYVOSIAL ddD ISHM NIOd MIOd

6TLO0-SHTA LNAWIDIYNYIW
* 000PE-00ETS-0TE 0TI6TOZ 25 61/10/0T

qIddDaaT HHL

10000 6T/T1/01
6T/8T/60 ONILITW 40 LON
* 0008%-00€TS-0TE 606T0C 0CL0D090T 6T/TI1/6 0T000 6T/L0/0T

JD-SHOIAYIS INHWIOUNYW TYINIWNIIAOD
6 INAL NIVWOd
* 00ZSE-00ETS-0TE 206102 STE€04D 6T/20/07T

T0000 6T/L0/0T
OTI ‘Z NMYTWHOTA

6TLO0 HIONVNALNIVW NMVT
* 0029%-008€S-0ZE 0T6TI0C Z0EY 6T1/T0/01

L0000 6T/L0/0T
ONI ’SINVITINSNOD IVD

6TdAS—-SOAYS "DNI WINHINT
* 00TTE-00ETS-0TE 606T0C SS6CFIC 61/8Z/6 97000 6T/0E/6
SYOSIAQY MSIY % HONVINSNI SIDH
0430 OITENd/AYIT NED 0ZXd
* 0000T-00SST-00€ 606T0C 6886 61/S2/6 TEO00 6T/S5Z/6
ONI ’SINVITIASNOD I¥D
6THHA~SOAYS °“ONH WIYHINI
* 00TTE-00€TS-0TE 206102 6¥ZSETC 61/8Z/C 91000 61/SZ/6

SWYS ® NITID ONIJIOH
90Y DIW AXTHIW/TISNNOD " NID
x 00STE-00ETS-0TE 806102  9VOOTT 6T/£C/6 Z0000 6T/£2/6
X3aad
61/21/60 A¥IAITIA
* 000Z7-00E€TIS-0TE 606T0Z ¥9-6EL-9 61/LT/6 80000 6T/£2/6
ONI ‘SHJIIAMIS JILVNOY TNUVTID
6TdIS DA¥S “INIVW DIILVNOYW
* 000L%-008E£S~0ZE 606T0C ov8% 61/91/6 02000 6T/€2/6
OLINDOSON TYINAWNOYIANA FAAYTID
6TddS A¥MHAS IWOW OLINDSOW
* 00TLP—~008E£S-0Z€ 606T0Z 8L0600T 6I1/91/6 S0000 6T/EZ/6
dD-SHDIAYAS INIWIDYNVW TEINIWNIIAOD
I¥AD TIOM INIWSSASSY 0ZAd

* 0000T-00SST~-00€ 606102 1S 61/ST/6 10000 6T/0Z/6
SSYTIDENS dNS #ILDJDY Idd OWdX dDIOANT HLYd JIva
SOLYLS AWYN HOANHAA TTTOL QASNEXET "t Tt CHDIOANI® " H#ANHA MDHHD

aNNd TYHINID ¥ MNVd
aNNd TYEINID - ILSHM ¥YNVIONIOA *xx 6T0C/92/TT ~ 6T0Z/21/60 SHLVA MOHAHD x»xx
GALSIDAY MOAHD YALAAWOD/AIVdTdd HTIWAVd SILINNODOY JLVA-OL-dYIX 400€4dY



YEIVOSIAL ddd ISHM NIOd MIOd

610¢ NOISNTIONOD-SIILINIWY

00°590’2 " 00STE-00ETIS-0TE 206102 821907 61/8T/¢€
*NYL NOISOTONOD SIILINIWY
00°0P6'F x 0000T-00TETI-00€ 106102 T9%S0T 6T/ST/Z 20000 61/0£/01
0Z9T00 00°562 ONI ’‘SINYITINSNOD IVD
6TLO0-SOA¥S °*ONT WIMAINI
00°G62 * 00TTE-00ETS-0TE OT6T0Z LOG6ERTC 61/%Z/0T 91000 61/82/0T
6T9T00 ¥9°0€€ MADART HHL
SHIVA ONITITW 0ZXd J0°ION
¥9°0€E % 0008%—00£TS-0TE 606T0Z 0r0D090T 61/62/6 0T000 61/€£Z/01
819100 S¥-8%C'S SWYS ® NATMD ONIJIOH
dES 9IW XTHIW®TISNNOD°NID
Sh°8%Z‘S * 00STE-00ETS-0IE 606T0C  08%OTT 6T/9T/0T <Z0000 6T/1Z/0T
LT9T00 00°0GL'Y ONI ‘SHDIA¥AS DIIVAOY AMIVID
6TID0 DJAMS *INIVH OIIVNOV
00°0SL'F * 000L7-008ES-02E 0T6T0C 890S 6T/ST/0T 02000 61/12/0T
919100 ££7€86°T1 OLINDSOW TYINAWNOMIANA AMNIVID
6TI00 AYIS ILWOW OLINDOSOW
€€°€86°T * 00TLP—008ES~0ZE OT6TOZ ¢8E600T BT/ST/0T S0000 61/1Z/0T
GT9T00 00°00S°2 OUNY'TI0 INAWADYNYW ANVILAM 3 TAVT
SYIVAAY NOISOJIHI-dFd TYNIJ
00°00S°¢ * 00T8%~008£5-02¢ 60610C EEPT 61/92/6 62000 6T1/%T/0T
PI9T00 00°GLT ALINATLYOAE0 DIWONODA A0 INAWILUYIIA
T34 IDIWISIA TYIDEIS 0ZAd
00°SLT * 000%S—00ETS~0TE O0T6T0CZ 9GEVL 6T/T10/0T 90000 6T/FT/0T
€I9100 6% €1E’S JD-SHDIANAS INIAWIDUNVH TVINTHWNIIAOD
6 TLOO-INIWADVYNYH qIdId
€e-geg * 0002T-008€5-02€ 016102 €5 61/10/01
SIIF0D
8E°TPT * 00SZ¥~00€T1S-0I€ 016102 76 6T/10/01
IV ILS0d
LL"8¢ * 000Z¥-00ETS-0TE 0T6T0C TS 61/10/0T
SHAITAANS HDIJAIO
e8I * 000TS~-00ETS-0TE 016102 TS 61/10/0T
6TID0-TTd NOLILYNIWASSIA
L9°9T¥ * 00ETE-00ETS~0TE 0T610C ZS 61/10/0T
6 TID0-HOAL NOILVIWNYOJINT
00°521 * 002SE-00E€TS~0TE 0T610C TS 61/10/0T
# INNOWY SSYIDENS €NS #I0OY Idd OW¥MA  HIDIOANT  HIVA aIvd
*cTCCMDEHD" " ILNNORY SNIVLS TAWYN JOANIA ** 0l QESNALKH®** *°°°"HDIOANI*"°" #ANIA MNDIHD

ANOd TVEANID ¥ INVL
aNOd TYHENTD - LSEM ¥NVIONIOA #xx 6T0Z/9Z/TT — 6102/TT/60 SHIVA MOTHD sx=x
4 dovd 6T/92/11 NOY YALSIDAY MOHHD ¥HAINIWOD/AIVAENd dTIVAYd SINNODOY HIVA-OL-YVAX q00€4av



YHYVOSIAL ddd ISIM NIOd MIOd
8L°C¢v1°'SL YALSIOEY ¥0d TYIOL

8L TVTI’SL ¥ MNVE ¥0d TYIOL

9Z9100 89°1Z6
90/TT ONIMNYW Ind J0°ION
78°6LS 00087-00ETS-0TE TT6T0OZ ZLODO90T 6T/90/11
INIHJOTIATA FINY J0°ION
P8°TI¥E 0008%-00€TIS-0T€ TI6T0Z 2CL0D090T 6T/S0/T1T O0T000 6TI/8T/TT
GZ9T00 00°0SL'¥® ONI /SHDIAMHES DIIVNOVY INUYTID
6TAON DA¥S “INIVH DIIVNOYV
00°0GL’Y 000L%-008£S-02¢ TT6102 6%ZS 6T/ST/TIT 0Z000 61/81/1T
729100 €£°€86°T OLINDOSON TYINIAWNOIIANT HMUYTIO
6TAON AYIS IWOW OLINOSOW
€£°€86°1 00TLP-008€S-02€ TT6T0Z 00G600T 6T/ST/TT S0000 6TI/8T/IT
€79T00 6T"EST’S dD-SHIIAYAS INAWIOUNYW TVINTWNIZAOD
6TAON INIAWIADUNYW ATAII
£e°g€8 000ZT-008€5-02E TT16102 96 6T/T0/TT
6TAON SIIJOD
021 00GZ¥-00EIS-0TE TI6TI0Z SS 6T/T0/1T
6TAON FOVISOd
99°97 000Z¥—-00ETIS-0TE TI6T0T SS 6T/T0/1T
6TAON SHITIANS TDIIIO0
€g” 000TS-00€TS-0TE TTI6T0C SS 6T/10/1T
6TAON SITTA NOILUNIWASSIA
L9°9T¥ 00ETE-00ETS-0TE TTI6102 SS 6T/T0/1T
6TAON HOHIL NOILVWMOJANI
00°s21 00ZSE-00ETIS-0TE TTI610C SS 6T/T0/1T
6TAON STIA LNAWAOUNYH
00°0GL'E 000¥E€-00ETIS-0TE TTI6T02 SS 6I/T0/TT T0000 6T/ET/TT
TTITO00 9T1°169°% OTT ‘7 NMVIVHOTId
6TAON FDONUYNIINIVH NMVT
9T 169°% 00Z9%~008€S-02€ TT1610C LO¥% 6T/T0/TT L0OOOO 61/%0/TT
1Z9100 00°000°'0T SWYS ® NATID 9NIJJOH
, 6102 NOISATIONOD-SATIINIWNY
00°TTE’T 0000T-00TET-00€ SO06T0Z  GZO0BOT 61/12/9
6T0Z NOISATONOD-SAILINIWY
05°98¢ 0000T-00TET-00E P06T0Z E€T8L0T 6I/TIE/S
. , 6T0Z NOISNTIONOD-SAILININY
0G°L6E’T 0000T-00TET-00€ €0610C¢ ZTL90T 61/22/%
# LNNOWY SSYIDENS €NS #ILOOY Idd OWIA  HOIOANI  4Iv¥d TIVA
“cttMDEHODC INOOWY SNIYILS TIWEN JOANIA **tOlL QEASNAIXI" " - "EDIOANI """ #aNIA NMDIHD
aNOQJd TYIINID ¥ NNV
aNnd TYHENED ~ LSHM ¥NYIONIOL *¥x 610C/9C/1T - 6T02/TT/60 SAIVA MOTHD xxx
€  Fova 6T/92/11T NOY  YHALSIDAY MDHIHD YAINAWOD/AIVAENd TIIVAVd SINNODOY AIVA-OL-HVIX q00EAY

YIDaHT THL



GMS-Central Florida, LLC
1001 Bradford Way
Kingston, TN 37763

Bill To:

Peinciana West CDD
135 West Central BLvd
Suite 320

Orlando, FL 32801

Description

%E@EEVZ’E Invoice
SEP 2 0 2019
. Invoice #: 51
BY: o e ——— Invoice Date: 9/15/19
Due Date: 9/15/19
Case:
P.O. Number:
Hours/Qty Rate Amount

Assessment Roll Certification - FY 2020

e
00155V

5,000.00 5,000.00

Total $5,000.00

Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due $5,000.00




Page: 1(1)

www.clarke.com

INVOICE TOLLFREE; 800-525-6727
PHONE: 6830-894-2000

AR Email: accountsrecelvable@ctarke.com,

c‘i’:cmome{

e e e g
Cneck: 16300 Collections Center Drive, Chicago, IL 60693 *

invoice # 001009078
Invoice Date: 09/16/19

Customer #: P07800 Terms: Net 30 Days
Customer PO#  NA Due Date: 10/16/19
B

Poinciana West Community Dev. Dist.
l 1408 Hamlin Ave, Unitlé 4 %E@EEVE
L oy

St. Cloud, FL 34771-8588

o~

George Flint BY: e

Agreement no 1000002502 Consultant Pete Deglomine - Salesman

[ Description Total

)

CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO MANAGEMENT SERVICE

W9's can be found on our website at www.clarke.com
Service for September 2019

QOrder total 1,983.33

// w5
=33 - S3%-w7)

Momuito Mauk Sear Sepld

Aquatic Midge Managment

Clarke Environmental Mosquito Management, Inc. is a Clarke Company

= We accept ACH Payments *** m 1,983.33

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes uniess a valid exemption certificate is Emailed to: accountsreceivable@clarke.com or faxed to: §30-672-7439

Helping make communities around the world more livable, safe and comfortable.




Page: 1(1)
www.clarke.com

"INVOICE TOLL-FREE: 800-323-5727

PHONE: 630-884-2000
AR Email: accountsreceivable@ciarke.com,

F
Qo Clarike
. Pavment Instructions: Ciarke Aristin Qanderoc Ina

Check: 16308 Collections Center Drive, Chicago, IL 60693

Invoice # 000004840
Invoice Date: 09/16/19

Customer #: 088096 Terms: Net 30 Days
Customer PO #: Due Date: 10/16/19

8

| Poinciana West Community Dev. Dist.

L 1408 Hamlin Avenue E @E JI V E

L UnitE

St. Cloud, FL 34771-8588 SEP 77 M8
T
0 George Flint BY: o
Agreement no 1000002499 Consultant Pete Deglomine - Satesman
[ Description Total

CLARKE AQUATIC MAINTENANCE SERVICES

W3's can be found on our website at www.clarke.com
Service for September 2019

Order total 4,750.00

K40

) U330 g3

Agpradic Maink | Spyc Seplq

Aquatic Control Maintenance

Clarke Aquatic Services, inc. is a Clarke Company

*** We accept ACH Payments ™ .aa. 4,750.00 ’

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes unless a valid exemption cerlificate is Emailed ta: accountsreceivable@clarke.com or faxed to; 830-672-7439

Helping make communities around the world more livable, safe and comfortable.



F&d-- ' Invoice Number ™ [ Invoice Date \ [ Account Number \  Page
6-739-64027 Sep 17,2019 N J 10f3

FedEx Tax ID: 71-0427007

Billing Address: Shipping Address:

POINCIANA WEST CDD POINCIANA WEST CDD Invoice Questions? i
135 W CENTRAL BLVD STE 320 135 W CENTRAL BLVD STE 320 Contact FedEx Revenue Services
ORLANDO FL 32801-2435 ORLANDO FL 32801-2435 Phone:  80D.645.9424

M-F7-5{CST)
Internet:  fedex.com/usgovt

Invoice Summary

FedEx Express Services
Total Charges uso $44.96
TOTAL THIS INVOICE uUsD $44.96

Other discounts may apply.

&%
(-3lo-S\ 243

Riery ofiatq

HCEIVED

SEP 20 2019
BY:

Detailed descriptions of surcharges can be located at fedex.com

N-To ensure proper credit, please refum

this portion with your peyment o Fedx, | INVOice Number Invoice Amount | Account Number N
Please do eor fold. ;

Ploase ngﬁl‘tﬂzs\:ﬂ;le to FedEx, 6-739-64027 USD $44.96 !
Remittance Advice Your payment is due by Nov 01, 2019

b7396402?L00000449668743262753000000000000000449LkLO

0039693 01AB0.409 “AUTO T8 01259 32801-243595  -CO1-P39732-41

I e oty e oo g g e e 1 TR B T T R AT P T O

POINCIANA WEST CDD cesen FedEx
135 W CENTRAL BLVD STE 320 B.0. Box 371451
ORLANDO FL 32801-2435 U, BoX

UNMARD A A

60030590015882 1259-01-00-0039633-0002-0073643




Invoice Number ™\ | Invoice Date \

6-739-64027

Sep 17,2019

FedEx Express Shipment Detail By Payor Type (Original)

Ship Date: Sep 12, 2019
Payor: Third Party

Gust. Ref.: Powsiana West CBD
Ref#3:

» Fusl Surcharge - FedEx has appliad a fuel surcharge of 6.75% ta this shipment.

» Distance Based Pricing, Zone 2

¢ Package Deliverad to Racipiant Address - Relagse Authorized

Automation INET

Tracking 1D 7716227018122
Service Type FedEx Standard Overnight
Packape Type FedEx Pak

Zone 02

Packages 1

Rated Waight 2.0 Ibs, 0.9 kgs
Delivered Sep 13,2019 12:45
Svc Area A3

Signed by see above

FedEx Use 000000000/123677/02
Ship Bate: Sap 12, 2018

Payor: Third Party

Sender

Georgs Flint

GMS-CF, LLC

135 W. Central Blvd.
ORLANDO FL 32801 US

Transportation Charge

Fuel Surcharge

flesidantial Delivery

Total Charge

Gust. Ref.: Poinciana West CEB
Refda:

= Fuel Surcharge - FedEx has applied a fuel éurchﬂrge of 6.75% to this shipment.

s Distance Based Pricing, Zone 2

= Package Delivered to Recipient Address - Release Authorized

Automation INET

Tracking ID 776227026705
Service Type FedEx Standard Overnight
Package Type FedEx Pak

Zone 02

Packages 1

Rated Weight 2.01bs, 0.9 kgs
Daelivered Sep 13,2019 12:43
Svc Area A3

Signed by sea above
FedEx Use 000000000/123677/02

FedEx® Billing Online

Sender

George Flint

GMS - CF, LLC

135 W. Central Bivd.
ORLANDO FL 32801 US

Transportation Charge
Fuel Surcharge
Residential Dalivery
Total Charge

Refi2:

Recipient
Charles W. Case, i}l

642 TAPATIO LN
KISSIMMEE FL 34759 US

ust
Ref#z;

Recipient

Shirley Bzdewka

927 SAN RAPHAEL ST
KISSIMMEE FL 34759 US

usb

Account Number ™\ Page

20f3

6.38
0.71
415
$1124

OO D

6.38
071
(419
81124

FedEx Billing Online allows you to efficiently manage and pay your FedEx invoices online. it's free, easy and secure. FedEx
Billing Online helps you streamline your billing process. With all your FedEx shipping information available in one secure
online location, you never have to worry about misplacing a paper invoice or sifting through reams of paper to find
information for past shipments. Go to fedex.com to Sign up today!

1259-01-00-0039693-0002-0073649



Fed: -

Invoice Number ™ | Invoice Date \ [ Account Number Page
6-739-64027 Sep17,2019 || | 30f3
Bhip Date: Sep 12, 2008 Cust, Rof.: Poinciang West CBD Refi2:
Payor Third Party Rkt
« Fual Surcharge - FedEx has applied & fuel surcharga of 5.75% 1o this shipmént
s Distance Basad Pricing, Zone 2
* Package Delivared to RecipientAddress - Release Authorized
Automation INET Sender Recipient
Tracking [D 776227034324 George Hint Peggy Gregory
Sarvice Type FedEx Standard Overnight GMS - CF, LLC 742 SAN RAPHAEL ST
Package Type FedEx Pak 135 W. Cantral Blvd., KISSIMMEE FL 34758 US
Zone 02 ORLANDO FL 32801 US
Packages 1
Rated Weight 2.0ibs, 0.9 kgs
Deliverad Sep 13, 2019 12:50 Transportation Charge 6.38
Svc Area A3 Fuel Surcharge 0.71
Signed by see above Residential Delivery . e 415
FadEx Use 000000000/123677/02 Total Charge uso $112
Ship Bate: Sep 12, 2019 Gust. Raf: Pomeiana West CDD Refd2:
Payor: Third Party Ref#3:
* FuelSurcharge - FadEx has appliad & fuel surcherge of 6.75% to this shipment.
¢ Distance Based Pricing, Zong 2 .
+ Package Delivered to Recipient Address - Release Authorized
Automation INET Sender ecipient
Tracking D 776227045744 George Flint Roy LaRue
Service Type FedEx Standard Qvernight GMS - CF, LIC 211 SAN VICENTE LN
Package Type FedEx Pak 135 W. Cantral Bivd. KISSIMMEE FL 34759 US
Zone a2 CRLANDOFL 32801 US
Packages 1 -
Rated Waight 2.01bs, 0.9 kgs
Delivered Sep 13, 2019 12:47 Transportation Charge 6.38
Svc Area A3 Fuel Surcharge 0.71
Signed by seq ghove Rasidential Delivery _ o 4.15
FedEx Use 000000000/123677/02 Total Charge Usp “$11.2
Third Party Subtotal Usb $44.96
Total FedEx Express usD $44.96

1259-01-00-0039693-0001-0073648



Hopping Green & Sams
Attomeys and Counselors

119 8. Monros Strest, Ste. 300
P.O. Box 6526
Tallshassae, FL 32314
850.222.7500

September 23, 2019
Poinciana West Community Development District Bill Number 110046

George Flint, District Manager Billed through 08/31/2019

Governmental Management Services
w
ECEIVE R

1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E
St. Cloud, FL. 34771 ]gi L2t -5
I —3b 3%-3\%
N

Gen. C -

- M

General Counsel/Monthly Meeting == [ Hkhkj H‘S ”“i‘S

PWCDD 00001 MCE BY: e

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED

08/02/19  APA Follow-up regarding pending agenda items. 0.20 hrs

08/05/19 APA Follow-up on agenda items; research GMS online regarding executed 0.40 hrs
documents.

08/06/19 APA Prepare e-mail to district manager regarding updated proposal from landscape 2.40 hrs

contractor; prepare landscape maintenance agreement; research secretary of
state regarding landscape contractor,

08/07/19  APA Follow-up agenda items; review GMS records online regarding documents. 0.20 hrs
08/13/19 APA Analyze updated scope of services; finalize agreement with Floralawn regarding 0.80 hrs
landscape maintenance services.
08/14/19 APA Research GMS records online regarding agenda follow-up items, 0.40 hrs
08/20/19  APA Prepare agenda memorandum to board regarding amended and restated rules 1.40 hrs
of procedure; prepare same, notices, and resolution adopting same.
08/22/19 APA Research GMS records online; follow-up on agenda items. 0.50 hrs
08/23/19 SRS Prepare amended and restated rules of procedure. 0.20 hrs
08/23/19 APA Finalize memorandum to board regarding amended rules of procedure; prepare 0.80 hrs
e-mail to district and provide documents regarding same for next agenda,
08/27/19 APA Follow-up with district on pending items. - 0.20 hrs
08/30/18 MCE Research and revise rules of procedure; review memorandum to district 0.20 hrs
regarding same.
Total fees for this matter $998,50

MATTER SUMMARY



Painciana West CDD - General C Bifl No. 110046 Page 2

Papp, Annie M. - Paralegal 7.10 hrs 125 /hr $887.50
Eckert, Michael C. 0.20 hrs { 310 /hr $62.00
Sandy, Sarah R. 0.20 hrs 3 245 /hr $49.00
TOTAL FEES $998.50

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER $998.50

LLING SUMMARY

Papp, Annie M. - Paralegal 7.10 hrs 125 /hr $887.50
Eckert, Michae! C. 0.20 hrs 310 /hr $62.00
Sandy, Sarah R. 0.20 hrs 245 /hr $49.00
TOTAL FEES $9983,50

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL $998.50

Please include the bill number on your check.



l

gat consultants

George Flint
Governmental Management Services
9145 Narcoossee Rd Ste A206
Orlando, FL 32827

003
Professional Personnel

A171207.00
i rough Februa

INVOICE

I ECEIVE
SEP i, W
BY: e

Oriando

618 E. South Street, Suite 700

Orlando, FL 32801

February 28, 2019
Project No:
Invoice No:

Al171207.00
2135249

Poinciana West Community Development District Engineering Services

16, 201

2019 General Support

Engineering Director/Senior Director

Leo, Kathleen
Totals

Total Labor

Reimbursable Expenses
Gas Expense & Mileage

Hours

3.00
3.00

Total Reimbursables

Billing Limits
Total Billings
Limit
Remaining

R ()
-0 -53-

Current
961.56

{ntesim Ens- Svues — EH\W

Rate Amount
295.00 885.00
885.00
76.56
1.0 times 76.56
Prior To-Date
1,180.00 2,141.56
20,000.00
17,858.44
Total this Task
Total this Invoice

885.00

76.56

$961.56

$961,56

T 407.423.8398
F 407.843.1070

gaiconsultanis.com



Project A171207.00

Poinciana West Community Development Dis

Invoice

2135249

Billing Backup

Thursday, February 28, 2019

GAI Consultants, Inc. Invoice 2135249 Dated 2/28/2019 3:08:18 PM
Project A171207.00 Poinciana West Community Development District Engmeering Services'
Task 003 2019 General Support
Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount
Engineering Director/Senior Director
04136 Leo, Kathleen 1/30/2019 .50 295.00 147.50
Field discussion
04136 Leo, Kathleen 2/6/2019 2.00 295.00 590.00
Field Meeting
04136 Leo, Kathleen 2/11/2019 .50 295.00 147.50
Email review
Totals 3.00 885.00
Total Labor 885.00
Reimbursable Expenses
Gas Expense & Mileage
EX 0082998 1/16/2019 Leo, Kathleen / to PWCDD 25.52
EX 0082998 2/6/2019 Leo, Kathleen / to PWCDD 51.04
Total Reimbursables 1.0 times 76.56 76.56
Total this Task $961.56
Total this Project $961.56
Total this Report $961.56

gaiconsultants.com

Page 2



Detailed Expense Report

Thursday, February 28, 2019

2:25:08 PM
GAI Consultants, Inc.
Employee 04136 Leo, Kathleen '
Signed Electronically by: Leg,Kathleen 2/13/2019 5:22:40 PM
Approved Electronically by: Nettuno, Gregory T 2/18/2019 12:28:06 PM
Profit Center G:1:8C:00:000
Expense Report: Period Ending 2/8/19 Report Date: 2/8/2019
Line Date Category Description Project Task Sub Bil  Account Amount
Task
1 14232019 L . INFCM34.10 010 L] 78500 0 b=
Community Business Davelopment
Business Reason: | Each Person: |
Y
2 2/4/2019 ‘ B INFCM34.10 010 [0 7es.00 0 2=
Community Business Development
Business Reason: [N Each Person- .
candidate
3 27/2019 L 7= =] INFCM34.10 010 [0 7es00 0 =y
Community Business Development
Business Reason: i Each Person:“
4 12/26/2018 Professional INFCM28.10 010 [ 77700 tsci
Registration & - D
Due
Community Non-Project
Business Heason‘-._
& 1/31/2019 Parking & Tolls ‘ INFCM34.10 010 D 778.00 D -
Community Business Development
Business Reason: [
presentation
8  1/9r019 F INFCM28.10 010 O 7as00 ) ]
Community Non-Project
Business Heasom:-
7 12/26/2018 Professional INFCM34.10 010 O 77700 0 jrrru]
Registration &
Due
Community Business Davelopment
8 2/6/2019 ¢ Mileage to PWCDD A171207.00 003 001 553.00 51.04
Poinciana West Community Development
Dis
Business Reason: to PWCDD Dry Ponds Travel From/To: Orl GAI to Travel: 88.00 mi @ 0.580
PWCDD
9  1/16/2019 * Mileage Bs== A171208.00 004 01 553.00 =
Poinciana Community Development
District
Business Reason: [N Travel From/To: One way split Travel: 44.00 mi @ 0.580
v7.6.730 (HUBBANS) - Page {1of2



Detailed Expense Report

Thursday, February 28, 2019

2:25:08 PM
GAIl Consutltants, Inc. "
Employee 04136 Leo, Kathieen
Signed Electronically by: Leo,Kathleen 2/13/2019 5:22:40 PM
Approved Electronically by: Nettuno, Gregory T 2/18/2019 12:28:06 PM
Profit Center G:I:SC:00:000
Expense Report: Period Ending 2/8/19 Report Date; 2/8/2019
Line Date Category Description Project Task Sub Bill  Account Amount
Task
10 1/16/2019 * Mileage 1o PWCDD A171207.00 003 001 553.00 2552
Poinciana West Community Development
Dis
Business Reason: to CDD Board Meeting Travel From/To: one way split Travel: 44.00 mi @ 0,580
11 1114/2019 * Mileage B==1 A181092.02 999 553.00 [5=55]
Business Reason: S Travel From/To: SR Travel: 50.00 mi @ 0.560
Total Expenses =1
Amount Advanced
Total Due -
v7.6.730 (HUBBANS) - Page 2 of 2



Insurance & Risk Advisors

Poinciana West Community Development District
clo Government Management Services, LLC

1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E

St. Coud, FL 34771

Please detach and

Customer: Poinciana West Community Development District

NYOQICE

Customer | Poinciana West Community
=F | Development District
972
- | 09/25/2019
. | Kristina Rudez
:Eiugn.‘,‘;ph‘ﬁ.’ 1 of 1

55 mPaymentiinl’onnahon E O NS oL Ty

7,000.00

Paymentfor; o Inveoice#9889

100118358

with payment

Thank You

linvolced | " Effective A |Sv S Transaction® =% A A v Daescription! 1T e = 0 WA mounts -
Policy #100119358 10/01/2019 107317 020
Florida Insurance Alliance

0889 | 10/01/201¢ | New business Package - New business 7,000.00
Due Date: 9/25/2019
3o 1SS~
GLL'\ i./\.: cw‘a‘ [?wl'.‘)i e bm(-‘ “C S
ECEIVE
\ w3 \
ok
SEP 25 2118
BY: o
L";h;rr?' Total
$ 7.000.00
Thank You
FOR PAYMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT:
Egls insurance Advisors LLC, Fifth Third Wholesale Lockbox, Lockbox #234021, 4900 W. 95th Sf Oakiawn, IL 60453

Remit Payment To: Egis Insurance Advisors, LLC (321)233-9939 f_; 3 Q_ate .qﬂn

Lockbox 234021 PO Box 84021

Chicago, IL_60689-4002 sclimer@sgisadvisors.com 09/25/2018




7 INVOICE

gail consultants

RE@EEVE

r S A
SEP-3 0 Mg
George Fiint
Governmental Management Services
1408 Hamlin Ave Unit E
St. Cloud, FL 34771

Project A171207.00

Wt Y s bbb ) S A s

Oriando
618 E. South Street, Suite 700
Orando, FL 32801

T 407.423.8398
F 407.843.1070

September 28, 2019
Praject No:
Invoice No:

A171207.00
2142955

Poinciana West Community Development District Engineering Services

Erofessional Services Through Septe L2 018 e e

Task 003 2019 General Support
Professional Personnel
Hours
Engineering Director/Senior Director
Leo, Kathleen 4.50
Totals 4.50
Total Labor
Billing Limits Current
Total Billings 1,327.50
Limit
Remaining
Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
2135249 2/28/2019 961,56
Total 961.56

Rate Amount
295.00 1,327.50
1,327.50
1,327.50
Prior To-Date
6,465.46 7,792,96
20,000.00
12,207.04
Total this Task $1,327.50
Total this Invoice $1,327.50
16
l = »
3o H3- 30
Inteam £
'J\‘(_.f‘ STVC& o~ %QP\C{

gaiconsultants.com



Project

A171207.00

Poinciana West Community Development Dis

Invoice 2142955

Billing Backup

GAI Consultants, Inc.

Invoice 2142955 Dated 9/28/2019

Saturday, September 28, 2019

Project
Task

Al171207.00

3:10:02 PM

Poinciana West Community Development District Engineering Services

003
Professional Personnel

2019 General Support

Engineering Director/Senior Director
Leo, Kathleen
Pond conveyance discussion w/CDD team
Leo, Kathleen
agenda call & meeting prep
Leo, Kathleen

04136

04136

04136

Meeting

Totals
Total Labor

9/5/2019
9/10/2019

9/18/2019

Hours

50

.50

3.50

4,50

Rate Amount
295.00 147.50
295.00 147.50
295.00 1,032.50

1,327.50
Total this Task

Total this Project

Total this Report

1,327.50

$1,327.50
$1,327.50

$1,327.50

gaiconsultanis.com

Page 2



floralawn 2, LLC

Premier Lawn & Pest

Invoice

P.0. Box 91597 Date Invoice #
Lakeland, FL 33804 10/1/2019 4302
i
Bill To

Poinciana West Community Development Dist »

¢/o Governmental Management Services E @ E E v E il

‘Central Florida, LLC i P i

1408 Hamlin Avenue Unit B SEP-3 g1

St. Cloud, F134771

BY:
P.C. No. Terms Project
Due on receipt
Quantity Description Rate Amount
1 | Monthly Lawn Maintenance per original contract - November 2016 - Poinciana West 4,691.16 4,691,16
CDD
Billing for October 2019 :
K7 1-030-9%%-463
Thank you for your business,
Total $4691.16 |
Corporate Office Solivita Fax E-mail Web Site
(863) 668-0494 (863) 225-9563 info@floralawn.com www.floralawn.com




GMS-Central Florida LLC

9145 Narcoossee Rd
Suite A206
Orlando, FL 32827

Invoice

Invoice #: CF0315

Invoice Date: 10/2/2019
- Due Date: 11/1/2019
BIll To: IE) ECEIWVE®R
Poinciana West CDD M ar n -
9145 Narcoossee Road S
Suite A206
Orlando, FL. 32827 o L id
Hours/Qty Description Rate Amount
Domain 14.00 14.00
For the Period Ending June 2019.
]
Demasa Junld -
(-3 B¢h-352
Total - $14.00




THE LEDGER

LEGAL ADVERTISING INVOICE NUMBER

FEDERAL ID # 47 2464860 L060G0JOS5J

BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER

4

BILLED ACEOUNT NAME AND ADDRESS TREMITTANGE ADORESS
STACIE
POINCIANA WEST CDD LAKELAND LEDGER PUBLISHING
135 W CENTRAL BLVD STE 320 PO BOX 913004
ORLANDO, FL 32801 ORLANDO, FL 32891
PLEASE RETURN THIS INVOICE ALONG WTH YOUR REMITTANCE
NEWSPAPER
DATE REFERENCE Description Size PAID NET AMOUNT
\/9/11/2018[  LOBOG0JOSJ |BOARD MEETING 1X57 $ 27650
SEP 30 2019
GMS-CF, LLC
H1I0  1-3le-9%2-HG
Nek. o€ Mazkng  0%/1%|(9
BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER: 758300
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE
$276.50




AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
THE LEDGER
Lakeland, Polk County, Florida

STATE OF FLORIDA)
COUNTY OF POLK)

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared Brandy Arnett
who on oath says that she is an Account Executive for Advertising
at The Ledger, the owner of The Ledger, a daily newspaper
published at Lakeland in Polk County, Florida; that the attached
copy of advertisement, being a

NOTICE OF MEETING

In the matter of POINCIANA WEST CDD

Concerning BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

was published in said newspaper in the issues of

9-11 2019

Affiant further says that said The Ledger is a newspaper published
at Lakeland, in said Polkk County, Florida, and that the. said
newspaper has heretofore been continuousty published in said Polk
County Florida, daily, and has been entered as second class matter
at the post office in Lakeland, in said Polk County, Florida, for a
period of one year mext preceding the first publication of the
attached copy of advertisement; and affiant firther says that she has
neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation any
discount, rebate, commission or refund for the purpose of securing
this advertisement for publication in the said newspaper.

Advertising Account Executive
‘Who is personally known to me.

Signed.. /...

Swom to and subscribed before me this 11* day of September, A.D. 2019

PATRICIA ANN ROUSE
MY COMMISSION # GG 003762
§ EXPIRES: October 17, 2020
ZEH3" Bonded Thru Nolary Public Undsrwriters




GMS-Central Florida, LLC
1001 Bradford Way
Kingston, TN 37763

Invoice

Invoice #: 52
Invoice Date: 10/1/19
Due Date: 10/1/19

Bill To: GE@EEVEW ;
Poinciana West CDD = 3 .n L P.O. Number:
135 West Central BLvd OCT 197
Suite 320
Orlando, FL 32801
BY:
Description HoursiQty Rate Amount
Management Fees - October 2019 3io-513-2Y 3,750.00 3,750.00
Information Technology - October 2019 3tu-513.352 125.00
Dissemination Agent Services - October 2019 I10-5F3D 416.67
Office Supplies 20 - 31354 18.34
Postage Ao -1 ya 28.77
Copies 3W6-313 yas 141.38
B | *
Total $4,480.16
Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due

$4,480.16




GMS-Central Florida, LL.C =
1001 Bradford Way Invoice
Kingston, TN 37763

Invoice #: 53
Invoice Date; 10/1/19
Due Date: 10/1/19

Bill To: . . oo N C:sef
Poinciana West CDD ﬁ E @ E E v 1E; w .O. Number:
135 West Central BLvd |

Suite 320 - Ania

Orlando, FL 32801 oct ifig

i it s o S Moy Y W Kot bk s v

Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount

Field Management - October 2019 833.33 833.33

H® (-3lo-5¥-12

Fretd H“W -Oet\q

Total $833.33

Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due $833.33




Florida Depanment of Economic Opgortumty, Special District Accountability Program
2019/2020 Spacial District Fee Invoice and Update Form
Required by Sections 189 064 and 189.018, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 3C-24, Florlda Admimstratnve Code

Inyoice No.: 74356 . - - ‘  Date Invoiced: 10101/2019
Annual Fee: $17500 | Late Fee: $0.00 i _BGEO‘V“ 1, $0.0¢ 00 70“1%%*“ by 12/02/20 12/02/2019; 19: $175.00
STEP 1: Review the following information, make changes directly on ths form, and slgn and date:
1. Special District’s Name, Rogistered Agent's Name, and Registered Office Address:

“FLORIDA DEPAR'mmw
Polnciana West Community Development District ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

Mr, Michael Eckert
Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.

119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 *g “3lo-s13.5y
Tallahassee, FL 32301 Moo
_ , Speciok Digrg & fex
2. Toléphone; ’ (850} 2227500
3. Fax: (850) 224-8551
4. Emall:” meckeri@hgslaw.com
5, Status: Independent
6. Governing Body: Elacted
7. Website Address: Poinclanawaestedd.org
8. County(ies): Polk
9. Function(s): Community Devalopment
10. Boundary Map on File: 1111312008 RECEIVED
11. Creatlon Document on File: 11/13/2006
12. Date Established: 10/06/2006
13. Croation Method: Local Ordinance BT 1 0 2018
14. Local Governing Authority: Polk County
15. Croation Document(s): County Ordinances 2006-052 and 2007-043 BY:
16. Statutory Authority: Chapter 190, Florida Statutes
17. Authorlty to issue Bonds: Yes
18, Revenue Source(s): Assessments
19. Most Recent Update: 10/04/2018
| do hereby certify that the information %e m@_ & oted if necessary) is acourate and compiete as of this date.
Registered Agent's Signature: " s ﬁ::%_ — oo . Date_ _ 1% l b f l T

STEP 2: Pay the annual fee or certify eligibility for the zero foe;
a. Pay the Annual Fee: Pay the annual fee online by following the instructions at www.Floridajobs.arg/SpecialDistrictFee or by check
payabls to the Department of Economic Opportunity.
b. Or, Certify Eiigibliity for the Zero Fee: By initizling each of the following items, |, the above signed registered agent, do hereby
cortify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, ALL of the following statements contalned herein and on any attachments
hereto afe rue, comect, complets, and made In good faith as of this date. | understand that any Information 1 give may be verified.
— This spacial district and its Cartifled Public Accountant determined the special district is not a component unit of a local
general-purpose government.
2. This special district is in compliance with the reporting requiramants of the Department of Financial Services.
3.____ This special district reported $3,000 or less in annual revenuss to the Dspartment of Financlal Services on its Fiscal Year

2017/2018 Annual Financlal Report (if created since then, attach an Income statement verifying $3,000 or less in revenues),
Depaitment Use Only: Approved:____ Danied; Reason:,
STEP 3: Make a copy of this form for your records.

STEP 4: Mall ihis form and payment {if paying by check) to the Department of Ecanomic Opporttunity, Bureau of Budget Management,
107 E. Madison Strest, MSC 120, Tallshassee, FL 32390-4124. Direct any questions to (850) 717-8430.




Lake & Wetland Management Orlando Inc
5301 N. Federal Highway, Suite 204

Y

“t‘*__/’“ Boca Raton, FL 33487

Bifl To

Poincian West CDD
1408 Hamlin Avenue
Unit E

$t.Cloud, FL 34771

nvoice

Date

Invoice #

9/26/2019

1433

AT S sy e e

pgﬁggw&g
I GrT 10 ims

~y g
4

T st ot 2 e

Account #

Terms

Ix

Due on receipt

Quantity

Description

Rate

Amount

Final Deposit
Dredgesox Repair for (2) Mitered Ends:
**Repair Approximately 50 linear feet of lake bank

**Prep areas of trash / debris for Dredgesox
**Fill Dredgesox with organic media dredged from the lake

**Material consist of the following: Dredgesox, Wooden Stakes, Anchor rope and will

import & coarse sand.
**Includes sod installation

COMPLETED
T T -G8 -uyy
thbee - Emgeu,\ f ies

72 ﬂ

(T

Storm Structure Repairs

2,500.00

2,500.00

Thank you for your business.

For billing questions, please contact {561) 303-1013.

For service questions, please contact (407) 985-4263.

Total

$2,500.00

Payments/Credits

$0.00

Balance Due

$2,500.00




Page: 1(1)
www.clarke.com
TOLL-FREE: 800-323-5727
INVO' CE PHONE: 630-884-2000
AR Emaii: accountsreceivable@clarke.com,
AR Dept. Ext: 3139

c.g C tQ r I<e Payment Instructions: Clarke Environmantal Masariitn Mananamant Ing

Check: 16300 Collections Center Drive, Chicago, IL. 60693

Invoice # 001009382
Invoice Date: 10/15/19

Customer #: PO7800 Terms: Net 30 Days
Customer PO #  NA Due Date: 11/14/19
B
[ Poinciana West Community Dev. Dlst (@
L 1408 Hamlin Ave, Unit E B
L [
St. Cloud, FL 34771-8588 o
T
o George Flint S
Agreementno 1000002502 Consultant Pete Daglomine - Salesman
[ Description Total
CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO MANAGEMENT SERVICE
W9's can be found on our website at www.clarke.com
Service for October 2019
ooy Qrder total 1,983.33

1~ 2a0-F3% -4 T\
Megyite Mogon v Ot

Clarke Environmental

Mosquito Management, inc. is a Clarke Company

“** We accept ACH Payments *** 1,983.33

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes unless a valid exemption certificate is Emalled to: accountsreceivable@clarke.com or faxed to: 630-672-7439

Helping make communities around the world more livable, safe and comfartable.



So clarike

INVOICE

Page: 1(1)
www.clarks.com
TOLL-FREE: B00-323-5727
PHONE: 630-894-2000

AR Emall: accountsreceivable@clarke.com,

AR Dept. Ext.: 3139

Pavmant Instructinns' Ciarke Aauatic Services, Inc.

Check: 16308 Collections Center Drive, Chicago, IL 60693

Invoice # 000005068
Invoice Date: 10/15/19
Customer #: 088096 Terms: Net 30 Days
Customer PO #: Due Date: 11/14/19
o : .
| Poinciana West Community Dev. Dist. 3N
L 1408 Hamlin Avenue i 18
L UnitE §in] i
St. Cloud, FL 34771-8588
T -
0 George Flint O
Agreement no 1000002499 Consultant Pete Deglomine - Salesman
L Description Total

CLARKE AQUATIC MAINTENANCE SERVICES

W9's can be found on our website at www.clarke.com

Service for October 2019

Order total 4,750.00
#Jo
(~300~B3r<(7
Papadic Maint. Seue Getl
Clarke Aquatic Services, Inc. is a Clarke Company
*** We accept ACH Payments ** 4,750.00

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes unless a valid exemption certificate is Emalled to: accountsreceivable@clarke.com or faxed fo: 630-672-7439

Helping make communities around the world more livable, safe and comfortabls.



Hopping Green & Sams

Attomeys and Counsalors

119 S. Monros Straet, Ste. 300
£.0. Box 6528
Tallahassas, FL 32314
850.222.7500

==EssSTERskmm=s == szmmomommmrsns STATEMENT ==zz=== e 1 T T T T Ty

October 16, 2019
Polnctana West Community Development District Bill Number. 110480
George Flint, District Manager Billed through 09/30/2019
Governmental Management Services

1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E . Y ey,
St. Cloud, FL 34771 1510 W I R -3le K33

Gm‘('c%x\{?’\kwj Mt Sep

General Counsel/Monthly Meeting

PWCDD 00001 MCE Yo

F { 8 .ES REND

09/10/19 SRS Attend agenda conference call; research merger; confer with Carpenter 1.10 hrs
tegarding same,

09/10/19 APA Prepare document notebook regarding merger of district; update district status 0.80 hrs
chart.

09/11/19 APA Prepare agenda memerandum. 0.20 hrs

09/12/19 SRS Review draft meeting minutes. 0.30 hrs

09/13/19 SRS Prepare Floralawn agreement. 0.40 hrs

09/13/19 APA Analyze agenda package; p]-epare agenda memorandum and meeting " 1.80 hrs
notebook.

09/16/19 SRS Prepare Floralawn agreement. 0.30 hrs

09/16/19  APA Finalize landscape maintenance agreement; update vendor agreement chart. 1,20 hrs

09/17/19 MCE Travel to board meeting. 3.00 hrs

059/17/19 MCE Prepare for board meeting; confer with Flint; confer with board regarding 0.60 hrs
landscape agreement.

09/17/19 APA Update merger documents notebook; prepare for board meeting. 0.50 hrs

09/18/19 MCE Review merger history and documents; prepare for and attend board meeting; 3.40 hrs
follow-up from board meeting.

09/18/19  APA Review landscape agreement regarding pond banks. 0.50 hrs

09/19/19 APA Research property appraiser website regarding ponds owned by district, piat 2.80 hrs

and tract information; prepare exhibit to landscape maintenance agreement
regarding identifled pond banks; revise same.

09/20/19 MCE Review merger issues; confer with Flint and Carpenter. 0.50 hrs



Poindana West CDD - Generat C Bilt No. 110480 Page 2
09/21/19 MCE Revise rules of procedure; distribute to board; revise landscape maintenance 0.60 hrs
agreement per LaRue request; research ponds and other parcels owned by
district.
09/23/18 MCE Review maintenance map; confer with Lee, 0.20 hrs
09/23/19 APA Confer with district engineer; prepare revisions to landscape maintenance 1.20 hrs
agreement and exhibits.
09/24/19 MCE Confer with Carpenter and Fiint regarding merger. 0.40 hrs
09/24/19 APA Follow-up to agenda items. 0.20 hrs
09/25/19 MCE Revise landscape agreement and distribute. 0.40 hrs
09/25/19  APA Finalize Floralawn landscape maintenance agreement and exhibits; prepare 1.80 hrs
redline for board regarding revisians to sare.
09/30/18 MCE Review LaRue revisions; confer with staff regarding map updates and contract 0.20 hrs
revisions.
Total fees for this matter ~$4,772.50
ISB MEN
Document Reproduction 48,50
Travel 403.15
Trave! - Meals 24.30
Total disbursements for this matter $475.95
MATTER [
Papp, Annie M. - Paralegal 11.00 hrs 125 /hr $1,375.00
Eckert, Michael C. 9.30 hrs 310 /hr $2,883.00
Sandy, Sarah R. 2.10 hrs 245 [hr $514.50
TOTAL FEES $4,772.50
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $475.95
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER $5,248.45
LLING UMMARY
Papp, Annie M. - Paralegal 11.00 hrs 125 /hr $1,375.00
Eckert, Michael C. 9.30 hrs 310 /br $2,883.00
Sandy, Sarah R, 2,10 hrs 245 /hr $514.50
TOTAL FEES $4,772.50
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $475.95

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL

$5,248.45



Polnciana West CDD - General C Bilt No. 110480 Page 3




1 BILLING PERIOD

2

ADVERTISER / CLIENT NAME

TheLedger BB @519

09/02/19 - 09/29/19

POINCI ANA WEST CDD

LAKELAND,FL - WINTER HAVEN, FL

TEL: (866) 470-7133 » FAX; (863) 802-7825

FEDERAL 1D#: 47-2464860

23 TOTALAMOUNTDUE  *UNAPPLIED AMGUNT TERMS OF PAYMENT
607.14 NET 15 DAYS

21 CURRENTAMOUNT DUE | 22 30 DAYS 60 DAYS OVER 90 DAYS
607.14 .00 .00 .00

ADVERTISING INVOICE and STATEMENT

24 INVOICE NUMBER 4 PAGE# | 5 BILLING DATE 6 BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER | 7 ADVERTISER/ CLIENT NUMBER .
1031835 1 09/29/19
8 8 - 198

STACIE VANDERBI LT

135 W LVD STE 320
ORLANDO FL 32801 2435

NFAR A

)

REMITTANCE ADDRESS

THE LEDGER / NEWS CHIEF

RO.BOX 913

ORLANDO, FL 32891 -3004

210103143500000607149

PLEASE DETAGH AND RETURN UPPER PORTION WITH YOUR REMITTANCE

10 DATE |11 NEWSPAPER REFERENCE [1243#3 DESCRIPTION - OTHER COMMENTS/CHARGES % mroies | & TIMESRUN 19 GROSSAMOUNT [ 20 NET AMOUNT
\/8}/01 BALANCE FORWARD -,01
9/11 |LO60G0OJO5J NOTICE OF MEETING PO 1x57L 1 276.50 276.50
e LEGAL LINE AD INCIANA WEST COMMUNI
LKL/FULL,LNET/FULL
hotice { o)
0001 LO60G0OJO5J
‘*O/ Stacie
9/21 |L06060J0J4 NOTICE OF MEETING DA 1x65L 1 330.65 330.65
[ LEGAL LINE AD TES POINCIANA WEST ¢
LKL/FULL LNET/FULL
noti
0001 Los0s04044 RECEIVEID
* - o234
0 ¢ 0CT ({7 2019
’ v
Mot of Fyge Hacking hakes BY. 4 ..
WE APPRECIATE YOUR CONTINUED BUSINESS. CONTACT YOUR ACQT
REP DIRECTLY R{GARDING AD BILLING DlSCREPAN_aIES.
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT  AGING OF PAST DUE AGCOLNTS edl™
21_CURRENT NETAMOUNT OUE | 22 30 DAYS 60 DAYS OVER 90 DAYS *UNAPPLIED AMOUNT |23 TOTALAMOUNT DUE
607.14 .00 .00 .00 607.14
NGRS News CHIEF Questions on this Invoice call;
; Tel: (866) 470-7133 Fax: (863) 802-7825 GateHouse Media"
24 25
S OIEENUNBER 1 BILLING PERIOD 6 _BILLEDACCOUNTNUMBER | 7 ADVERTISER/CLEENTNUMBER | 2 ADVERTISER ! CLIENT NAME

758309

1031835 09/02/19 - 09/29/19

POINCIANA WEST CDD




10/21/2019 Florida Public Notices: Search for Public and Legal Notices in FL. newspapers

Ledger, The
Sept. 21, 2019
Miscellaneous Notices

NOTICE OF MEETING DATES

POINCIANA WEST

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

DISTRICT

The Board of Supervisors of the Poinciana West Community Development District will hold the
regularly scheduled public meetings for Fiscal Year 2020 at 9:30 a.m. in the Starlite Baliroom at
384 Village Drive, Poinciana, Florida 34759 on the third Wednesday of the month as follows
unless indicated otherwise:

November 20, 2019

January 15, 2020

March 18, 2020

May 20, 2020

Exception: July 22, 2020

September 16, 2020

The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of
Florida Law for Community Development Districts. A copy of the agenda for a particular
meeting may be obtained from the District Manager at 135 W. Central Bivd., Suite 320, Orlando
FL 32801.

A meeting may be continued to a date, time, and place to be specified on the record at that
meeting. There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors may participate by
telephone.

I

Any person requiring special accommodations at these meetings because of a disability or
physical impairment should contact the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the
meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by
dialing 7-1-1 or 1-800-955-8770, for aid in contacting the District Office.

Each person who decides to appeal any action taken at these meetings is advised that person
will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon
which such appeal is to be based.

George S. Flint

Governmental Management Services - Central Florida, LLC

District Manager

L4013 9-21; 2019 JOJ4

https://floridapublicnotices comv/search/archive/ 172



G INVOICE

gai consultants

George Flint

Governmental Management Services
1408 Hamiin Ave Unit E

St. Cloud, FL 34771

Project A171207.00

Task 003
Professional Personnel

L%E@EEVE ”

I

§
Iap

Orlando . T 407.423.8398
618 E. South Street, Suite 700 F 407.843.1070
Orlando, FL. 32801

October 24, 2019
Project No: A171207.00
Involce No: 2143907

Poinciana West Community Development District Engineering Services

Erofessiopal Senvices Through Qctober 19,2019 _ _ _ _ _ _

2019 General Support

Hours

Engineering Director/Senior Director

Leo, Kathleen

Totals
Total Labor
Bifling Limits
Total Billings
Limit
Remaining
#(Q

| =A0-O13-31

Intenm Eng + Seves -

1.00
1.00

Current
295.00

OeX\Q

Rate Amount
295.00 295.00
295.00
295.00
Prior To-Date
7,792.96 8,087.96
20,000.00
11,912.04
Total this Task $295.00
Total this Invoice $295.00

gaiconsultants.com



Project A171207.00 Poinciana West Community Development Dis

Invoice 2143907

Billing Backup

Thursday, October 24, 2019

GAI Consultants, Inc. Invoice 2143907 Dated 10/24/2019 1:04:17 PM
Project A171207.00 Poinciana West Community Development District Engineering Services
Task 003 2019 General Support
Professional Personnel
Hours Rate . Amount
Engineering Director/Senior Director
04136 Leo, Kathleen 10/8/2019 1.00 295.00 295.00
Project review
Totals 1.00 295.00
Total Labor 295.00
Total this Task $295.00
Total this Project $295.00
Total this Report $295.00
gaiconsultants.com

Page 2



Hopping Green & Sams

Attomays and Counselors
118 8, Monroe Strest, Ste, 300
P.0. Box 6526
Taflahasses, FL 32314
850.222.7500
=== S=S=zzzm=msssossamsoszs==sz= STATEMENT R R RS S T N N e e e e ————
February 15, 2019
Poinciana West Cornmunity Development District Bill Number 105461
¢/o Governmental Management Services - Central Billed through 01/31/2019
Florida o
9145 Narcoossee Road, Suite A206 E@E E VE (-3 d (;w
rlando, FL 32827 . * 200 - 13-

nes - Czndu.g{m dog

AMENITIES - CONCLUSION (2019) BY:
PWCDD 00108 MCE

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED
01/03/19 DMS Research motion to tax costs and strategy with respect to same; analyze and 1.20 hrs
evaluate response to same.

01/04/19 DMS Revise and finalize motion for substitution; prepare e-mails to new counsel; 0.40 hrs
finalize and file motion,

01/07/19 DMS Research motion to tax. 1.30 hrs

01/08/19 DMS Evaluate and prepare memorandum regarding recovery of costs pursuant to 4.20 hrs

motion to tax; review and follow-up regarding Anderson affidavit; review local
and administrative rules regarding taxation motions,

01/09/19 DMS Follow-up regarding order regarding substitution, 0.30 hrs

01/10/19 DMS Review and revise memorandum regarding motion to tax costs; research same, 1.70 hrs

01/14/19 DMS Follow-up regarding motion for substitution. 0.10 hrs

01/15/19 DMS Check status of substitution. 0.10 hrs

01/17/19 DMS Confer with Stimler; review cost memorandum regarding same; confer with 0.90 hrs
Stimler.

01/23/19 DMS Review docket; prepare letter to Judge Selph regarding substitution. 0.50 hrs

01/30/19 DMS Review Stimler response; research strategy; prepare opposition to motion to 4.40 hrs
tax costs,

01/31/19 DMS Follow-up regarding motion for substitution. 0.10 hrs

Total fees for this matter $4,940.00
MATTER SUMMARY

Smith, Douglas M. 15.20 hrs 325 /hr $4,940.00



Amenities - Conclusion (2019) Bill No. 105461 Page 2
TOTAL FEES $4,940.00
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER $4,940.00
BILLING SUMMARY
Smith, Douglas M. 15.20 hrs 325 /thr $4,940.00
TOTAL FEES $4,940.00
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL $4,940.00

Please include the bill number on vour check.



e S T PP ===sms==ss=z==z STATEMENT =sss===mzecccosmomesme—=

Hopping Green & Sams

Altomsys and Counselors

119 8. Monroe Strest, Ste. 300
P.0. Box 6526
Tallahasses, FL 32314
850.222.7500

March 18, 2019

Poinciana West Community Development District
¢/o Governmental Management Services - Central

Bill Number 106128
Bilted through 02/28/2019

Florida
9145 Narcoossee Road, Suite A206 b
lando, Fl. 32827 -
Orlando, E@EEVE AMeaities ~Gonddusion Qo9
MAR 87118 =300 . (31.(0g
AMENITIES - CONCLUSION (2019) '
PWCDD 00108 MCE _
BY: e
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED
02/04/18 DMS Prepare opposition to motion to tax costs. 6.20 hrs
02/08/19 APA Research official records regarding recorded notice of nullification and 0.40 hrs
cancellation of amenity debt assessments.
Total fees for this matter $2,0565.00
MATTER SUMMARY
Papp, Annie M, - Paralegal 0.40 hrs 125 /hr $50.00
Smith, Douglas M. 6.20 hrs 325 /hr $2,015.00
TOTAL FEES $2,065.00
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER $2,065.00
BILLING S RY
Papp, Annie M. - Paralegal 0.40 hrs 125 /hr $50.00
Smith, Douglas M. 6.20 hrs 325 /hr $2,015.00
TOTAL FEES $2,065.00
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL $2,065.00

Please include the bill number on vour check,



Hopping Green & Sams
Attomeys and Counselats
118 8. Monros Strast, Ste. 300
P.0. Box 6526

Tallahasses, FL 32314
850.222.7500

————— STATEMENT ======== ====== s=====z===

Aprit 22, 2019
Poinciana West Community Development District R ({4 Bill Number 106712
¢/o Governmental Management Services - Central 360 13190 Billed through 03/31/2019
Fiorida - :
9145 Narcoossee Road, Suite A206 Awendtieow Conclaasion 2014
Orlando, FL 32827

AMENITIES - CONCLUSION (2019)
PWCDD 00108 MCE

i

=

=%
Py

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED BY:
03/08/19 DMS  Confer with Stimler. 0.10 hrs
03/11/19 DMS Confer with Stimler; follow-up regarding same. 0.30 hrs
03/15/19 DMS Prepare for and attend conference call with Carpenter, et. al.; follaw-up 0.30 hrs
regarding same.
03/18/19 DMS Research cost recovery under general cost statute in bond validation; revise 3.60 hrs
opposition brief regarding same; prepare discovery to Mann, Taylor, and Wynn,
Total fees for this matter $1,397.50
MATTER SUMMARY
Smith, Douglas M. 4.30 hrs 325 the $1,397.50
TOTAL FEES $1,397.50
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER “;1—,;-9- ;;;
BILLING SUMMARY
Smith, Douglas M. 4.30 hrs 325 /hr $1,397.50
TOTAL FEES $1,397.50
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL -$-i-,;9-;;;)

Please include the bill number on vour check,



Hopping Green & Sams

Attomeys and Counsalars
119 5. Monrae Strest, Sto, 500
P.0. Box 6526
Talishassee, FL 32314
850.222.7500
== ErssmsmsmEs= = STATEMENT ==zc=szrz=socsscssma—m= mmcscommse
May 31, 2019
Polnciana West Community Development District Bill Number 107813
c/o Governmental Management Services - Central Billed through 04/30/2019
Florida
9145 Narcoossee Road, Sulte A206 2 (Ha)
Orendo, FL 32827 Ateqities - Conthagon Jor9
i nEY e
; Ji s i -3z oo
AMENITIES - CONCLUSION (2019) 10 I.j
PWCDD 00108 MCE S
R PRO N VI RENDER .
04/02/19 DMS Research status. 0.20 hrs
04/16/19 MCE Confer with Case; confer with board regarding motion to tax costs; confer with 0.40 hrs
Carpenter; confer with Flint; review letter and filing from defendants.
04/16/19 DMS Review settlement correspondence. 0.10 hrs
04/24/19 DMS Prepare e-mall to Holder regarding discovery extension request. 0.20 hrs
Total fees for this matter $286.50
MATTER SUMMARY
Smith, Douglas M, 0.50 hrs 325 /hr $162.50
Eckert, Michae! C, 0.40 hrs 310 /hr $124.00
TOTAL FEES $286.50
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER $286.50
BILLING SUMMARY
Smith, Douglas M. 0.50 hrs 325 /hr $162.50
Eckert, Michael C, 0.40 hrs 310 /hr $124.00
TOTAL FEES $286,50
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL $286.50

Please include the bill number on vour check.



Hopping Green & Sams

Attomeys and Gounsalors
119 8. Monroe Streat, Ste. 300
P.0. Box 6526
Tallahasses, FL 32314
850.222.7500
memcesozzoma= SEssmESsEaSEEsSSTSsss STATEMENT s==s=s=s==s==scc=sczmscoeccmzmo====
June 21, 2015
Poinciana West Community Development District Bilt Number 108025
¢/o Governmental Management Services - Central Bilied through 05/31/2019
Florida
9145 Narcoossee Road, Suite A206 o 2 )
Orlando, FL. 32827 A o - )
e PR Mraitics "Q’“C‘-M&on dory
IJ\AE ; i i l
“300 -3} <y0q
AMENITIES - CONCLUSION (2019) 1
PWCDD 00108 MCE T e
FOR PROFESSTONAL SERVICES RENDERED
05/02/19 MCE Confer with Carpenter. 0.30 hrs

05/09/19 DMS Review motion to extend; prepare outline regarding response to same; evaluate 2.30 hrs
and follow up on strategies regarding hearing.

05/10/19 DMS Prepare opposition to motion for enlargement of time and motion to compel. 2.40 hrs

05/13/19 DMS Prepare opposition to extenslon motion; prepare outline regarding response to 1.40 hrs
same,

05/14/19 DMS Review correspondence follow-up regarding hearing on motion for 0.20 hrs
enlargement,

05/15/19 DMsS Prepare e-malis regarding service issues. 0.20 hrs

05/16/19 DMS Review and follow-up on corespondence; follow-up regarding setting of 0.80 hrs

hearing on motion to enlarge time; prepare e-mails to Stimler regarding same;
prepare e-mail to Anderson.

05/20/19 DMS Prepare letter to court regarding discovery order. 0.40 hrs
05/22/19 DMS Review opposition to proposed order; follow-up with Stimler; revise opposition 0.60 hrs
and motion to compel,
05/23/19 DMS Prepare e-malls to Stimler; review e-mails from Stimier. 0.20 hrs
05/24/19 DMS Review e-mail from Stimler; review correspondence from Anderson; follow-up 0.40 hrs
regarding same; confer with Stimler.
Total fees for this matter $2,985.50
MATTER SUMMARY
Smith, Douglas M, 8.90 hrs 325 fhr $2,892.50

Eckert, Michael C, 0.30 hrs 310 /hr $93.00



Amenities ~ Conclusion (2019) Bl No. 108025

Page 2

TOTAL FEES
LESS COURTESY DISCOUNT

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER
BILLIN Al

Smith, Douglas M.
Eckert, Michael C.

TOTAL FEES
LESS COURTESY DISCOUNT

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL

8.90 hrs
0.30 hrs

325 /jhr
310 /hr

Please include the bill number on vour check.

$2,985.50
$1,674.50 CR

Pmw ——— - —

$1,311.00

$2,892.50
$93.00

$2,985.50
$1,674.50 CR

$1,311.00



floralawn 2, LLC Invoice

Premier Lawn & Pest P.0. Box 91597 Date Invoice #
Lakeland, FL. 33804 11/1/2019 4497

Bill To

Poinciana West Community Development Dist
c/o Governmental Management Services
Central Flerida, LLC V.
‘1408 Hamlin Avenue Unit E
St. Cloud, F134771

,
P

P.0O. No. Terms Project

Due on receipt

Quantity : Degcription Rate Amount
1 Monthly Lawm Maintenance per original contract - November 2016 - Poinciana West 4,691.16 4,691.16
CDD
Biilihg forA'November 2019
]
|-350-933 HeR

Lan Modrkenance Niow &

Thank you for your business, |

Total $4,691.16 |

Corporate Office Solivita Fax E-mail Web Site

{863) 668-0494 (863) 225-9565 info@floralawn.com www. flosalawn.com




GMS-Central Florida, LLC '
1001 Bradford Way Invoice

Kingston, TN 37763

Invoice #: 55
Invoice Date: 11/1/19
Due Date: 14/1/19

Bill To: Case:
Poinciana West CDD P.Q. Number:
135 West Central BLvd

Sulte 320

Orlando, FL 32801

23] . . .
Description © i Hours/Qty i  Rate " Amount
Management Fees - November 2019 Bl - FUB - 3¢ 3,750.00 3,750.00
Information Technology -* November 2019 352 125.00 125.00
Dissemination Agent Services - November 2019 o153 416.67 416.67
Office Stipplies ~~ 777 ' Bl 0.33 0.33
Postage 42 26,66 26.66
Coples Hes” 1.20 1.20

Total $4,319.86

Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due $4,319.86




GMS-Central Florida, LL.C :
1001 Bradford Way Invoice

Kingston, TN 37763

Invoice #: 56
invoice Date: 11/1/19
Due Date: 11/1/19

Bill To: Case:
Polnclana West CDD P.O. Number:
135 West Central BLvd

Suite 320

Crlando, FL 32801

. | . .
Description ' HoursiQy ° Rate '/ Amount

Field Management - November2018 55,. 5 3%-/2 833.33 833.33

Total $833.33

Payments/Credits $0.00

Balance Due $833.33




Page: 1(1)

www.clarke.com

TOLL-FREE: 800-323-5727

INVO'CE PHONE: 6:30-894-2000
AR Emall: sccountsreceivable@clarke.com,

F o
cg C lo r I < e AR Dept, Ext.: 3139
. Payment {nstructions: Clarke Environmental Mosauito Manacement. inc.

Check: 16300 Collections Cenfer Drive, Chicago, IL 60693

invoice # 001009500
Invoice Date: 11/15/19

Customer #: P07800 Terms: Net 30 Days
Customer PO #  NA Due Date: 12/16/19
B

1 Poinciana West Community Dev. Dist. ; {
L 1408 Hamlin Ave, Unit E - :
L

St. Cloud, FL 34771-8588

Q -~

George Flint

Agreement no 1000002502 Consultant Pete Deglomine - Salesman

[ Description Total

CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO MANAGEMENT SERVICE

W8's can be found on our website at www.clarke.com
Service for November 2019

*e Order total 1,083.33
=338 -By 14
Mosquite Myurk Seny mnstg

(
. M eMCr
Aquut© M")f/ J

Clarke Environmental Mosquito Management, Inc. is a Clarke Company

»* We accept ACH Payments ** 1,983.33

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes unless a valid exemption certificate is Emailed ta: accountsreceivable@clarke.com or faxed to; 630-672-7439

Helping make communities around the world more livable, safe and comfortable.



Page: 1(1)
www.clarke.com
TOLL-FREE: 800-323-5727
IN vo I C E PHONE: 630-884-2000

AR Email: accountsracaivabla@clarke.com,

cg C lQ rl{e AR Dept. Ext.: 3139
. Pavmant Insinirtinne: Mladea Aaoas- . I

Check: 16308 Colfections Cenfer Drive, Chicago, /i. 60693 |

Invoice # 000005249
Invoice Date: 11/15/19

Customer #: 088096 Terms: Net 30 Days
Customer PO #: Due Date: 12/16/19
B

t Painciana West Community Dev, Dist.

L 1408 Hamlin Avenue i

L Unit E i
St. Cloud, FL 34771-8588

o~

George Flint

Agreement no 1000002499 Consultant Pete Deglomine - Salesman

[ Description Total

CLARKE AQUATIC MAINTENANCE SERVICES

W9's can be found on our website at www.clarke.com
Service for November 2019

#30 Order total 4,750.00
l‘3&0-533-cﬂ

Apaiic Megnt. Spve Aulg

Clarke Aquatic Services, Inc. is a Clarke Company

** We accept ACH Payments ™ 4,750.00

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes unless a valid exemption certificate is Emailed 1o: accountsreceivable@eclarke.com or faxed to: 630-672-7439

Helping make communities around the world more livable, safe and comfortable.



THE LEDGER

LEGAL ADVERTISING

FEDERAL |D # 47 2464860

INVOICE NUMBER

L060G0J261

BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER

BILLED ACCOUNT NAME AND ADDRESS

REMITTARCE AUDRESS

STACIE
POINCIANA WEST CDD

135 W CENTRAL BLVD STE 320
ORLANDO, FL 32801

LAKELAND LEDGER PUBLISHING

PO BOX 913004
ORLANDO, FL 32891

PLEASE RETURN THIS INVOICE ALONG WTH YOUR REMITTANCE

NEWSPAPER
DATE REFERENCE Description Size PAID NET AMOUNT
11/5/2019| LO60G0J261 |BOARD MEETING 1X71 $ 34184
2’/&-
RECEIVED
NOV 15 2019
B\‘Y: —————
o
3lo-513-4g
Mot . of Prose M\“"M&NAY
BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER: 758309
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE
$341.84

THE LEDGER, LEGAL ADVERTISING, PO BOX 408, LAKELAND, FL 33801




AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
THE LEDGER
Lakeland, Polk County, Florida

STATE OF FLORIDA)
COUNTY OF POLK)

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared Rhonda
Gentle, who on oath says that she is an Account Executive for
Advertising at The Ledger, the owner of The Ledger, a daily
newspaper published at Lakeland in Polk County, Florida; that the
attached copy of advertisement, being a

PUBLIC NOTICE

In the matter of _MEETING
Concerning POINCIANA WEST CDD
was published in said newspaper in the issues of

11-5-: 2019

Affiant further says that said The Ledger is a newspaper published
at Lakeland, in said Polk County, Florida, and that the said
newspaper has heretofore been continuously published in said Polk
County Florida, daily, and has been entered as second class matter
at the post office in Lakeland, in said Polk County, Florida, for a
period of one year next preceding the first publication of the
attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that she has
neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation any
discount, rebate, commission or refund for the purpose of securing
this advertisement for publication in the said newspaper.

ionda Gentle
dvertising Account Executive
‘Who is personally known to me.

Notary Public

e )

PATRICIA ANN RQUSE

& \ﬁ‘.'of&’&ﬁ--

i tos MY COMMISSION # GG 003762

EX) s2:F  EXPIRES: October 17, 2020
7585es% Bonded Thru Notary Public Undenvriters

ey
X dae,

]
:
g,
i
£7s

60,008, - 180,011
27895, 230 301, 95508, 20 5%
525, 255 20), aﬂ.mﬂs:jabmh.
207088 " 205 ook v ot
s (2019), i

%
é

11-5;.2019 L-J281




THE LEDGER

LEGAL ADVERTISING INVOICE NUMBER
FEDERAL ID # 47 2464860 L060G0J262

BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER

— BILLED ACCOUNT NAME AND ADDRESS REMITTANCE AuDRESS |
STACIE
POINCIANA WEST CDD LAKELAND LEDGER PUBLISHING
135 W CENTRAL BLVD STE 320 PO BOX 913004
ORLANDO, FL 32801 ORLANDO, FL 32891

PLEASE RETURN THIS INVOICE ALONG WTH YOUR REMITTANCE

NEWSPAPER
DATE REFERENCE Description Slze PAID NET AMOUNT

%/2019 LO60G0J262  [RULEMAKING NOTICE 1X 122L $ 57084

g//

wlo
C3e-33 -4y

Netice of Prales Mq)‘:ig

BILLED ACCOUNT NUMBER: 758309

TOTAL AMDUNT DUE

$579.84

THE LEDGER, LEGAL ADVERTISING, PO BOX 408, LAKELAND, FL 33801



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

THE LEDGER

Lakeland, Polk County, Florida

e

STATE OF FLORIDA)

COUNTY OF POLK)

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared Rhonda
Gentle, who on oath says that she is an Account Executive for
Advertising at The Ledger, the owner of The Ledger, a daily
newspaper published at Lakeland in Polk County, Florida; that the
attached copy of advertisement, being a

PUBLIC NOTICE

In the matter of _RULEMAKING

Concerning POINCIANA WEST CDD

was published in said newspaper in the issues of

11-6: 2019

Affiant further says that said The Ledger is a newspaper published
at Lakeland, in said Polk County, Florida, and that the said
newspaper has heretofore been continuously published in said Polk
County Florida, daily, and has been entered as second class matter
at the post office in Lakeland, in said Polk County, Florida, for a
period of one-year next preceding the first publication of the
attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that she has
neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation any
discount, rebate, commission or refund for the purpose of securing
this advertisement for publication in the said newspaper.

Swo

Advertising Account Executive
Who is personally known to me.

 and subscribed before me this 6th day of Noirember, AD. 2019

 PATRICIA ANN ROUSE
MY COMMISSION # GG 003762
EXPIRES: October 17,2020 .

“HEBFTSR Banded Thu Notary Public Underwiters

Faaeh b

T

- o e A i o o i " O e

&
£z

8
CHT I e

B gg
o5

it

]

3' és : B3 B _Eddg ;? oidzigRsieal, £82dgncial
yé Y s *:_5. g § E faiftl ol niatiay
sk !

:
:
2
5

'zg*- Bzke
5
38

i
g
&
3
§

i
il
i
§ 959

£]

:
:
g b l. =
{

it
¢l

i
I

136,208 | J262




SECTION 2



Poinciana West
Community Development District

Unaudited Financial Reporting

October 31, 2019

Cwveinmental
Management Services
P




Table of Contents

Balance Sheet

General Fund Income Statement

Debt Service Income Statement

Month to Month

FY20 Assessment Receipt Schedule




ASSETS:
CASH
OPERATING ACCOUNT - SUNTRUST
MONEY MARKET ACCOUNT
INVESTMENTS
SERIES 2017
RESERVE R1
RESERVE R2
REVENUE
REDEMPTION R1
REDEMPTION R2
DUE FROM DEVELOPER

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

FUND EQUITY:
FUND BALANCES:

RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE 2017
OPERATING RESERVE
UNASSIGNED

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY

Poinciana West
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
October 31, 2019

General Debt Service Totals
Fund Fund 2020
$50,933 $50,933
$491,578 $491,578
$392,483 $392,483
$122,278 $122,278
$283,141 $283,141
$5,890 $5,890
$1,568 $1,568
$10,001 $10,001
$552,512 $805,360 $1,357,872
$0
$805,360 $805,360
$65,156 $65,156
$487,356 $487,356
$552,512 $805,360 $1,357,872




REVENUES:

ASSESSMENTS - TAXCOLLECTOR
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:

SUPERVISOR FEES

FICA EXPENSE

ENGINEERING

ATTORNEY

ARBITRAGE

DISSEMINATION

ANNUAL AUDIT

TRUSTEE FEES

ASSESSMENT ADMINISTRATION
MANAGEMENT FEES

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
TELEPHONE

POSTAGE

PRINTING & BINDING

INSURANCE

LEGAL ADVERTISING

OTHER CURRENT CHARGES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

PROPERTY APPRAISER

DUES, LICENSES & SUBSCRIPTIONS

FIELD;
FIELD MANAGEMENT

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
AQUATIC CONTROL MAINTENANCE
AQUATIC MIDGE MANAGEMENT
R&M PLANT REPLACEMENT
STORM STRUCTURES REPAIRS
CONTINGENCY

CAPITALOUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Poinciana West
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For The Period Ending October 31,2019

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/19 THRU 10/31/19 VARIANCE
$291,294 S0 $0 S0
$4,500 $375 $356 ($19)
$295,794 $375 $356 (519)
$6,000 $500 $0 $500
$459 $38 $0 $38
$15,000 $1,250 $295 $955
$30,000 $2,500 $0 $2,500
$450 S0 $0 S0
$5,500 $458 $417 $42
53,415 S0 S0 $0
57,050 S0 $0 50
$5,000 5,000 $5,000 $0
$45,000 53,750 $3,750 $0
$1,500 $125 $125 $0
$100 $8 S0 $8
$1,500 $125 $29 496
$750 $63 $141 ($79)
$10,883 $10,883 $7,000 $3,883
$2,000 $167 $0 5167
$800 $67 576 ($9)
$200 $17 $18 {$2)
$3,100 $0 $0 S0
$175 $175 $175 $0
510,000 $833 5833 $0
$58,694 $4,891 $4,691 $200
$64,479 $5,373 $4,750 $623
$30,000 $2,500 $1,983 $517
$3,000 $250 50 $250
$10,000 $833 $0 $833
$10,000 5833 $0 $833
$10,000 $833 $0 $833
$335,055 $41,473 $29,284 $12,189
{$39,261) {$28,928)
$39,261 $516,284
50 $487,356

2




REVENUES:

ASSESSMENTS - TAX COLLECTOR

INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE
PROPERTY APPRAISER

SERIES 2017 R-1
INTEREST - 11/1
PRINCIPAL - 05/1
INTEREST - 05/1
SERIES 2017 R-2
INTEREST - 11/1
PRINCIPAL - 05/1
INTEREST - 05/1

TOTALEXPENDITURES

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)

FUNDBALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Poinciana West

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SERIES 2017
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
For The Period Ending October 31, 2019

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/19 THRU 10/31/19 VARIANCE
$1,050,687 50 $0 50
$1,000 $83 $944 $860
$1,051,687 $83 $944 $860
$11,200 $0 $0 S0
$190,011 $0 $0 $0
$405,000 $0 $0 $0
$190,011 $0 $0 $0
$72,582 $0 $0 $0
$90,000 $0 $0 50
$72,582 $0 $0 $0
$1,031,386 $0 $0 $0
$20,301 $944
$282,651 $804,417
$302,952 $805,360




|{826'325) [ [ [ 0% [ [ [3 [ 05 05 0$ [ 1 {SIUNLIANEXI)/SANNINIY SSDOXI

YBZ'67$ N [ 0% [5 [5 03 08 03 o 0s VBZ'6TS 1 STWNUANIIXT VIOL
05 [ 3 0s 0% [+ 3 03 03 0% 0% 0s 03 AVILNO TYLIdvD
05 05 (=3 s [+ 05 0% 03 03 0% 0% o 0 AONIDNILNOD
0§ [ 0% 05 0% 0§ ] 0 0s 0$ 05 £ 05 SHIYAIY STUNIINYLS WHOLS
05 [ os$ [:1 0% 0$ 0$ 3 0 0$ 0% 05 03 ANINDVIATY LNV RY
€86'TS [+ 0$ 0% 0$ "5 0s 05 0$ 0% 0% 05 €86'TS ANIWADVYNVIA IDAIN JILYVIDY
0s£'v [ [ 03 o 0% 0% [ [ 0% 08 [ 743 INYNILNIVIN W0YINOD IILVNADY
T69'%$ 0% [ [ oS 0% [ 0$ [ 0$ 03 0$ 16975 FONVNILNIVIY IVOSANYT
££8$ 0§ 0% 0s as [+ 03 oS 0s$ 0 0% 0s 33:13 ANIWIDYNYA 013

HgEr]
[1acs [ o 0$ 03 [V 03 05 0s s as 03 SLTS SNOILAIYDSBNS B SISNDA 'SINa
0 0% o [ 08 [ 0$ [ 0$ 03 o 0 0% YISIVEAY ALYILONd
818 0% [ o4 o 0$ 0s s [ [ 0% [ 81$ S3Nddns 391440
s 05 3 23 0s 05 oS o$ 0% 3 0$ s 9L$ SIDYYHI INIWHND YIHLO
o 3 0% 0$ [ 05 0s 3 0 s 03 0% 0% ONISILYIAAY TVOTT
000°£3 0$ 5 [ [ 0$ [ 0s [ 0 0§ 0% 000'2$ FINVINSNI
oS u$ o3 [ [ os 0 0 [ 3 03 [ 125 ONIONIS '8 ONLLNIYd
(743 0% 05 0$ 08 [ 43 o5 0% o$ 03 0s 63 3I9VISOd
o 03 [ 0$ 03 0% 0§ o3 0s os 0s 0% 23 ANOHATIAL
STIS 05 [ 0 [ 05 05 [+ os 0s 0$ [’ 5T1$ ADOTONHIAL NOILYWHOANI
052'¢$ [ 05 0$ [ 0§ 03 o os 0s s 0$ 05L°€$ 5333 INIWIOYNVIN
000's$ [ 05 0% 0% [ [ [+ o$ 0% 0% [ 000°s$ NOILVULSINKNGY LNIWSSISSY
0 0% 03 0s 03 [ 3 0 os 0$ 03 [ 0% $334 3315N¥L
3 os 0% 08 3 os o5 [+ 0$ 0$ 03 0$ 0s LANY WNNNY
an 0$ 03 s 05 [ 0 08 0% 0% 0s 3 fas NOILYNIAISSIT
[ 0$ 03 [ [ [+ 05 os [ 0$ 03 [+ 0s ELLETIE R
03 o$ 43 os 0s 0$ 0s 0s 3 o33 0$ [+ 3 AINYOLLY
S6Z8 [ 03 [ 0$ 03 0 0$ os 0$ 23 [:3 S62% ONIHIINIONI
0% 0% 0 0 0$ 03 03 3 -3 o5 0 [ [ 3SNIdX3 ¥IId
0$ 0% 29 [ 0s 03 [ oS (3 3 os 05 0$ 5334 YOSIAYIINS

FALGHLSININGY

STINLCNIAA

95E¢ 05 03 (3 05 05 (3 [ (3 [3 05 [ 958 ] S3NNIN3Y WLOL
95€$ as 05 0 o 0 03 a5 08 05 3 o5 95€8 LSIYILN)
£ [ 0 Qs 0$ as 0% 0% 0s 03 0$ 08 [ YOLDITI0D XVL - SINIWSSISSY

SINNIATE

1€10L 195 any Inf _unf ey iy = g4 uef’ 23 AON 20 1

1913s1Q Juawdojpaag Ajunwwo)
ISOM BUEBDUIOG



Poinciana West
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FY2020 RECEIPTS

MAINTENANCE

GROSS ASSESSMENTS $ 309,892.74
CERTIFIED NET ASSESSMENTS § 291,299.18
100%
GROSS ASSESSMENTS COMMISSIONS _ INTEREST _ NET ASSESSMENTS GENERAL
DATE DISTRIBUTION RECEIVED DISCOUNTS PAID INCOME RECEIVED FUND
11/14/19 ACH 5 1,11942] S 44.76 | 3 21.49 - 1,053.17 1,053.17
11/18/19 ACH 3 4,841.30 5 241.25]5 92.00 - 4,508.05 4,508.05
s - |8 - - - s - |3 =
- E - g - - g - 3 =
S S - — I EE -
- s FE - - [s - |3 -
- |3 - | - |8 - - I3 =
- - - - - $ -
$ - - - - - Is -
3 - - - - - Is -
s = . - - - _|s -
5 = = = = - -
- 3 - = - - =
Z [ = - - $ - =
- s - |s - s - s - [s =
TOTAL COLLECTED 3 5,960.72_$§ 286,019 113.49 $ - § 5561.22 3§ 556122
PERCENTAGE COLLECTED 2%
DEBT SERVICE
GROSS ASSESSMENTS §  1,117,752.24
CERTIFIED NET ASSESSMENTS §  1,050,687.11
100%
GROSS ASSESSMENTS COMMISSIONS  INTEREST _ NET ASSESSMENTS _ DEBT SERVICE
DATE DISTRIBUTION RECEIVED DISCOUNTS PAID INCOME RECEIVED FUND
11/14/19 ACH 5 3,432.90 | § 137.30 | § 65.91 - 3,229.69 3,220.69
11/18/19 ACH 5 17,815.94 | §  887.69 | § 338.57 - 16,589.68 16,589.68
- - 5 - - 3 = -
- - I3 - 15 - —_|s -
- - 3 - 3 - - -
s - s - s - | - - =
s - |s -~ s | - - -
5 - s - |3 - |3 5 - -
3 = E = = E - - -
B - E = = g - - Z
3 — s - - |3 - - |3 -
[ - 13 - B - - s =
- 18 - - |3 - B =
_ E - - E - - 3 -
- |s - s - I - - -
- I3 - |s -~ s - = -
3 - Is - I - [ S I3 - =
TOTAL COLLECTED 5 21,248.84_§ __ 1,024.99_$ 404.48 3 -3 19,819.37 § 19,819.37
PERCENTAGE COLLECTED ==




SECTION D



SECTION 1



Poinciana West

Poinciana West CDD Field Management Report | GMS 2019



Poinciana West

Community Development District

Field Management Report
December 4, 2019

To: George Flint
District Manager
From: Clayton Smith

Field Services Manager

RE: Poinciana CDD — December 4, 2019

The following is a summary of items related to the field operations and management of the Poinciana
West Community Development District.

- Poinciana West CDD Field Management Report | GMS 2019



Completed ltems

+ Bank restoration
surrounding two large
mitered ends has been
completed.

+ Dredgesox were placed
then, filled and covered
with Sod.

+ End Results have been
satisfactory.

+ Potential to use
dredgesox for future
repairs.

Poinciana West CDD Field Management Report | GMS 2019



Completed Items

4+ Cleared obstructions
limiting flow through
orifice.

<+ Other orifices checked for
obstructions and
functionality.

+ Dry Pond basins were
cleared and mowed down.

+ Staff and contractor
continue to monitor basins
for saturation and
overgrowth

- Poinciana West CDD Field Management Report | GMS 2019




Completed

+ Re-treatment of target
ponds has shown positive
results.

+ Systemic treatment to be

carried out again next

year.

- Poinciana West CDD Field Management Report | GMS 2019



In Progress

+ Spraying and
management of aquatic
weeds and algae is
ongoing.

+ Several ponds including
Pond 8 have had
planktonic algae blooms.

4+ Contractor has been
working to control/treat
planktonic blooms.

<+ Select ponds are still
being treated.

+ Ongoing treatments have
yielded positive results
and controlling the algae.

+ Continue to monitor.

- Poinciana West CDD Field Management Report | GMS 2019




In Progress

<+ To add fish to pond by
mid or end of December
assuming factors are
positive.

+ 500 — Bluegill and Red
eared sunfish.

+ These are the
recommended fish for
reducing midge larvae.

<+ Will test oxygen levels
and temperature before
adding fish.

Poinciana West CDD Field Management Report | GMS 2019



Conclusion

For any questions or comments regarding the above information, please contact me by phone at
407-201-1514, or by email at csmith@amscfl.com. Thank you.

Respectfully,
Clayton Smith

- Poinciana West CDD Field Management Report | GMS 2019



PW Monthly Treatment Report

Date hetween : 09/01/2019 and 09/30/2019

Customer Site ID | Treatment Date Condition/Weeds Treated

16A 9/18/19 Clean

4A 9/18/19 Clean
Pond 1 9/18/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 1 9/18/19 Pennywort
Pond 1 9/18/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 10 9/18/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 10 9/18/19 Pennywort
Pond 10 9/18/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 11 9/18/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 11 9/18/19 Pennywort
Pond 11 9/18/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 12 9/18/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 12 9/18/19 Pennywort
Pond 12 9/18/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 13 9/17/19 Clean
Pond 15 9/25/19 Filamentous
Pond 15 9/25/19 Hydrilla
Pond 16 9/26/19 Clean
Pond 17 9/24/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 17 9/24/19 Pennywort
Pond 17 9/24/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 18 9/24/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 18 9/24/19 Pennywort
Pond 18 9/24/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 2 9/18/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 2 9/18/19 Pennywort
Pond 2 - 9/18/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 20 9/24/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 20 9/24/19 Pennywort
Pond 20 9/24/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 21 9/24/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 21 9/24/19 Pennywort
Pond 21 9/24/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 22 9/24/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 22 9/24/19 Pennywort
Pond 22 9/24/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 3 9/17/19 Clean
Pond 4 9/17/19 Clean
Pond 5 9/18/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 5 9/18/19 Pennywort
Pond 5 9/18/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 6 9/18/19 Filamentous
Pond 6 9/18/19 Hydrilla
Pond 6 9/18/19 Spike Rush
Pond 7 9/19/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 7 9/19/19 Pennywort
Pond 7 9/19/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 8 9/26/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 8 9/26/19 Pennywort
Pond 8 9/26/19 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 9 9/19/19 Alligator Weed
Pond 9 9/19/19 Pennywort
Pond 9 9/19/19 Shoreline Grasses




v Clorke

Poinciana West Community Development District

Monthly Midge Treatment Report
September 1, 2019-September 30, 2019

Night Truck Spray

° 8.80  Miles were sprayed

ATV ULV Spray

° 10.00 Miles were sprayed

Backpack Pellet Larvicide

® 6.50 Acres were treated

Boat Larvicide Treatments

e 0O Acres were treated



__l.'\ i .
0 Clqr“e PW Monthly Treatment Report

Date between : 10/01/2019 and 10/31/2019

Customer Site ID | Treatment Date | Condition/Weeds Treated

16A 10/2/2019 Clean

4A 10/2/2019 Clean
Pond 1 10/17/2019 Alligator Weed
Pond 1 10/17/2019 Pennywort
Pond 1 10/17/2019 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 10 10/30/2019 Filamentous
Pond 10 10/30/2019 Hydrilla
Pond 11 10/30/2019 Clean
Pond 12 10/30/2019 Filamentous
Pond 12 10/30/2019 Hydrilla
Pond 13 10/17/2019 Alligator Weed
Pond 13 10/17/2019 Pennywort
Pond 13 10/17/2019 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 15 10/17/2019 Alligator Weed
Pond 15 10/17/2019 Filamentous
Pond 15 10/17/2019 Hydrilla
Pond 15 10/17/2019 Pennywort
Pond 15 10/17/2019 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 16 10/17/2019 Alligator Weed
Pond 16 10/17/2019 Pennywort
Pond 16 10/17/2019 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 17 10/17/2019 Alligator Weed
Pond 17 10/17/2019 Pennywort
Pond 17 10/17/2019 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 18 10/29/2019 Alligator Weed
Pond 18 10/29/2019 Pennywort
Pond 18 10/29/2019 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 2 10/29/2019 Clean
Pond 20 10/30/2019 Clean
Pond 21 10/30/2019 Clean
Pond 22 10/2/2019 Filamentous
Pond 3 10/2/2019 Alligator Weed
Pond 3 10/2/2019 Pennywort
Pond 3 10/2/2019 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 4 10/2/2019 Alligator Weed
Pond 4 10/2/2019 Pennywort
Pond 4 10/2/2019 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 5 10/2/2019 Filamentous
Pond 5 10/2/2019 Hydrilla
Pond 6 10/2/2019 Alligator Weed




Pond 6 10/2/2019 Filamentous
Pond 6 10/2/2019 Hydrilla
Pond 6 10/2/2019 Pennywort
Pond 6 10/2/2019 Shoreline Grasses
Pond 7 10/30/2019 Filamentous
Pond 7 10/30/2019 Hydrilla
Pond 8 10/29/2019 Filamentous
Pond 8 10/29/2019 Planktonic
Pond 9 10/30/2019 Filamentous
Pond 9 10/30/2019 Hydrilla




¥ ClOrKe

Poinciana West Community Development District

Monthly Midge Treatment Report
October 1, 2019-October 31, 2019

Night Truck Spray

. 8.90 Miles were sprayed

ATV ULV Spray

. 11.90 Miles were sprayed

Backpack Pellet Larvicide

° 0 Acres were treated

Boat Larvicide Treatments

e 0 Acreswere treated



Wd S¥:LLP ¥102/9/8

Hodey jueugess) obpiN AlQuo AAOMd

0 00'0 JE 000 \BUOl 8y | Jod [EjoL
AT Y04 INON
[BINSESN JO J1UN | Mpuenp pasn [ealluayy | eINSEesi jo N | MBUEND pasn | 8jed pus SJEQg HE)S d ED
qi 00'LS ae BE'9 UoW 611 o4 [BjoL
al 1S oe 8€'9 6L/E/L 6L/e/L 9'6'G
JINSEa JO JIUN | MPUEND Posy) [EolLayy | 8INSEal §0 )IUN | MBUEND posn | o1ed Pus | 9ied WeIS | Spucd epIoIAME] 910liod s o1eay. |
1e5 SEE [ 0Lk HUOH @41 165 1201
1eb ve0 w 44 61/S2/L 6L/5¢lIL 6% '8 '9'5spuod| AN ALY QAOMd
leb g0 [Eg %4 61/22/L 6L/2eIL 6% '8 '9'6spuod| AN %Nl GaOMd
leb YE0 (e (%4 61/8V/L 6L/8L/L 672 '8 ‘9'G SPuod| AN ALY QOOMd
1eb 61°0 w [44 6L/SLIL 6LISLIL 6% '8 '9'G spuod| AN NONUL AAOMd
eb SE0 w [&4 6L/LLI2 6L/LLIL 6% '8'9's spucd| AN ALV GOOMd
1eB 6’0 w [44 6L/8/L 61/8/L 6% ‘8 ‘9'G Spuod| AN NONL AQOMd
1eb VE'0 1w (44 6L/E/L BLIEIL 6'9 ‘g ‘9'6spuod| AN ALY AQDMd
1eb G0 w ce 8LILIL 6L/LIL 69 '8 '9'G spuod| AN doni) QGOMd
2INSEN JO JIUN | ARUEND pas( |edlwayd | 2InsSesp Jo Jun | ARUEND pesn | ejeq pua ajeq HE)S oy 18UI0)SNY)
6102 Ainp

OO L)

7



Wd St:L1:¥ ¥102/9/8

Zo 00'¥ oe 19'¢ yauoly ayj Jo [ejol
Z0 . oe 192 61/z2/8 61/zz/8 6
)INSES JO HUND POSN €] oINSEA[N JO NUN | Anueny pasn | oyed pud 8jeq Hels spuod epjdiAleT Iy ajeqy
qi 00°2S oe 059 Yjuoly 8yl Jo4 [ejoL
ql zs oe G9 61/ZL/8 61/2LI8 6'9'S
INSES JO NUD Posn [ 2INSES Jo Jlun | MBUEND posn | eled puz | ojed ¥Wels spuod spjdiAle] sjejiad %S aeqy
Jeb GE0 Tul 0% UJUON 9] 164 (6101
leb S0 nw £ec 61/9¢/8 61/9¢/8 6% ‘g ‘9'g spuod AN ALY GadMd
|eb €€0 w £e 6lL/2e/8 6lL/ec/8 69 ‘g '9'G spuod AN ol agomd
|eb S0 u £e 6L/61/8 6L/61/8 6 ‘g ‘9'G spuod AN ALY AdOMd
jeb 0] fut 43 61/G1/8 6L/51/8 |6%'g'9'sspuod| AN d¥ONUL AAOMd
|eb 9€°0 w gc 6LiviI8 6L/vL/8 6% ‘8 '9'sspuod| AN ML AOMd
3 ¥€°0 w 144 61/8/8 61/8/8 62 '8 '9'G spuod AN ALY AQOMd
3 6v'0 iw Z¢C 6L/5/8 61/5/8 62 '8 ‘9°c spuod AN ALY QQOMd
|eb Ge'0 iw e 6L/1/8 6L/L/8 6% '8 ‘9’ spuod| AN oY AAOMd
ainses|y jo HuUgD pasn [edf ainsesp o yun | Apueny pasn ajeq pu3zg sjeq Je1s anoy lawoysnd
6102 ysnbny
Hoday juauneal) abpiN Ajyuo AGOMd S92 IJOYO A

.

Ll



Wd S¥: L1y #102/9/8

0 00’y oe 197 Lpuol ay Jod (€10
o ¥ oe 19 6L/L1/6 6L/ 16 ] 6
aINSea Jo NU(O pesn [eopnseoy JO Hu| MRUEND Posn | eyed PUT | oiea Hels SPUOJ SPISIAIET Iy S1eqy
qi 00°ZS oe 059 \BUOM Y} 10 [B0L
ql Z§ oe 59 61/61/6 61/61/6 696
eINsEo J0 NUND Pasn |EJPNSESA 10 J|u| ANUEND Posn | o1ed pud | eied vels SpuOd epOIAIE] SI19]19d %S SIEqY
|eB Ive 1w 08°81 puoy 8y} o4 |210)
[eb 70 fu X3 61/42/6 BL//2/6 |67 8 95spuod] AN ALV GdOMd
E3 670 I 7 B1/€2/6 6L/EZ/6 | 6% '8 '9'GSPUOd| AN dORL AdOMd
E3 SE0 I v'e BL/61/6 BL/6L/6 |63 8 9G8PUOd| AN ALY GOMd
B3 8v°0 o ze B61/9L/6 6L/9L/6 | 6% '8 '9'GSpUOd| AN dONL AdOMd
1eb 9c0 m ge BHZII6 61/ZL/6 | 6% '8 9GSPuod|  AIn ALV GdOMd
|eb 8¥ 0 w ze 61/6/6 6L/6/6 | 6% '8 '9GSPUOd| AN YONL QGOMd
|eb 9c0 m Ve 61/5/6 6L/5/6 | 6% '8 '9'GSPUod| AN ALY QOOMd
1eb 6v°0 w Z¢e 61/5/6 B6L/S/6 | 6% '8 '9'G SPUOD| AN >ONIL AQOMd
ainsesp Jo Nuo pasn |edfinsesyy Jo yu| Apuenp pasn | e3eq pug 9jeq 1e)S ajnoy Jawo)sny
6102 Joquigjdeg

Hoday jusugeas ] oBpyN AlBuo AAOMd

221010 CA

A

Ll



Wd ¥ L1 vi02/9/8

Jodoy jusugeal) aBpIA Aluol AaoMd

zo 000 28 00°0 WUOH BuL JoJ [eoL
¥3H0LO0 H04 INON
SINSEON JO IIUN SINSEOW Jo IUn_| AAUEND pasn | SpuGd epid|T] 3y BeqY
al 000 o8 000 RUON ey o7 (€0
al T G009 SNOILIANOD "§3d0100 J04 3NON
SINSEoN [EISESN [0 0N | ARUERD Pas | SpuOd 9p|I|AIE] BI0[Sd %
(L SLE T 0802 IO B 107 5oL
SED0 o v 61/1E/0} | BI/1E/0} 62 '8'9G SPUod] AN ALY Q0OMd
S0 i te 61/82/0F | B61/82/0L 6% '8 '9'G SPUOD| AN PRIL ATOMd
760 m 53 6L/EC/0) | BI/ECIOL 6% '8 9'55puod| AN ALY GQOMd
6V 0 i z2e B6L/12/0L | 61/12/0) 6% '8 '9'G SPUOd| AN PUL AUOMd
SE'0 w ¥ 6L/LL101 SL/21I01 6% '8 '9'5spuod| AN ALY QAOMWMd
b w0 o ze BLIPLIOL | BL/THOL 6% '8 '9'G SPUCH| AN YONIL AGOMd
1eb ¥E0 i ¥e 6L/01/0L | 61/01/01 62 '8 '9'GSPUOA| AN ALY QOOMJ
1eb 50 W rx4 61/2/0) 6L/L/01 6% '8 ‘9'G spuod| AN ¥OMUL A0OMd
] 150 o z3e 617201 | 6H/e/0l 6% '8 0'GSPUOd| AN ALY QOOMd
EXGECE TR RRueny pasn [Eajwey) | SInsesy Jo MU | MPUEND pasn | ojeq pug | oved veis 8oy 13WW0)SNY
6102 4390)00

IO L

71



¥£0Z-¢t¥ (008)
PrivE 1 ‘sewwssIy

anuaAy ueBIydIN 9£0g

a)e|D

G1-62€8 # vd3

gy ITvsad

saloe S1371713d %S
S9A suopipuo jelqeH  €Z€20'L 0000 sqIoL’y  $qI000°Z J1vav - S00LIAS €20} 9/6V°18- ¥¥EL'8C  9000-1.00

S1-62¢8 ‘# vd3

a1y IvsSIH

saloe S137713d %S
SOA suopipuog jejqe 80812°€ 0000 sqisy'e  sdI00022 ALVaV - S00LIAS 8i1z¢ 966%°1.8- S0€L'82  2000-1L00

§1-62€8 # vd3

gy 3TvS3A

saloe S13713d %S
S8A suopipuod JejiqeH YSPeES'T 0000 sqIG¥'€  sA1000'¢2 31vav - S00LIAS SE€8°C 186¥°18- cigi'ez  1000-100

¥oays ajey
sjoen3 pajeas) EUTTTR abesog ajey fnpuenp abeasoy
9SI9APY  pIOYsSalYyL uopdy  syun 8j1g Jusweal ] |enjoy abesoq pasn jesiwayy pajeas)  epmyibuo  opmjeT alsus
sj8l|ed 8jeqy
o8 9BpIn - 6921810 ajpidwod Wd 0S'EL 6L02/E0/20 WV StiLL 6L0OZ/E0/L0 66 26 JS3aMUINog HdW 0L-} SpnoD
puz uels fyoojap
1Y 991A198 snjejs qor dwejsawi) qop dwejsowny qorr s qopr ayL uQ ainjesadwa ) uonaalg PUIpm puIp % J9A0) pnojn  uonepdisaig
'9 ANOd NO S418 38N "6 ANV § SANOd 04 (88122) onr | 3sn
‘JS8M g UO juswieali ou ‘FHOV/SH1 8 LV S13713d %S 3LvaV H1IM 6 PUB 9 ‘G GNOd LvIdL
19hed SjuaWWOD suonanJsuj qor
‘PAIE BRAIOS

6GLE a4 BUBDUlI0d pue ‘Amid ssaidip L6ssLL3ar Qi lojeoyddy sejuel sjed SejueiN 8l9d 2052000001 (0} L 9220€00000 6102/€0/20
diz elelg oN aweN oN sjeq
Jswolsng Jawolsny ANJ JBWoISny SSaUPpY JoWo)sn)  asuaol] Alewd swep asusop] Alewpd  e9susor] Kiewng ueduysel oN Biy  jwbBsy JopiQ ddIMBg JUCTIES T

uodey 82149 - (00820d) ¥51Q "A9Q Ajunwwo) jsep eueidUiod

MDD 0



vE02-EvP (008)

Yrive 14 ‘edwwisspy

anuany uebiyoin 9e0e
T:T)

S1-62€8 i# Vd3

a1y 3TvS3H

saioe S13713d %S
SOA suopipuod ejqeH €2ec0’ 0000 SqQIegE  $q10008 31vav - S00LLAS €20t 9.6V 18- viel’8e  9000-100

S1-62€8 '# ¥d3

ar 3Tvs3id

s9I08 S13713d %S
SoA suonipuo ejiqeH g808lee 0000 $qI8€'E  $q1 000'¢2 3A1vay - SO0LIAS 8lz’e 956t 19- S0EL'82  <000-100

§1-62£8 '# ¥d3

gy 3vs3ay

seloe S13713d %S
SOA suonipuoy IelgeH yavese 0000 SqI8e’€  $41000'¢2 Alvay - S00LIAS SE8C 1861°18- cléi’sc  1000-100

39ays ajey
s109)3 pajeadL sung abesog aley fAuenp abealsoy
9SIGAPY  PIOYSIIYL UOHOY snun o)g Jusweal} lenjoy  abesoq pasn leswsy) peeasy apniibuo]  epnuieT i8S
S19)19d oreqy
da ebpiN - 692181 8j9|dwoD Wd ¢Sl 6102/21/80 Wd PPl 6102/21/80 09 <6 1SOM HdW 0}-1 Spnojo
pu3 ues Apojep
) 921488 snjes qop dwejsawit qop dwejsawi] qor  sajnully qop syl uQ ainjelssdwa) uoiadIIg PUIM PUIM % J9n09 pnojy  uonendisaid
"9 ONOd NO S818 35N 6 ANV § SONOd HO4 (Sg17 22) onr | asn
‘JHOV/SHET 8 LV S13113d %S 31VEV HLIM 6 Pue 9 ‘G ONOd Lv3HL
1aked sjuswwoy suonangsu] qopr
‘PAIG BIANOS

6S.L¥E 1 BUBIOUIOY  pue "Amdd sseidhD L6SSL13ar Q1 foreonddy Sejuep sisd Sele e84 20S200000L  {(0) | 2220200000 61L02/21/80
diz ajels ON aweN ON 43p10 ajeqg
Jawolsng Jawolsny A1) sewi0lsnd SSAIPPY JSWOISND  asuadl| Alewild  awep asusor] Alewild  99su99i] Alewid uepuysal on By  pubsy ERIIY T juswieas)

uoday a91A188 - (00820d) 1510 A8 ANUNWIIC?) IS8 BUEIOUIOG




ve0zZ-evv (008)
vrive 4 ‘eswwussy

enusAy LEBIOIN 9E0E

e

S1-6268 ‘# Vd3

vy 3vsad

saioe S137173d %S
SaA SuolPUOD JBJGBH  €2E20') 0000 SAIEZ’L  Sd1000°8 31vav-S00LIAS  £20°L 9.6v'18-  ¥¥ZI'8Z  9000-L00

G1-62€8 # Vd3

gy 3vsad

soe S137113d %S
SaA SUOpUCD JeNqEH  80812°€ 0000 SAIgE’e  SAI0002Z  I1vAV-S00LIAS  8ITE 956p'18-  SOEL'SZ  2000-100

G1-62¢8 # vd3

gy Ivs3d

sale S137113d %S
SOA SUONIpUOD JeNdeH  bGYER'T 0000 Sqige’e  SQI0002Z  3LvAV-SOOLIAS  S882 18618~ ZiZL'8Z  LDDO-LOO

399349 ajey
sjoalg pajeas] awyl afesoq ajey Ayuenp abeasay
oslanpy ploysaiyl uolsy  spun 9 Juawjeas] |enjoy abesoq posn lesiway) pajeas)  opnjifuo  apnjnen alas
sielied ejeqy
o8 9BpIN - 6921511 2)9ldwoD Wd 8F'SlL 6L02/61/60 Wd 8v:SL 6L0Z/61/60 L ¥8 ISOMUHON  HdAN 04~ les|)
pug vels Ayoojep
Y 991AI9g sneig qop dwe)sawi) qor dwejsswil qor  SeINU gqor @yl uo sanjesadwa] uo1a8IIg PUIA pPUIM % 49A0D pno|n  uonendidaid
'9 ANOdJ NO §818 3SN "6 ANV § SANOd ¥04d (sg122) onr |+ 3Isn
'IHOV/SE 8 LV SLIT13d %S 31vav HLIM 6 PUE 9 °G ONOd LvIHL
ashed SjUsWIWOYD suonansysuj qor
"PAIE BUAIOS

6SLYE §E] BUBlOUIO]  pue ‘AMd ssaudAD 16552130 i Jojeoliddy Sejue aj9d sejuely ajod 2052000001 (0} L 8ZZ0E00000 6102/61/60
diz awels ON awenN ON ajeq
Jswoisng Jswoisny A J9WOISND SSAIPPY JaWoISnY asusolq liewsd  oweN 9asuaol] Alewd  8asuaar Alewd uepuyss)  opn Buy Jwbsy JepsQ d21A188 juawiless]

Hoday 3DIAISS - (008.20d) 1510 "A2Q AHUNWILIOD JSAAN BUBIOUIO

=TT o) YeYe



¥£02-€tv (008)
bhLbE 14 ‘eBILISSIY

anusAy ueBIyoIN ge0e

aeD

G1-62€8 # vd3

gy IvsaY

saloe S13713d %S
SBA suonpipuod jeyqeH  €Z€zZo') 0000 SqlEZ’)L 910008 31vav - S00} NS £z0'L 9/6%'18- ¥P21L'82  9000-100

S1-62€8 # vd3

avy 3ve3ay

sale S13713d %S
SOA suopipuold JejqeH  808LE'E 0000 sq1ge’e  SAI000CZ  ILVEV - S00LIAS 81T¢ G618~ SOEL'82  Z000-L00

S1-62€8 # Vd3

aivy Ivsad

sale S13T13d %S
LN suopipuog jejqeH pSreERT 0000 S418E’€ 54100022 3A1vayv - S00LIAS GEBE 186¢°18- 2121’82  1L000-100

LEE o] ajey
sjoay3 pajeas) aw|L abesogQ ajey Ayuenp abeasoy
8SJaApY  ploysasyl uondoy  sjun oIS Jusweal ] |emoy abesoQ pasn leausyy  pajeas)  apmibuo  apnine alams
sielled sjeqy
dg 9BpIN - 692LSIM aeldwod WY L5:0L 610Z/8L/LL WYV LS:0L 6L0Z/8L/LL |21 89 ISOMLINOGS  HdW 01} spnojy
puz Hels Kyoojep
pOVERTINETS snjejs qop dweysawi) qor dwejsawi] qof  S9INULR qof 8y L uQ ainjesadwa uopioalg pulp PUI 9%, 9A0) pnon  uonepdioald
'9 ONOd NO $878 35N 6 ANY § SANOd 04 (88122) 9nr 1 3sn
‘THOV/SE 8 LV S13T113d %S ILVEY HLIM 6 PUB 9 'G ONOd 1v3dl
lafed SjuAWWOoY suolonsul qor
‘PAIE B[O

6SLYE = eueloulod pue “Amid ssaudAo 16654130 ql sojeoddy Sejuep 8jad Sejuei 8jed 2052000004  {0) 4 6220€00000 6102/8L/11
diz aelg ON sweN OoN 9jeq
JWOISNY JawoIsny AND Jawwoisny sSAppY Jowoisny  osusoi] Alewd  dwep 3susop] Alewild  99susdl] Alewd uepuyoal  oN Bay  Jubsy 18pig e21al0g juawess )

yoday 991108 - (00820d) ISIQ "AaQ Aunwiwio) }sep euedulod

MO0 D



SECTION 2



61/7¢/0T Ano) papeuo)|  yuws uoiked Soynbsoly|  WoIpnopLEWRUAqU} S-d peoy a3p1y Juided 848 wnuAg eunel|6T/yT/0T
6T/LT/0T padesds| piws uorkepd 4opo ‘puod ui des|y 908E-189-S19 8-d| ®auQ a8esiN oyouey 5T Aoy epuaug|6T/9T/0T
6T//T/0T paAesds| ypws uoiheld Jopo ‘puod u sedly S0T6-7TH-609 8-d| 399.15 |seydey ues zoL [19A0D Buelq|6T/9T/01
6T/LT/01 pakesds| yuws uojhepd Jopo ‘puod u1 sesjy 996/-£58-0€9 8-d| 199.S |9eydey ues y9/ snzpwiiy uoq|6T/9T/0T
6T/LT/0T pakesds| yuws uoike)d 4opo ‘puod ui 3e8|y 9840-967-£983 8-d| 19345 [9eydey ues 9 uewy|es uesns|gT/9T/0T
61/LT/0T paAeids| uyiws uolhepd puod ui 38y 96%0-T08-612 8-d| Hno) Aeg UCOW jieH T0Z| 31dsiio Aspeyd|6T/#1/0T
61/LT/0T pakesds| yuws ucihe)d sseJ3 3AISsaIX3 ¢/96-/T7-€98 1-d Sjlam uelpu| ey ssiop y3aqeza|6T/¥1/01
6T/6/0T dn paydld| yuws uolhep) puod uj yses i 1€80-¥2S-81S ST-d| Ppeoy yauey esape /z6 Mo ene|eT///0T
61/7/0T paAesds| yws uoike)d puod uj de3|y SE€09-T8Y-ST9 8-d| 193.5 |9eydey ues yy8 e319d uyor|6T/€/0T
61/52/6 paAesds| yinws uoihe| puod u) ysed} pue sed|y LE80-¥TS-81S ST-d| peoy youey esdpe /z6 mopeln enel|eT/T/0T
61/1/01 paAesds| yiwsg uolie|d puod ut ae3|e pue s38pIN S62/-967-€98 7t-d peoy uinbeor UeS $65| USSPOOM PjeuOY|6T/SZ/6
61/s¢/6 paAeids| yiws uohe)d puod ui sedy 80TE-ETE-£98 S1-d uanIBIoN|  oj|31a10d ueln|6T/ve/6
61/52/6 padesds| yuws uoike;y puod ui aed|y LE80-Y2S-8TS ST-d| peoy youey eispe £76 MolJeN BINGT|6T/E2/6
61/52/6 paAesds|  yuws uoihery puod ul yseq pue des|y LEBD-VZS-8TIS|  SI-d| peoy youey eiope] /76 mopey eInel|61/91/6
paajosay 23eq uonnjosay 0] paugissy iedwo) 1081U0) puod 559.1ppy uapIsay ANeq

aan 1S9 eueIdulod 8o auiejdwio? Jawoisn))




